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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFF/CE OF HEALTH EQUITY

Lori A. Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
Commisikiner 603-271-9200 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9200

Fax:603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhh$.nh.gov
Reuben T. Hampton

Director

May 15, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Health Equity , to enter
into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Ascentria Community Services, Inc.
(VC#222201), Concord, NH to enable continued critical supports to the Office of Refugee
Resettlement eligible Individuals, by increasing the price limitation by $517,727 from $770,786 to
$1,288,513 with no change to the contract completion date of September 30, 2026, effective July
1, 2025, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 26,2024, item U62.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal
Year 2026 and 2027, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the
future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation
and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the BudgetOffice, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP ISOrequires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor is one of four
qualified providers that has the necessary cultural and linguistic expertise, comprehensive client
information, and established client relationships to serve the eligible individuals.

The purpose of this request is to continue essential employment, health, school and other
supportive services to Office of Refugee Resettlement eligible individuals resettled in the State
for up to five (5) years from the date of eligibility, including targeted services for Afghans
resettled through Operation Allies Welcome, through the US Department of Homeland
Security and Ukrainian humanitarian parolees displaced from the Russia-Ukraine war.

Approximately 300 Office of Refugee Resettlement eligible individuals will be served
annually.

Supportive services, including case management, will be provided to individuals from all
ORR-eligible populations. The services are needed to help individuals achieve economic self-
sufficiency, well-being, and successful integration in the United States. The support
encompasses the four key areas of (1) Health and Behavioral health (promoting health through
education, care coordination, and wellness groups); (2) Employment and Economic/Social
Stability (providing
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employment and job and advancement retention services that lead to sustainable forms of income
and economic mobility); (3) Social Adjustment and Integration (facilitating connections between
individuals and their communities and participation in social and economic systems): and (4)
Children and Youth (promoting access to child care; providing support to help children succeed
in formal schooling, strengthen their academic performance, and aid in the social adjustment of
youth and their families).

The Department will monitor services by reviewing required programmatic reports,
performing in-person agency monitoring and conducting file reviews to ensure the Contractor
provides all required services.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the Office of Refugee
Resettlement eligible Individuals resettled in the State will not have access to foundational case
management and economic support sen/ices that impact their ability to become self-sufficient
and achieve sustained social and economic wellbeing.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number #93.566 FAIN #2301NHRSSS-00,
FAIN #2301NHRSSS-02. FAIN#2301NHRSSS-05, FAIN #2401NHRSSS-08.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Deparlmenl of Health and Human Seruices' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

SS-202S-OHE-01-TARGE-O1-AO1

0S-95-9S-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:COMMISSIONERS OFFICE,
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, REFUGEE SERVICES

100% Federal Funds

ASCENTRIA CASE COORDINATION 7/1/24-9/30/25 Vendor #222201

State Rscal

Year
Class / Account Class Tttle Job Number Current Budget

Increase

(Decreased)
Amount

Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95070016 S45.000.00 $0.00 $45,000.00
2026 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95070016 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

Sub Total $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00

ASCENTRIA AFGHAN HEALTH PROMOTION 10/1/24 - 9/30/26 Vendor #222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increase

(Decreased)
Amount

Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072313 $27,126.00 $0.00 $27,126.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072313 $9,042.00 $37,790.00 $46,832.00
2027 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072313 $0.00 $9,448.00 $9,448.00

Sub Total $36,168.00 $47,238.00 $83,406.00

ASCENTRIA REFUGEE HEALTH PROMOTION 10/1/24 - 9/30/25 Vendor #222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

IfKrease

(Decreased)
Amount

Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072303 $2,042.00 $0.00 $2,042.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072303 $681.00 $0.00 $681.00

Sub Total $2,723.00 $0.00 $2,723.00

ASCENTRIAPOPULATIONS HEALTH PROMO (UKR HP FUNDS) 10/1/24-9/30/26 Vendor#222201

State Rscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increase

(Decreased)

Amount

Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072323 $49,411.00 $0.00 $49,411.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072323 $16,470.00 $16,802.00 $33,272.00
2027 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072323 $0.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00

Sub Total $65,881.00 $21,002.00 $86,883.00

ASCENTRIA REFUGEE HEALTH PROMOTION 10/1/24 - 9/30/26 Vendor #222201

Slate Rscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increase

(Decreased)
Amount

Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072403 $46,875.00 $0.00 $46,875.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072403 $62,500.00 $0.00 $62,500.00

2027 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072403 $15,625.00 $0.00 $15,625.00
Sub Total $125,000.00 $0.00 $125,000.00

ASCENTRIA REFUGEE SCHOOL IMPACT 10/1/24-9/3026 Vendor #222201

State Rscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increase

(Decreased)
Amount

Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072402 $52,500.00 $0.00 $52,500.00
2026 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072402 $70,000.00 $31,305.00 $101,305.00

2027 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072402 $17,500.00 $7,825.00 $25,325.00

Sub Total $140,000.00 $39,130.00 $179,130.00

ASCENTRIA AFGHAN SOCIAL SERVICES 10/1/24 • 9/30/26 Vendor #222201

Stale Rscal

Year
Class / Account Oass Title Job Number Current Budget

Increase

(Decreased)
Amount

Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072311 $176,185.00 $0.00 $176,185.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072311 $58,728.00 $149,820.00 $208,548.00

2027 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072311 $0.00 $37,455.00 $37,455.00

Sub Total $234,913.00 $187,275.00 $422,188.00

ASCENTRIA UKRAINE SOCIAL SERVICES 10/1/24 - 9/30/26 Vendor #222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increase

(Decreased)
Amount

Current Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072321 $79,576.00 $0.00 $79,576.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072321 $26,525.00 $49,665.00 $76,190.00

2027 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072321 $0.00 $12,418.00 $12,418.00
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

SS-2025-OKE-01-TARGE-01-A01

Sub Total I  $106.101.001 $62.083.00! $168.184.00l

ASCENTRIA Ukraine School Impact 07/1/25 to 09/30/26 Vendor #222201

State Rscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increase

(Decreased)
Amount

Amount

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 95072322 SO.OO $128,799.00 $128,799.00
2027 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 95072322 $0.00 $32,200.00 $32,200.00

Sub Total $0.00 $160,999.00 $160,999.00

Overall Total! S770.786.00l S517.727.00l $1.288.513.00]
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Targeted Refugee Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Sen/ices {"State" or "Department") and Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on dune 26, 2024 (Item #62), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions spiecified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
|n the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation, to read:

$1,288,513

2. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal Funds

1.1.1. 5% Federal funds, OOR Refugee Cash & Medical Assistance (Coordination
of DME), as awarded on November 8, 2023, by the DHHS Administration
for Children and Families, ALN #93.566, FAIN #2401NHRCMA-00.

1.1.2. 3% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (FFY23
Afghan RHP), as awarded on July 6, 2023, by the DHHS Administration for
Children and Families, ALN #93.566, FAIN #2301-NHRSSS-06.

1.1.3. 4% Federal funds, Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (FFY23
Afghan RHP), as awarded on November 30, 2022, by the DHHS
Administration for Children and Families, ALN #93.566, FAIN #2301-
NHRSSS-02.

1.1.4. 1% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides {FFY23 RHP
Supplement), as awarded on May 12, 2023, by the DHHS Administration for
Children and Families, ALN #93.566, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-05.

1.1.5. 5% Federal funds, Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (FFY23 UKR
RHP), as awarded on May 12, 2023, by the DHHS Administration for
Children and Families, ALN #93.566, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-05.

1.1.6. 2% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (FFY23 UKR
RHP), as awarded on November 3, 2022, by the DHHS Administration for
Children and Families, ALN #93.566, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-00.

1.1.7. 10% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (FFY24
Refugee Health Promotion), as awarded on November 16, 2023, by the
DHHS Administration for Children and Families, ALN #93.566, FAIN
#2401NHRSSS-01

1.1.8. 11% Federal funds, Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (FFY24
Refugee School Impact), as awarded on November 16, 2023, by the DHHS
Administration for Children and Families, ALN #93.566, FAIN

Ascentria Community Setvices, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials^

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-0i-A01 Page 1 of 4 Date^^lf^^^
v7.12.23

If?
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#2401NHRSSS-01.

1.1.9. 3% Federal funds, Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (FFY24
Refugee School Impact), as awarded on May 12, 2023, by the DHHS
Administration for Children and Families. ALN #93.566, FAIN
#2301NHRSSS-05.

1.1.10. 18% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (Afghan
Base), as awarded on July 6, 2023, by the DHHS, Administration for
Children and Families. ALN #93.566, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-06.

1.1.11. 14% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (Afghan
Base), as awarded on November 20, 2022, by the DHHS, Administration for
Children and Families. ALN #93,566, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-02.

1.1.12. 8% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (Ukraine
Base), as awarded on July 6, 2023, by the DHHS Administration for Children
and Families. ALN #93,566, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-06.

1.1.13. 3% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (Ukraine
Base), as awarded on November 20, 2022, by the DHHS Administration for
Children and Families, ALN #93,566, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-02.

1.1.14. 1% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (Ukraine
Base), as awarded on September 27,2023, by the DHHS Administration for
Children and Families, ALN #93,566, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-08.

1.1.'15. 12% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides (Ukraine
School Impact), as awarded on May 12 ,2023, by the DHHS Administration
for Children and Families, ALN #93,566, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-05

3. 4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4 to read:

4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance wit the approved line items, as specified
in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-9 Budget. Amendment 1.

4. Modify Exhibit C-2 Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-2 Budget- Amendment 1,
which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit C-4 Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-4 Budget - Amendment 1,
which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C-6 Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-6 Budget - Amendment 1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit C-7 Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit 0-1 Budget- Amendment 1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Modify Exhibit C-8 Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-8 Budget - Amendment 1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-9, Budget- Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS.2025.0HE-01-TARGE-01.A01 Page 2 of 4 Datel^^f^i^
v7.12.23

r—brittol
Hb
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and
effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/19/2025

Date

—SlQMd by;

Narri'^" Hampton
Title;

Director, office of Health equity

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

5/19/2025

Date

-Signed by:

£mjlL
NSme-'^^i'^'^a Bovill
Title: President/CEO

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01-A01

V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^  OocuSlgtwd Ijy;

5/21/2025

-  * riaTjMBW iwo... ̂
Date Name: Robyn Cuanno

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01-A01 Page 4 of 4
V. 7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID; 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72.5E5308E87C5E

Exhibit C-2 Budget, Amendment 1
(Afghan Health Promotion)

1
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Targeted Refugee Sen/ices

October 1, 2024 to September 30, 2027

Budget Request for:

Budget Period:

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) % of Salary & Wages (St̂ e below)

Line Item

SFY25

(October 1, 2024- June
30. 2025)

SFY26

(July 1, 2025 - June
30, 2026)

c

r

'  'J -

V.ilnrlft-
SFY27lfJ.i:'

(Julylj2026-^
September(36);i|

2026)"

.. o &
1. Salary &WaQes $15,572 $26,308 $5,234

2. Frinae Benefits $2,492 $10,260 $2,041

3. Consultants $0 $0 SO

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0 SO

5.(e) Supplies - Office $746 $688 S134

6. Travel $470 $235 $118

7. Software $0 $0 SO

8. (a) Other - Marketinq/Communications $0 $0 SO

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0 $0 SO

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0 SO

Other (please specify) Interpreters $676 $260 $156

Other (please specify) Professional Liability Insurance $626 $526 $79

Other (please spec/A') Telephone $1,014 $351 $78

Other (please specify) Audit $175 $233 $54

Other (please specify) Postaoe $40 $13 $7

Other (please specify) Equipment rental $235 $395 $35

Other (please specify) Occupancy $1,557 $2,341 $473

9. Sub recipient Contracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $23,602 $41,610 $8,409

Total Indirect Costs $3,524 $5,222 $1,039

Indirect Cost Per SFY'

Calculated using NICRA
of 22.63% of Salary and

Wages

Calculated using
NICRA of 19.85% of

Salary and Wages

Calculated using
NICRA of 19.85%

of Salary and
Wages

Subtotals $27,126 $46,832 $9,448

TOTAL $83r4'06

Contractor Initials;

G—InWj

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01 Date;
5/19/2025



Docusign Envelope 10: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E
Exhibit C-4 Budget. Amendment #1

(Ukraine Health Promotion)

1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ascentria Ck>mmunity Services. Inc.

Targeted Refugee Services

October 1. 2024 to September 30, 2026

Budget Request for:

Budget Period:

Indirect Cost Rate'(if applicable)% of Salary & Wages(See below)

Line Item

SYF25

(October 1,2024-
June 30, 2025)

SFY26

(July 1,2025 •

June 30, 2026)

K

'SFY27 " 1
(July 1,20261- n
September dOj*
' ̂ ^2026) f
^ _ [j

1. Salary & Waoes $27,531 $18,367 $2,359

2. Frinqe Benefits $5,231 $7,163 $919

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 GFR 200.

$0 $0

$0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0 -  $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab. $0 $0 $0

5.(c) SupDlies - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies - Office $1,896 $474 $0

6. Travel $470 $376 $47

7. Software $0 $0 $0

8. (a) Other - Marketinq/Communications $0 $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq $775 $0 $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0

Other (please specify) Interpreters $780 $208 $0

Other (please specify) Professional Liability Insurance $1,101 $276 $36

Other (please specify) Telephone $2,028 $324 $50

Other (please specify) Audit $230 $276 $40

Other (please specify) Postaoe $61 $50 $10

Other (please specify) Eauipment rental $325 $276 $35

Other (please specify) Occupancy $2,753 $1,837 $236

9. Sub recipient Contracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $43,181 $29,626 $3,732

Total Indirect Costs $6,230 $3,646 $468

Indirect Cost Rate Per SFY

Calculated using

NICRA of 22.63% of

Salary and Wages

Calculated using
NICRA of 19.85% of

Salary and Wages

Calculated using
NICRA of 19.85%

of Salary and

Wages

Subtotals $49,411 $33,272 $4,200

TOTAL °  ■ '^$86,883

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01-A01

G—InlUi

Date
.5/19/2025
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Exhibit C-6 Budget • Amdnement
(School impact)

1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Asceniha Community Services, Inc.

Budget Request for: Targeted Refugee Services
Budget Period: October 1, 2024 to September 30, 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable]% of Salary & Wages (see below}

Line Itom

SFY25

(October 1, 2024 - June

30, 2025}

SFY26

(July 1,2025-June 30,
2026}

SFY27

(July 1, 2026 • Soptember-30,;
■' 2026} 51?*:

m
1. Salary & Waaes $34,983 $54,594 $13,878
2. Frinoe Benefits $4,529 $21,292 $5,412
3. Consultants SO SO $0
4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

SO SO $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0 $0
5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0 $0 $0
5.(c) SuDpiies ■ Pharmacv $0 SO $0
5.(d) Suppiies • Medicai $0 $0 $0
5.(e) Supplies • Office $359 $800 $466
6. Travel $1,409 $2,350 $235
7. Software $0 $0 $0
6. (a) Other • Marlcetina/Communications $0 $0 $0
8. (b) Other • Education and Trainina $0 $0 $0
8, fc) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please soecifv} Interoreters $400 $780 $260
Other (crease soecifv) Professional Uabititv Insurance $150 $819 $208
Other (olease soecifv) Teleohone $466 $624 $156
Other (olease soecifv) Audit $45 $619 $208
Other (olease soecifv) -Poslaae $15 $27 $7
Other (please soecifv) Eauioment rental $225 $819 $139
Other (olease soecifv) Occuoancv $2,000 $5,459 $1,110
Other (piease specify) Client Direct Assistance (housing,

basic r>eeds. technoloov $0 $2,085 $491

Total Direct Costs $44,584 $90,468 $22,570

Total Indirect Costs $7,917 $10,837 $2,755

Indirect Cost Rate Per SFY

Calculated using NICRA
of 22.63% of Salary and

Wages

Calculated using NiCRA
of 19.85% of Salary and

Wages

Calculated using NICRA of
19.85% of Salary and Wages

Subtotals $52,500 $101,305 $25,325
$179,130

SS-2025^HE-01-TARGE-01-A01

r Initial

Contractor Initials:

Date:
5/19/2025
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Exhibit C-7 Budget -Amendment #1

(Afghan Social Services)

1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Targeted Refugee Services

October 1, 2024 to September 30, 2026

Budget Request for:

Budget Period:

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)% of Salary & Wages (See below)

Line Item

L

SYF25

(October 1, 2024 • June
30, 2025)

SFY26

(July 1,2025-June

30, 2026)

(July1,2p26;.jj»l,
September 30,'}"'

2026)1 T

" Ji!
1. Salary & Waaes $104,446 $118,928 $21,508

2. Frlnae Benefits $16,711 $46,382 $8,388

3. Consultants $1 $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0 $0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0 $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0 $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies - Office $3,584 $1,308 $152

6. Travel $1,004 $2,115 $447

7. Software $0 $1,200 $0

8. (a) Other • Marketino/Communications $0 $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Trainino $1,000 $0 $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please soecifvi Interpreters $676 $1,040 $104

Other (please speciM Professional Uabilitv Insurance $2,089 $1,189 $215

Other (please specifv) Telephone $1,170 $1,323 $236

Other (please specifv) Audit $1,044 $1,189 $215

Other (please specifv) Postaoe $100 $125 $25

Other (please specifv) Eouipment rental $1,567 $1,189 $396

Other (please specifv) Occupancy $8,356 $8,952 $1,499

Other (please specifv) $0

9. Subredpient Contracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $152,548 $184,941 $33,186

Total Indirect Costs $23,636 $23,607 $4,269

Indirect Cost Rate Per SFY

Calculated using NICRA
of 22.63% of Salary and
Wages

Calculated using NICRA
of 19.85% of Salary and
Wages

Calculated using

NICRA of 19.85% of

Salary and Wages

Subtotals $176,185 $208,548 $37,455

TOTAL ;$422,188

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01-A01

Contractor Initials:

nitial

Date:
5/19/2025



Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4363-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

Exhibit C-8 Budget - Amendment 1
(Ukraine Social Services)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ascentria Community Services,, Inc.

Budget Request for: Targeted Refugee Services
October 1, 2024 to September 30,

Budget Period: 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) % of Salary & Wages (See below)

Line Item

SYF25

(October 1,2024

June 30, 2025)

SFY26

(July 1,2025- '
June 30, 2026)

cT

° SFY27r

(July 1,2026-
^Septembeir 30,^
'i 2026)
.■"(j "

1. Salary & Wages $44,494 $41,612 $6,340
2. Fringe Benefits $7,119 $16,229 $2,473
3. Consultants $1 $0 $0
4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

$0

5.(d) Supplies - Educational $0 $0 $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0 $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0
5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0 $0 $0
5.(e) Supplies - Office $531 $1,209 $501
6. Travel $500 $470 $288
7. Software $0 $1,000 $413
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0 $0 $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $354 $0 $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) Interpreters $676 $1,040 $260
Liability Insurance $890 $624 $95

Other (please specify) Telephone $1,170 $1,242 $34

Other (please specify) Audit $445 $624 $95
Other (please specify) Postage ■  $100 $135 $20

Other (please specify) Equipment rental $667 $416
$83

Other (please specify) Occupancy $3,560 . $3,329 $557
Other (please specify) Client Housing
Assistance and basic needs

$9,000 $0
$0

Total Direct Costs $69,507 $67,930 $11,159

Total Indirect Costs $10,069 $8,260 $1,259

Indirect Cost Rate Per SFV

Calculated using
NICRA of 22.63% of
Salary and Wages

Calculated using
NICRA of 19.85% of
Salary and Wages

Calculated using
NICRA of 19.85%
of Salary and
Wanp<;

Subtotals $79,576 $76,190 $12,418
Total Amount $T68,184["

Contractor Initials:

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01-A01 Date:
5/19/2025
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ExhiM 0*9 Budget - Amendment 1

(Ukraine School Impact)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ascentria (Community Services. Inc.

Budget Request for: Targeted Refugee Services

Budget Period: July 1. 2025 to September 30. 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) % of Salary & Wages (see below)

Line Item
SFY 26

(July 1. 202S to June 30, 2026)

SFY 27

(July 1, 2026 • September 30,

2026)

1. Salary & Wages $68,295 $16,676

2. Frinoe Benefits $26,635 $6,504

3. Consultants $0 50

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

5.(a) SuDolies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0 SO

5.(e) Supplies - Office $1,081 $443

6. Travel $705 $188

7. Software $1,500 $0

8. (a) Other • Marlretino/Communications $0 $0

8. (b) Other • Education arrd Training $0 $0

8. (c) Other • Other (spedfv below) $0 $0

Other (please soedfv) Interpreters $312 $104

Other (please specify) Professional Liability Insurance $1,366 $334

Other (please specify) Telephone $936 $936

Other (please specify) Audit $1,024 $250

Other (please specify) Postaae $34 $8

Other (please specify) Eauipment rental $1,024 $250

Other (please specify) Occupancy $6,830 $1,525

Other (please specify) Oient Personal allovrance $5,500 Sl,673

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $115,242 $28,890

Total Indirect Costs $13,557 $3,310

Indirect Cost Rate Per SFY

Calculated using NICRA of

19.85% of Salary ar>d Wages
Calculated using NICRA of

19.85% of Salary arxf Wages

Subrora/s $128,799 $32,200

a rr - =:= ' ' * - tTOTAL j  . .= .,5

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01-A01

Contractor Initials:

Date:
5/19/2025
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan. Secretar>' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 13, 2011. I

further certily' that all fees and documents required by the Secreiar>' of Stale's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 652197

Certificate Number: 0006773536

BS.

O

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,-

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.vcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of September A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretan' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Tara F Rrnwnp , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Ascpntria Community Sprvirp-; Inr .
. (Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on July 5 , 20 24 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting".

(Date)

VOTED: That Angela Bovill. President and CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 4/25/25
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Tara E. Browne
Title: Corporate Clerk / Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMmO/YYYY)

1/27/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certJflcate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementjs).

PRODUCER

Brown t Brown Insurance Services, Inc.

980 Washington St., Suite 325

Dedhan MA 02026

nwUe*^' Walker
PHONE FAX
lur. Nn F*lV tuc. No):

AEK^SS- Janet.Walkergbbrown.coffl
INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC t

INSURER A: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Compar 18058

INSURED

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc.

11 Shattuck St.

Worcester MA 01605

INSURER B; Zurich American Insurance Company of 1} 27855

INSURER C:

INSURER D ;

INSURER E :

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 GL Auto 0MB WC Prof REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IN3R
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL

INnC
3UBR

YWD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/DD/YYYYI
POLICY EXP
fMM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

A

X COMMERCWL GEifERAL UABILITY

E  1 X 1 OCCUR
X PHPX2609012-020 10/1/2024 10/1/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE S  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAD
DAMAGE TO RENTED

S  100,000

MED EXP (Any ooe person) S  25,000

PERSONAL 8 AOV INJURY $  1,000,000

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERALAGGREGATE i  3,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 JE^ |_J LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG s  3,000,000

$

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

PHPK2609014-020 10/1/2024 10/1/202S

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT S  1,000,000

X ANY AUTO

HEDULEO
TOS
N-OWNEO

ITOS

BOOILY INJURY (Per person) 5

ALL OWNED
ALTTOS

SC
Al

BODILY INJURY (Per ecddeni) 5

HIRED AUTOS
NC
Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE
5

S

A

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHt7B883842-020 10/1/2024 10/1/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE 5  10.000.000

AGGREGATE 5  10.000.000

OED RETENTION i s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y 1N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER^XECUTIVE | 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(M»nd«tory In NH) ' '
If yes, describe uctder
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

HC 1469872 - 02 12/1/2024 12/1/2025

Y PER 1 OTH-
* STATUTE 1 ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 5  1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EAEMPLOYEE 5  1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 5  1,000.000

A Profeeeional Liability PHP1C2609012-020

Retroeetive Dete; 1/1/2004

10/1/2024 10/1/2025 Eech Occunsnce $1,000,000

Agoregais $3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS' VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddiUonal RcmarVt Schtdul*. miy b* ■tuctwd If mor* tptc* l( rt^uind)
Ascentria Coatmunity Services, Inc. is included as a named insured on the above policies as required by
written contract.
State of NH
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services is included as Additional Insured as respects
general liability where required by written contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH
New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services

'  129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Owen Caliaghan/MCROSB

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (30U01]

<£> 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Ascentria
Community Services
A member of Ascentria Care Alliance

Mission statement:

We are called to strengthen communities by empowering people to respond to life's challenges.

Vision statement:

We envision thriving communities where everyone has the opportunity to achieve their full

potential regardless of background or disadvantage. We become recognized leaders for

innovative community services. Together with our partners, we inspire people to help one

another reach beyond their current circumstances and realize new possibilities.

Empowering People. Strengthening Communities.
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CtlftonLar*enAll«n LLP

CLAconn*ct.cem

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organizations), which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated statements of activities,
changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, as of June 30, 2024 and 2023,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the
date the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

CLA (O'ftonLarsbnAJIen LLP) is an lndcp(>ndent network member d CLA Global. See (lAelobal.com/disclaimer.

(1) .
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial. Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Quincy, Massachusetts
April 7, 2025

(2)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3)

2024 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $  2.947.260 $  1,322,647
Accounts and Contracts Receivable 8,783,040 9,201,902
Allowance for Credit Losses (893,269) (676,006)
Prepaid Expenses 85,256 123,912
Vehicle Inventory 199,592 183,815

Total Current Assets 11,121.879 10.156,270

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party 2,059.236 2,128.958

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land 45,314 45,314
Building 85,798 85,798
Building Improvements 1,259.526. 1,094,418
Leasehold Improvements 357.167 353,467
Furniture and Equipment 246.311 246,311
Vehicles 640.385 546,096
Computer Equipment and Software 147,017 147,017

Total 2,781,518 2,518,421
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 1,918,364 1,786,772

Total Property and Equipment 863,154 731,649

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES - 4,844,990

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits 86,035 85,885

Right-of-Use Assets - Operating 766,736 357,966
Right-of-Use Assets - Finance 277.187 101,735

Total Other Assets 1.129.958- 545.586

Total Assets $ 15,174.227 $ 18.407.453
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2024 2023

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Revenue

Due to State of Maine

Lease Liabilities • Operating, Current Portion
Lease Liabilities - Finance, Current Portion

Total Current Liabilities

12,150

981,131

1,827,676

1,759,893

115,383

340,697

73,019

11,468

1,568,879

1,361,078

2,297,411

319,795

43,363
5,109,949 5,601,994

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net of Current Maturities

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

345,459

365,510

357,609

340,524

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Lease Liabilities - Operating, Net of Current Maturities
Lease Liabilities - Finance, Net of Current Maturities

Total Liabilities

420,625

207,974

6,449,517

24,808

59,494

6,384,429

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions

Wth Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

6,574,649

2,150,061

8,724,710

9,803,241

2,219,783

12,023,024

$  15.174.227 $ 18.407.453

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(4)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

NET ASSET REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION

Grant and Contract Revenue $ 42,877,596 $  37,373,688
Program Service Revenue 5,440.359 5,389,567
Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue 330,049 2,190,415
Donated Vehicles 2,424,653 2,198,508
In-Kind Donations 50,863 47,006
Other Income 327,224 268,665
Net Assets Released from Restrictions Used for Operations 334,322 894,367

Total Revenues 51,785.066 48,362,216

EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages 22,717,228 22,537,703
Employee Benefits 4,988,172 4,912,418
Occupancy Costs 1,648,637 1,768,191
Operating Supplies and Expenses 1,428,715 415,412
Professional Fees 2,385,396 3,201,591
Garage Expenses 614,239 560,375
Donated Vehicle Expenses 697,200 865,540
Client Support Expenses 3.727,482 3,309,534
Translation Expenses 535,709 685,530
Repairs and Maintenance 541,365 474,127
Travel Expenses 857,254 905,440
Educational Events and Meetings 65,841 56,259
Management Fees 7,506,976 4,456,634
Taxes 246,445 433,488
Recruitment Advertising 3,232 5,485
Advertising 256,477 236,657
Licenses and Fees 9,156 5,513
Insurance 304,588 299,695
Interest 29,283 27,107
Credit Losses 537,207 294,462
Depreciation and Amortization 211.527 172,795

Total Expenses 49.312.129 45,623,956

OPERATING GAIN 2,472,937 2,738,260

NONOPERATING ACTIVITY

Equity Transfer

Total Nonoperating Activity

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR

RESTRICTIONS

(5.701.529)

(5.701,529)

$  (3.228.592) $ 2.738.260

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(5)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Without Donor

Restriction

With Donor

Restriction Total

BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2022 $  7,064,981 $  2,767.576 $  9,832,557

Increase In Net Assets without Donor Restrictions 2,738.260 - 2.738,260

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets

of Related Party . 346,574 346,574

Release from Restrictions (894,367) (894,367)

Change in Net Assets 2,738.260 (547.793) 2,190,467

BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2023 9.803,241 2,219,783 12,023,024

Increase in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions (3,228,592) - (3,228,592)

Change in Benencial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party - 264,600 264,600

Release from Restrictions (334,322) (334,322)

Change in Net Assets . (3,228,592) (69,722) (3,298,314)

BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2024 $  6.574.649 $  2.150.061 $  8.724.710

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

m
3

i
o

o

Program Services Supporting Services

Disatxlity Child Total

Transportation and and Farruly IrvHome Services For Total Management Support Total

Services Mental Heatth Proorams Services New Americans Program ar>d General Fundraising Services Expenses

Salaries and Wages S 1,038,402 $  3,148,447 S  3,708,071 S 6,792,528 S  7,945.738 $ 22,633,186 S  84,042 $ S 84,042 S 22,717,228

Employee Benefits 278,888 780,200 876.757 1,539,449 1,447,008 4,922,302 65,870 - 65,870 4,988,172

Ocx:upancy Costs 115,313 264,579 515,836 38,375 596,232 1,530,335 118,302 - 118,302 1,648,637

Opefatir>g Supplies and Expenses 25,525 56,540 113,235 48,098 1,048,680 1,292,078 136,637 - 136,637 1,428,715

Professional Fees 175,361 25,009 1,021,939 2.065 1,012,421 2,236,795 148,601 - 148,601 2,385,396

Garage artd Vehicle Expenses 613.905 54 210
-

70 614,239 - - - 614,239

Donated Vehicle Expenses 697.200 • - - - 697,200 - - - 697,200

Client Support Expenses 1,607 53,124 198,580 - 3.474,099 3,727,410 72 - 72 3,727,482

Translation Expenses • - 1,062 - 534,647 535,709 - - - 535,709

Repairs and Maintenance 33.246 39,940 116,655 96.510 245,266 531,617 9,748 - 9,748 541,365

T ravel Expenses 223.774 101,781 166,465 34.686 322,908 851,634 5,620 - 5,620 857,254

Educational Events and Meetings 5.660 887 19,349 6.324 32,490 64,710 1,131 - 1,131 65,841

Management Fees - • • - - - 7,506,976 - 7,506,976 7,506,976

Taxes - 246,213 232 - - 246,445 - - - 246,445

Recnjitment Advertising 2,379 - - - 853 3,232 - - - 3,232

Advertising 191,075 - 606 752 1,234 193,667 62,810 . 62,810 256,477

Licenses and Fees 14 1,056 4,456 250 2,186 7,962 1,194 - 1,194 9,156

ln$urar>ce 7,064 48,328 65,856 54,294 126,172 301,714 2,874 . 2,874 304,588

Interest - - - . . 29,283 - 29,283 29,283

Credit Losses . 1,978 .2,986 3,622 528,532 537,118 89 . 89 537,207

Total Before Depreciation

and Amortization 3,409,413 4,768,136 6,814,315 8,616,953 17,318,536 , 40,927,353 8,173,249
-

8,173,249 49,100,602

Depredation and Amortization 79,534 14.851 101,572 ' 6,670 8,900 211,527 211,527

Total Functional Expenses 3.488.947 S  4.782.987 S  6.915.887 8.623.623 $  17,327.436 41,138.880 S  8.173.249 * 8.173,249 49.312.129

0}

t

h
O)

V
CO

m

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

m
3

i
o

■g
o

Progfam Services Supporting Services
Disability Child Total

Transportation and and Family IrvHome Services For Total Management Support Total
Services Mental Health Proarams Services New Americans Proaram and Gertetal Fundraisinp Services Expenses '

Salaries and Wages S  1.104.942 $  5,204.030 S  3,298.401 $  6.751.796 S  6.093,391 $  22,452,560 S  85,143 $ $  85.143 $ 22.537.703
Employee Benefits 265,040 1,368,696 717,196 1.392.899 1.156,053 4,899,884 12,534 . 12.534 4.912.418
Occijparley Costs 116.530 416.402 485.295 38.862 507,456 1,564,545 203,646 . 203.646 1.768.191
Operating Supplies and Expenses 16.365 110.504 79,519 41.003 156,588 403,979 11.433 . 11.433 415.412
Professional Fees 60.392 332.487 1,211,264 50.000 1.444,532 3,098.695 102.896 - 102.896 3.201.591
Garage and Vehicle Expenses 558.101 1.951 323 - - 560,375 . - . 560.375
Donated Vehicle Expenses 665.540 - - - 665,540 . - . 865.540
Client Support Expenses 543 42.504 187,302 6 3.079,154 3,309.509 25 . 25 3.309.534
Translation Expenses • 9.007 1,108 ' 675,415 685.530 . - . 665.530
Repairs and Maintenance 32.908 20.198 107,033 77.777 225,354 463.270 10.857 . 10.857 474.127
Travel Expenses 291.730 173.849 149,072 27.329 261,108 903.088 2.352 - 2.352 905.440
Educatiortal Events artd Meetings 1.321 1.187 26,654 9.226 13,332 51.920 4.339 - 4.339 56.259
Martagement Fees • - - - - . 4,456.634 - 4.456.634 4.456.634
Taxes - 424.835 397 8.256 - 433,488 . -

. 433,488
Recruitment Advertising 1.330 - 152 763 3,040 5.285 200 . 200 5,485
Advertisir^

- • • - - - 236.657 . 236.657 236,657
Licenses and Fees 15 140 2,131 250 1,829 4.365 1,148 - 1.148 5,513
Insurance 8.382 85.675 57,273 54.672 90.362 296.364 3,331 - 3,331 299,695
Interest - - - - • - 27,107 - 27,107 27,107
Credit Losses 78.909 6.874 8,177 200.502 294.462 . -

. 294,462
Total Before Depreciation

and Amortization 3.402.048 8.198.339 6,331,517 8.452.839 13,908.116 40.292.859 5.158,302
-

5.158,302 45,451.161

Depreciation and Amortization 56.154 18.439 83,492 6.868 7.842 172.795 _ . 172.795

Total Functional Expenses S  3.458.202 S  8.216.778 S  6.415.009 S  8.459.707 S  13.915.958 3  40.465.654 S  5.158.302 S 6  5.158.302 45.623.956

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements..
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Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of Financing Right of Use Assets
Adjustment of ROU Assets - Operating. Net of Amortization
Provision for Credit Losses

Equity Transfer
Change in Beneficia! Interest in Net Assets of Related Party
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:

Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses
Deposits

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party
Vehicle Inventory

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

Deferred Revenue

Due to State of Maine

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Property and Equipment
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on Finance Lease Liability
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt
Payments on Long-Term Debt
Advanced from Related Parties, Net

Equity Transfers
Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid for Interest

$  (3,298,314) $ 2,190,467

129,225

82,302

7,949.
537,207

5,701,529

(264,600)

98,918

38,656

(150)

334,322

(15.777)

(587,748)

466,598

(537,518)

115,383

2,807,982

(263,097)

(263,097)

(77,251)

(11,468)
4,869,976

124,192

48,603

(13,365)
294,462

(346,574)

(1,174,945)

(46,597)

3,000

894,908

(73,644)

1,221,532

(244,327)

(1,109,270)
(400,035)

1,368,407

(97,986)

(97,986)

(47,481)

(386,815)

(1,539,080)

(920,272) (1,973,376)

1,624,613 (702,955)

1,322,647 2,025,602

$  2.947.260 $ 1.322.647

$  29.283 27.107

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS) and Ascentria Community Care, Inc. (ACC)
(collectively, the Organizations) are corporations exempt from tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) as a public charity. The Organizations provide community
service programs to children, families, refugees, and developmentally disabled adults
throughout New England. ACS is the sole corporate member of ACC. Ascentria Care
Alliance, Inc. (Ascentria) Is a sole corporate member of ACS and also.serves as the
management agent.

The Organizations provide the following programs;

Transportation Sen/ices - provides low-income individuals with transportation, such as
ownership of donated vehicles or access to shared rides, providing these individuals with
access to jobs and other economic opportunities; thus helping them to achieve economic
independence.

Disability and Mental Health - Disability and Mental Health comprise of a wide variety of
programs that enable persons who are economically disadvantaged, have disabilities,
chronic illness, mental illness, deafness and other challenges to become and remain
successful contributors to the communities in which they live and work. Support services
include: Access to medical resources, personal case management customized for
individual needs, 24/7 supervision and support in a residential setting for individuals
diagnosed with chronic and persistent mental illness, and services offered to individuals
diagnosed with rnental illness in the comfort and familiarity of their homes.

Child and Family Programs - through a variety of programs, the Organizations provide
services related to therapeutic foster care, unaccompanied refugee minors support,
housing for teen mothers and their children, housing for homeless, small group homes
serving teenagers, various support services and living accommodations for
developmentally, physically and mentally disabled adults and other various social
support programs.

In-Home Services - In-Home Care is a licensed Home Health Care agency that offers
comprehensive, nonmedical personal care services to homebound individuals or those
with a disability. In-Home Care caregivers assist in light housekeeping, transportation to
appointments, recreational activities, bathing and personal care, meals, and exercise.
Additional nonmedical services supervised by a registered nurse.

Services for New Americans - through this program, the Organizations seek to provide
resettlement, employment, case management, medical case management, English as a
second language classes, and other support services to refugees, asylees, and
Immigrants.

Adoption - through this program, the Organizations provide services related to domestic
and international adoptions.

(10)



Docusign Envelope ID; 375B2A33^7AF-4863-9E72-5E6308E87C5E

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial
position, results of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows, and functional expenses
of the Organizations. Material intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated In consolidation.

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organizations have been prepared on the
accrual method of accounting. Accordingly, assets are recorded when the Organizations
obtain the rights of ownership or is entitled to claims for receipt and liabilities are recorded
when the obligation is incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations consider all short-term debt securities purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts and Contracts Receivable

Accounts and contracts receivable are recorded net of an allowance of expected losses.
The allowance is estimated from historical performance and projections of trends. Credit is
extended to customers and collateral is not required. When the accounts become past due,
historically, the Organizations have not charged interest to these accounts.

Changes in the allowance for credit losses for the years ended June 30 were as follows:

2024 2023

Balance • Beginning of Year
Provision for Credit Losses

Amounts Written Off

Balance - End of Year

$ 676,006 $ 412,456

449,685 289,787

(232,422) (26,237)

893.269 $ 676.006

Inventory

Vehicles identified for the purpose of being delivered to program participants are valued
based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the reporting period which
approximates the lower of cost or net realized value.

Program vehicles expected to be sold at retail are recorded based on trade-in value.

Vehicles expected to be sold at wholesale are valued using the average sales proceeds for
all vehicles sold during the reporting period.

Vehicles are recorded as donated vehicles or donated vehicles - wholesale when the
vehicle is received.
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Oocusign Envelope ID; 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Assets with an estimated useful life of more
than one year and a historical cost in excess of $2,500 are capitalized. The Organizations
capitalize acquisitions and improvements, while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
that do not extend the useful lives of the assets are charged to operations. Donated property
and equipment are recorded at its fair market value at date of donation. Gifts of long-lived
assets are reported as net assets without donor restriction support unless donor stipulations
specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulation
about how long those assets must be maintained, expiration of donor restrictions are
reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed into service.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the
assets.

Related Party Loans Receivable

The Organizations' loan portfolio is comprised on unsecured related party loans receivable
that are noninterest-bearing and have no fixed repayment terms, as detailed in Note 3, and
is considered a single portfolio class. Related party loans receivable are recorded net of an
allowance for expected loan losses (allowance). The Organizations establish an allowance
as an estimate of inherent risk in the Organizations' loan portfolio. Although management
believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its estimates.

The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses that is charged to expense.
Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when the Organizations determine the
loan balance to be uncollectible. Proceeds received on previously charged off amounts are
recorded as recovery in the year of receipt. During the year ended June 30, 2024, all related
party loans receivable were forgiven and recognized as an equity transfer in the statement
of activities.

The Organizations review the adequacy of the allowance, including consideration of the
relevant risks in the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors
periodically. The Organizations internally monitor related party borrowers to assess the risk
of nonperformance. The Organizations determine that changes are warranted based on
those reviews, the allowance is adjusted.

All of the Organization's Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Parties are measured at
Level 3, as outlined in Note 11.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Net Assets

Net assets of the Organizations are classified and reported as follows;

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature when the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Net assets with donor
restrictions consist of $2,059,236 and $2,128,958 for beneficial interest in net assets of

related party and $90,825 and $90,825 other program restrictions for the years ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. There were no net assets invested in perpetuity
as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Contract and Grant Revenue

The Organizations derive revenues through cost-reimbursable and unit rate federal and
state contracts and grants, which are conditional grants based on certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Accordingly, the
Organizations are subject to the regulations and reporting requirements of the applicable
governmental and grantor agencies. Amounts received are recognized as earned and are
reported as revenue when the Organizations have incurred expenditures in compliance with
specific contract or grant provisions. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there was $15,231,614
and $10,926,595, respectively, of conditional contributions that have yet to be recognized in
the consolidated financial statements.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized in the consolidated financial statements if the services
enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are jsrovided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided
by donation.

Donated Vehicle Revenue

Donated vehicle revenue includes vehicles that will be repaired and delivered to program
participants. They are valued based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the
reporting period. Additionally, donated vehicle revenue includes donated vehicles that do not
meet the needs of program participants.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5e

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Donated Vehicle Revenue (Continued)

These vehicles are sold at auction and valued based on average proceeds for the reporting
period. Vehicle auction revenue is recognized at a point in time when the item is sold. As of
June 30, 2024 and 2023, there was $1,711,675 and $1,259,665, respectively, included in
donated vehicles on the consolidated statement of activities.

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

The Organizations received payments from the state of Maine, which is administered by the
Office of Maine Care Services. The Organization recognized revenue in the amount of $-0-
and $263,849 during the fiscal year-end 2024 and 2023, respectively. The revenues
recognized are included in the Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated
statements of activities. Amounts received but not yet recognized are included in deferred
revenue on the statement of financial position. The payments have terms and conditions
that the Organizations are required to follow, and these funds are subject to reporting
requirements and audit. The payments are subject to potential recoupment by the
Department if it is determined that the funds were not spent in accordance with the terms
and conditions. Management believes the amounts have been recognized appropriately as
of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

The Organizations received payments from the state of New Hampshire, which is
administered by the Division of Medicaid Services. The Organization recognized revenue in
the amount of $233,097 and $1,566,836 during the fiscal year-end 2024 and 2023,
respectively. The revenues recognized are included in the Federal and State Relief Grant
Revenue on the consolidated statements of activities. Amounts received but not yet
recognized are included in deferred revenue on the statement of financial position. The
payments have terms and conditions that the Organizations are required to follow, and
these funds are subject to reporting requirements and audit. The payments are subject to
potential recoupment by the Department if it is determined that the funds were not spent in
accordance with the terms and conditions. Management believes the amounts have been
recognized appropriately as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Additionally, the Organizations recognized payments from the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Executive Office of Health and Human Services (EOHHS) of $106,952 and
$359,730, respectively, as revenues as of June 30, 2024 and 2023. The revenues
recognized are included in Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated
statement of activities.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Program Service Revenue

To determine revenue recognition for the arrangements that the Organizations considers
within the scope of Topic 606, the Organizations performs the following five steps:
(1) identify the contract(s) with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligation(s) in the
contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligation(s) in the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when the
Organizations satisfy a performance obligation. Program service revenue is from private pay
services, translation services, and interpretation services. Program service revenue is
recognized as customer services are provided over time. Payments received in advance of
services are reported as deferred revenue.

The Organization's accounts receivables related to program service revenue under Topic
606 that are included in the accounts and contracts receivable on the statement of financial

position were as follows:

2024 2023

Beginning Balance, Accounts Receivables $ 793,200 $ 1,384,711
Ending Balance, Accounts Receivables 634,507 793,200

There were no contract liabilities related to exchange transactions as of June 30, 2024 and
2023.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs'are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs paid for by the Organizations
amounted to $205,614 and $188,312 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. Contributions of advertising are recorded at the estimated fair value on the
date of the contribution. The Organizations received contributions of advertising estimated to
have a value of $50,863 and $47,006 for the years ended June 30. 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted In the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ, from those estimates.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the various programs and services are summarized on a functional
basis. Costs are generally identified as to program site and are then allocated between
programs and supporting services that benefited based on total direct expenses. Salaries
and benefits are allocated on the basis of time and effort. The expenses that are allocated
are the portions of depreciation and interest expense that are not directly attributable to
specific programs or services. These expenses are allocated on a square footage basis.

Income Taxes

The Organizations are nonprofit corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC
and are exempt from federal and state income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501(a) of the IRC.

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with professional standards, assets and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value are required to be categorized into a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of
the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3). If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within
different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Assets and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value by the Organizations are categorized as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that an entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these
instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically
based on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.
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Oocusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no

changes in valuation methodology used at June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Leases

The Organizations determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are
included in right-of-use (ROU) assets - operating and lease liability - operating in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Finance leases are included in right-of-use
(ROU) asset financing and lease liability - financing on our consolidated statement of
hnancial position.

ROU assets represent the Organizations' right to use an underlying asset for the lease term,
and lease liabilities represent the Organizations' obligation to make lease payments arising
from the lease. ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on
the present value of lease payments over the lease term using an appropriate risk-free
discount rate.

The individual lease contracts do not provide Information about the discount rate implicit in

the lease. Therefore, the Organizations have elected to use a risk-free discount rate
(applicable U.S. Department of Treasury risk-free treasury rate) determined using a period
comparable with that of the lease term for computing the present value of lease liabilities.
Lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably
certain that the Organizations will exercise that option.

Lease costs for operating lease payments are recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The Organizations have elected not to separate nonlease components from
lease components and instead accounts for each separate lease component and the
nonlease component as a single lease component. The Organizations recognize payments
for short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less as expense as incurred.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

The Organizations have adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-13,
Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments, as amended, which modifies the measurement of unexpected credit

losses. The Organizations adopted this new guidance utilizing the modified retrospective
transition method. The adoption of this Standard did not have a material impact on the
Organization's financial statements but did change how the allowance for credit losses is
determined.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Reclassiflcatlons

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The
reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organizations have evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through April 7, 2025, the
date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations record beneficial interest in assets that are held by Ascentria in the
amount of $2,059,236 and $2,128,958 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. For the
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Organizations had a loan payable to the fund
totaling $365,510 and $340,524 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
Contributed assets are transferred to Ascentria by either the donor or the Organizations with
the approval of Ascentria. The donors did not grant variance power to Ascentria.

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizations have entered into the following transactions with related parties;

•  The Organizations are charged annually by Ascentria for accounting, management
services, and overhead in monthly installments. Charges to operations for these
services totaled approximately $7,151,318 and $4,410,163 for the years ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. These expenses have been included on the
consolidated statements of activities under the caption Management Fees. In
addition, Ascentria is the central contracting entity for insurance coverage, and
Insurance costs are then billed monthly to the Organizations.

•  The Organizations have various office space rentals to and from related parties and
vehicle rentals from related parties. Rental revenue from related parties amounted to
$128,694 and $140,012 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
Office space and vehicle related party rents amounted to $410,046 and $359,957 for
the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

(18)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

•  Related party loans that bear no interest and have no fixed repayment terms, are
as follows;

2024 2023

Due from Related Parties;

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc.

Total

Due to Related Parties:

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc.

Total

$ $ 4,844,990

? - ? 4,844.990

2024 2023

$ 365,510 $ 340,524

365.510 ? 340,524

NOTE 4 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Organizations participate in a defined contribution plan (the Plan) qualifying under IRC
Section 403(b) maintained by Ascentria. The Plan permits discretionary employer
contributions based on a specified percentage of annual copipensation and employee
contributions. The Organizations had no pension costs charged to operations or
contributions to the plan during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

NOTE 5 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organizations to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations maintain cash and cash equivalent balances in several federally insured
financial institutions in the same geographic area as well as a money market fund. During
the year, there may be times when uninsured cash is significantly higher and exceeds
federally insured limits.

Major Customers

The Organizations receive significant funding from various federal and state agencies. The
states, through which funding was received, include Massachusetts, New Hampshire, and
Maine. Approximately 82% and 88% of the Organizations' revenue was received from state
and federal agencies directly or via pass through for the years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

(19)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 5 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Beneficial Interest In Net Assets of Related Party

The Organization's unsecured gifts, held by a related party, amounted to $2,059,236 and
$2,128,958 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Accounts and Contracts Receivable

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to its customers. Accounts and contracts
receivable amounted to $7,732,046 and $8,525,896 at June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

NOTE 6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The useful lives of property and equipment for purposes of computing depreciation are:

Building, Building Improvements,
and Leasehold Improvements

Equipment, Furniture, and Vehicles
Computer Equipment and Software

5 to 40 Years

3 to 10 Years

3 Years

Depreciation expense charged to operations was $131,592 and $124,191 for the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE 7 MAINE MEDICAID LIABILITY

ACS provides services for Medicaid eligible individuals under terms of costs-based contracts
with the state of Maine. Accordingly, ACS provides for the estimated amount of settlements
with Medicaid as a liability. Final reimbursement Is not determined until the state of Maine
accepts the cost report. The amount of the estimated liability was approximately $115,383
and $-0- for the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Adjustments to these
estimates are reflected on the consolidated statement of activities under the caption Grant
and Contract Revenue to the extent not previously recorded in the year the final settlement
information becomes available to management.

(20)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 8 LONG-TERM DEBT

The Organizations are liable on long-term debt at June 30 as follows:

Description 2024 2023

Term note payable to Cambridge Trust Company face
amount $380,000, due June 30, 2032, secured by
business assets, payable in monthly payments of
principal plus interest through maturity, commencing

July 29, 2022. Interest rate is fixed at 5.27% annually. $  357,609. $  369,077

Total Long-Term Debt 357,609 369,077

Less: Current Maturities (12,150) (11,468)

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities $  345.459 $  357.609

The agreement with Cambridge Trust Company includes a covenant to maintain a debt
service coverage ratio, as defined in the agreement, of at least 1.10. The Organization
believes that it has met the required ratio at June 30, 2024.

Following are current maturities for the next five years:

Year Ending June 30. Amount

2025 $ 12,150

2026 12,815

2027 13,517

2028 14,120

2029 15,035

Thereafter 289,972
Total $ 357.609

Interest charged to operations for the above long-term debt amounted to $20,878 and
$24,300 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

(21)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 9 LEASES

The Organizations lease equipment under finance leases and office facilities under
operating leases. The leases are for various terms under long-term, noncancelable lease
agreements and expire at various dates through 2029.

The following table provides quantitative information concerning the Organizations' leases:

2024 2023

Lease Cost:

Amortization of Right-of-Use Assets $ 82,302 $ 48,603

Interest on Lease Liabilities 8,799 2,807

Operating Lease Cost 640,213 694,384

Total Lease Cost $ 731.314 $ 745.794

Other Information:

Cash Paid for Amounts included in the

Measurement of Lease Liabilities;

Operating Cash Flows from Finance Leases $ 88,285 . $ 50.288

Operating Cash Flows from Operating Leases $ 632.264 $ 707,747

Right-of-Use Assets Obtained in Exchange for New
Finance Lease Liabilities $ 150,338 $ 150,338

Right-of-Use Assets Obtained in Exchange for New
Operating Lease Liabilities $ 1,035,930 . $ 1,035,930

Weighted-Average Remaining Lease Term -
Finance Leases 3.70 Years 2.48 Years

Weighted-Average Remaining Lease Term -
Operating Leases 3.28 Years .77 Years

Weighted-Average Discount Rate - Finance Leases 3.95% 2.57%

Weighted-Average Discount Rate - Operating Leases 2.72% 2.61%

The Organizations classify total undiscounted lease payments that are due in the next 12

months as current. A maturity analysis of annual undiscounted cash flow for lease liabilities
as of June 30, 2024 Is as follows:

Year Endino June 30. Operating Finance Totals

2025 $ 355,844 $  76,789 $ 432,633

2026 170,449 88,554 259,003

2027 105,332 63,197 168,529

2028 102,259 53,864 156,123

Thereafter 60,660 22,224 -

Undiscounted Cash Flows 794,544 304,628 1,016,288

Less: Imputed Interest (33,222} (23,635) (56,857)

Total Present Value $ 761,322 $  280,993 959.431

(22)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 10 CONTINGENCIES

A significant portion of the Organizations' net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from services reimbursable under Medicaid programs. There are numerous health care
reform proposals being considered on federal and state levels. The Organizations cannot
predict at this time whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted and
implemented, what effect such proposals would have on the Organizations.

A significant portion of the Organizations' revenues are derived from services reimbursable
under Medicaid programs. The base year costs utilized in calculating the Medicaid rates are
subject to audit which could result in a retroactive rate adjustment for all years in which that
cost base was used In calculating the rates. It is not possible at this time to determine
whether the Organizations will be audited or if a retroactive rate adjustment would result.

Effective June 2022, the Organizations and subsidiaries entered into a line of credit
agreement and a term note payable with a financial institute and paid off the previous line of
credit balance.

The term note payable has a balance of $1,295,000 and resides on the books of a related
party as of June 30, 2024. All borrowers are jointly and severally liable for payment of the
debt which is due June 30, 2027. The note is secured by certain assets, payable in monthly
payments of principal plus interest through maturity, commencing on July 29. 2022. Interest
rate is fixed at 5.06% annually. The line of credit has a limit of $1,900,000 with a variable
rate of interest of the Wall Street Journal published U.S. Prime Rate, with a floor of 3.25%.
The rate was 8.50% at June 30, 2024. The line is collateralized by various business assets.
There was no balance on the line of credit at June 30, 2024. The agreements include a
covenant to maintain a debt service coverage ratio, as defined in the agreement, of at least
1.10. The Organization believes that it has met the required ratio at June 30, 2024.

The Organizations are subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary
course of business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of these matters
is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Organization's financial position,
results of operations or liquidity.

NOTE 11 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Organizations use fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain
assets and liabilities to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on how
the Organizations measure fair value refer to Note 1 - Organization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 11 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

The following tables present the Organizations' fair value hierarchy for those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30;

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

2024

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 2,059.236 $ $ $ 2,059,236

$ 2.059.236 -  $ - $ 2.059.236

2023

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3,

$ 2,128,958 $■ $ $ 2,128,958
$ 2.128.958 -  ? - $ 2.128.958

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Organizations'
Level 3 financial assets for the years ended June 30:

2024 2023

Contributions
Payments

264,600
(334,322)

346,574
(894,908)

Since these funds are held by a third party that pools the Organizations' interest with other
related organization's assets, management has determined that the inputs are unobservable
and therefore, valued using a Level 3 methodology. The principal valuation technique is the
fair value of the underlying investments and the unobservable input is the term of
distributions.

NOTE 12 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Organizations regularly monitors liquidity required to meet Its operating needs and other
commitments. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures
over a 12-month period, the Organizations consider all expenditures related to its ongoing
program activities as well as the services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 12 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY (CONTINUED)

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12
months, the Organizations operate a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. The
Organizations consider the following to be available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures;

2024 2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net

Total Financial Assets

Donor-Imposed Restrictions
Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year

$ 2,947,260 $  1,322,647

8,783,040 9,201,902

11,730,300 10,524,549

(90,825) (90,825)

11.639.475 $  10.433.724

(25)
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1872-2022

Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

Board of Directors 2023

Last Name First Name T}tle(s) Corporate Officers

(current only)

Board & Cmte Officers

(current only)

Goodman Ross Director Board Chair

Cowlagi , Ashish Director Board Secretary

Cowlagi Ashlsh Director Board Vice Chair

Bartholomew Alexander Director Finance Co-Chair & Board Fin Sec'y

Maloney Barry Director

Schmidt Peter Director

Campbell Marybeth Director

Robertson Keith Director

Gibbs Brain Director

Jackson Debora Director

Mayo William Director

Bovill Angela CEO

Director

President

Hanscom Kristine Chief Fin Officer Executive Vice

President

O'Neil Gary Chief Social

Innovation Officer

Executive Vice

President

Sousa Nicholas EA Community

Svcs & Operations

Assistant Clerk /

Secretary

Browne Tara Manager of Exec.

Assistants

Corporate Clerk/

Secretary

Russo Nicholas Senior Director of

Treasury

Treasurer

11 Shattuck Street. Worcester, MA 01605
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Kathy Kitchell

Education and Certifications

Leon. Nicaragua
October 2015

Manchester, NH

In progress
Manchester, NH

lune 2013

TEFL/TESOL Certification
international TEFL Academy
180 credit hours

ESOL Certification

Granite State College
Bachelor of Arts, Individualized Studies English Language Arts
Granite S^te College
Magna Cum Laude

Experience
Education Liaison, Ascentria Care Alliance, Concord, NH, August 13, 2018 - present

Teaching Assistant, Wilson Elementary School, First-Fifth Grade, Manchester, NH, September
2007 to June 2018 . i
Teaching Assistant, Beach Street E
July 2017-August 2017

ementary School, EL summer program, Manchester, NH,

Tutor, YMCA, Manchester, NH, November 2016-present (after school)

Ready-for-Success Program, Wilson Elementary, Pre-K, Manchester, NH, summers of 2007-
2012 & 2014 j

Tutor, 21" Century Program, Wilson Elementary, Manchester, NH 2007-2015 (after school)
I  ̂
I  j

Volunteer experience, Tanzania, Africa, summer 2013
Volunteer experience, Barriletes Orphanage, Leon, Nicaragua, November 2015

Additional Skills

LLI Training - Language Level Instruction
CPI Training - Crisis Prevention Intervention
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MINHUINIE

QUALIFICATIONS SUMMARY

• Native Chinese speaker born in Beijing. Chirio. living there until June 2000; U.S. Citizen since September
2008 I

■  TOEFL 637 (Aug. 2000); GMAT 700 (Nov. 2000); English Proficiency Test 91 % (Oct. 2022)
■ Majored BA in English Utero'ture ond Education and taught English at college level for five yeorsl 1993 to

1998) 1
• Worked as Office Manoger ond Interpreter for Lockheed Martin Beijing Office for two years (1998 to

2000); Personal Assistant. Translator and Interpreter for LL Global for a total of 7 yeors. Proficient with
Microsoft Word. Excel. PowerPoint. Outtook. |ond Adobe Acrobat

• Dialect knov^edge: Native Mandarin speaker understanding Chinese Shanghai dialect
• Additional experience, qualifications, and a|ccomplishmenl:

>  LOMA FLMI (English) designation2 (20It)
>  InterpretefforlnsurcnceTroiningSesslonforChina Life Insuronce Compony ollLGlobal (2017)
>  Interpreter for Mr. ICe.Zhong. CEO of Chjna Toiping insurance Holdings Ltd. at 2017 LL Global Boord-

Meeting in Washington. D.C. j
>  Interpreter for rehab progroms at New England Center (or Heoring Rehabilitation. LLC (Summer of

2018)
>  TABE .11 & 12 Certificotion Port I and Part II
> Teaching English Now! Foundqtional Pri»|»ciples (on online non-credit course authorized by Arizona

Slate University) !
> •' Published translation books: |

o A Gome for Swallows - To die, fo leave, fa return by Zeina Abirached (English->Chinese)
0  .Don't Go without Me by Rosemary Valero-O'Connel) (Eng!ish->Chinese) >

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Jan. 2023 - Present

Teacher

Ascentrlo Care Alliance

ESDI (English for Speakers of Other Languages)
Assistant Lead ESOl team
•  Responsible for providing effective teadiership to volunteers and inlerns as needed.
•  Responsible for training programs to ensure volunteers and interns ore odequotely trained in all

required areas. | "
•  Develop volunleers and inlerns including supervising, cooching and mentoring.
•  Interview, hire, orient, supervlse.and evaluate volunteers ond interns.
•  Perform a variety ot complicated tasks that require decision-making, judgment and confidentiality.

Partner Relations

Network and develop relalionships with potential employers/providers.
•  Work closely with employment industry leaders to understand trends, needs, and opportunities and

work collaboraliyely with partners to develop programming thot effectively meets those needs.
•  Creole and support connections wifh government agencies, employment/provider associotions,

and community members who may provide opportunities lor students to develop competencies,
and integrate teaming and doily living responsibilities.

•  Promote the program through community networking and providing presentations; develop and
maintain relationships with key stakeholders and partners.

Student Services I
•  Develop and deliver lesson plans using o wide range of lechniques and strategies that engage

students and that address oil aspects of longuoge including reading, writing, speaking, and
■ listening.

•  Conduct assessments to accurately place students in oppropriole level classes.
•  Design and odminister formal ond inforrnol ossessments to evaluote students' progress.
•  Dilferentiote lessons to meet the needs of the group and individual students simultaneously.
•  Develop and deliver vocotionol English lesson plons toilored to students' skill levels and employers'

needs, including job-reloted English as aj second language.
•  Develop dqily/weekly lesson plans aligned with Ascenlria's ESOL, basic education, and workforce

preporolion curriculum goals.
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•  Plon. organize, end provide insfruclion lor ESOL adult leorners thot is consistent and coordinated
with the organization's ESOL curriculumj and that helps students reach students leorning torgets
and increases their daily life skills and abilities.

:  • Provide ond assess out of the cidssroom (distonce learning) assignments including regular
homewof1<. " |

•  Educate and encouroge students on accessing English learning resources outside of class time.
•  Stay up to date on best practices in ESOL educotion and apply new ideas in the classroom

including the use of technology. j .
^ '"Mdiniainwoh(ing'klidvv1eage'7)f1tTe"W6rkl6rceIhhovdlibhdha"Op^r1unit7*A~ct'(WlOX)';

•  Provide a supportive and positive learning environment with high expectations for students.
•  Assist with securing and maintaining training space as needed, and Identify and maintain needed

resources. ^ |
•  Collaborate closely with fellow leacher(s) and other staff members.
•  Support resettlement team as needed to ensure core services are provided to refugees.
•  Treat refugee clients with respect, dignity and respect for privacy at all limes.

Record Keeping and Reporting |
•  Assist with reporting to funders on individual student progress as well as overall program outcomes.
• Maintain complete ond accurate records of eoch student's progress and attendance.
•  Ensure quolity of casefiles or records associated with students ond services on an ongoing basis.
•  Complete, submit and maintain documentation in accordance vvith contractual stondards and in

a timely manner. •} . • .
■  • Mointoin client database, client financial records and case files, including case notes, contacts

and documents held for safekeeping o»j\ behalf of clients.
•  Complete and file progress and other administrotive reports according to program procedures ond

deadline. |
•  Represent team during monitoring by funders. •
•  Perform other duties OS assigned to help meet the goals of the program or the agency.

IGlobol Aug. 2015-Nov. 2016

ewards & Recognition Specialist, Centre lor Professtonal.Development (LOMA FLMI desigr^tion)
Regularly communicating important order/customer infonmotion to the sales team that support business
objectives, generate new leads that result Inlpipeline creation and revenue
Responsible for final review of all Translatlons pnd ensuring files ore completed with deadlines
Updated ond prepared brochures/flyers for conferences
Documented LMS administrative procedures and provided training ond support to teom.and students

I Global Oct. 2007 - Nov. 2011
ersonal Assistant, International Operations Team (LOMA FLMI designolion)
Contributed to 20% membership growth by assisting with conferences ond tronslotions of webinors and
newsletters to top potential markets |
Monaged manager's travels and arranged rheelings with member companies
Tronsloted, edited, standardized, and finalized material prepared for employees and contractors
Prepared project plans, proposals, training rriateriols, end online documentotion
Served as interpreter for foreign visitors, clients, and customers

Iserv Lending Solutions (FLS) title Resolution Department Nov. 2004 ~ Sep. 2007
esolutlori Associate I
Implemented initiatives that increased overall team productivily and achieved highest productivity -
among peers within 6 months of assuming position
Reviewed landowner mortgages titles tor discrepancies
Followed up Nvith customers and borrowers ttirough telephone and written correspondence
Conducted title research and resolved issues' between title and morlgoge

Iserv Lending Solutions (FLS) Recording Department May 2004 - Nov. 2004
ecordlng Technician |
Anolyzed and verified landowner titles tor mortgages; processed funds tor recording and tox fees
Determined proper ownership ond verity exebulion of morlgoge document
Colloboroted across deportments for Power of Attorney ond Trust Reviewers to ensure validity
Oversaw proper execution of mortgages and conforms to individual stole registry requirements
Identified title and execution problems ond implement resolution process

Iserv Lending Solutions (FLS) Title Processing Department Apr. 2003 - May 2004
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E'Title Processor

• Obtained title information. Sctiedule A information, legal descriptions, and system data verificotion
•  Identified title and execution problems ondj routed tickets to the appropriate offices for resolution
Lockheed Martin Global; Inc. Beijing Representative Office ; July ) 997 - June 2000,
Office Manager & Translator |
• Managed office budget, project scliedutes. and international correspondence
•  Processed Finonciol Management reports |

„  .."-.Facilitated and,par1icipated.in.meeliogs.,c6nsultdtions...and.oegotialions.with partners.and.cuslomers
•  Translate and proofread materials and documents
■  Interpreter of meetings and business negotiations

Capital Normal University. Foreign Language College. Beijing July 1993 - July 1997
English Instructor ' j '
•  . Teach intensive English reading, exIensive'English reading, oral English, comprehensive English

listening. Mandarin |
o  Undertake the teaching of college's undergraduate and adult English courses, and leaching of

foreign students Mandarin courses |
.o • Design and develop English elective courses
o  Porticipate in the foreign languagejservices ond activities
o  Participate in translation ond interpretation training, collective lesson preporotion. teaching

seminars and regular meetings I
■' ■ o Encourage and guide students to participate in English and Mandorin activities and

competitions j
. o, Parlicipote in the creation of syllabus according to the plan

Canadian Institute of Business and Technology IciBT) School of Business September 1996-July I99B
Eng/fsh Instructor . 1

•  Teoch Chinese business monagers internotional business applications of English and Western
business ond cullurol practices |
o Responsible for the adult business English teaching in smoll classes •
o Actively parlicipote in various training sessions organized by school
o Organize practical and effective activities to improve students' interest and ability in business

. English learning |
o Understand and be familiar with each student's unique needs and help him/her improve ot

his/her own pace ' |
:  Assist in the implementation ot the latest projects ot English training for corporate clients

EDUCATION

Boruch College, CUNY Zlcklln School of Business. New York, NY Jon. 2003Mosler of Science in Computer Information Systjems [MS CIS)
Capital Normal University Foreign Language College. Beijing. China June1993
Bachelor of Arts in English Language and Literature. (BA)
Major: English language and literature Minors: French. Language teaching methodology, and Psychology
Honors: University Scholarship for 4 consecutive| years'
SKILLS ^ ^ I

•  Nolive Mandarin speaker; fully fluent in English and Chinese; understanding Shanghai dialect
•  Extensive experience and insight into cross-cultural business communications (US-China transactions)
•  Developed item Selection ond inventor^ Control System and E-Business web sites
•  Proficiency with Microsoft tools, such as Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Outlook, os well os Adobe Acrobat
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Sonya M. Taly

CAREER PROFILE

•  Dedication to leadership that delivers high quality results

:  • Strong oral and written communication skills
Proficient in Microsoft word, Power Point, jExcel, Visio, Outlook, OneNote and Multiple MIS Systems
Seek out opportunities for collaboration, innovation, development and learning.

Languages: English (Native). Spanish (Flient), French (Intermediate)

EDUCATION

Master of Arts in Intercultural Management, sit Graduate institute. Brattieboro. VT. usA (2009)
Concentration Iri Sustainable Development. Course svork included: Program Planning and Project Design, Program
Monitoring and Evaluation, Intercultural Communication, Theory and Practice of Mission Driven Organizations, Conflict
and Identity, Policy Advocacy. Training Design. i

Bachelor of Arts in Multidisciplinary Studies, Castleton State College. Castleton, VT, USA (2004)
Concentrations in Elementary Education and Special Education, mihor in US and World History.

(  I

Vermont Teaching Certifications, Elementary Education (K-6)/ Special Education (K-a9e.21)(2004)
Certified Lactation Counselor, Academy of Lactation Policy and Practice (December 2014 to December 2017)
Certified Food Safety Manager, Ri DOH (October 2015 to 2020)
Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) Certlfted, ri dcyf (Juiy20i8to Present)

PROFESS ONAL EXPERIENCE

Director of Corhmunity Services
Ascentria Care Alliance, Concord, NH/W6rceste , MA/West Springfield MA (September 2021 - Present)

Director of the Family Care Community Partnership (FCCP)
Communities for People, Pawtucket Rl (May 20I8 - Present)
Lead team of up to 20 including licensed clinicians, social workers, intake and outreach staff as well as peer support
partners. Designed implementation of newly awarded DCYF funded program. Ensure quality of services provided by
team. Responsibility for data analysis and reporting. Act as a liaison between agency and RI DCYF. Participate in Policy
Advocacy. Lead inter-agency collaboration. Ensure day to day functionality of program and services.

Director of Health and Nutrition (November 2016-June 2017).
Assistant Director of Health and Nutrition (March 2014 - November 2016)
Women Infants and Children (WIC) Program Manager (July 2011-March 2014)
Women Infants and Children (WIC) Supervisor (July 2009-July 2011)

Children's Friend. Central Fails, Pawtucket and Pro'jvidence RI (August 2009 to June 2017)
Over eight years of experience included: Leading and training teams of up to 30 including manager, supervisors, nurses,'
nutritionists, breastfeeding counselors, case managers! fiscal assistants, program assistants. /\meriCorps members and
other volunteers in the delivery of WIC, Head Start, EaHy Head Start, Early Head Start Childcare Partnership, Pre-K, Child
Care and Child and Adult Care Food Programs to up to approximately 9,000 individuals mainly within Providence,
Pawtucket and Central Falls RI.

Led the expansion of programs into new communities and uncharted strategies of approach. Liaised.between agency, RI
DOH, RIDE and other auditing officials. Responsible for program design, innovation, standards, outreach, needs
assessments and budget. Executed and led data tracking, analysis and reporting.
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Participated as a leader.ln programmatic and agency wde strategic planning. Executed programmatic' and electronic
integration of nutrition and nursing efforts in WIC; EHS, EHS Child Care Partnership. CACFP and HS. Acted as a leader
in the development and implementation of an agency wide integrated electronic record. .

Sonya M. Taly, Page 2

.  \

PROFESSIONAL! EXPERIENCE, CONTINUED
Program Assistant
ChildVolce International. Guiu. Uganda (August 2007 - March 2008)
Lived on site in outskirts of an isolated rural IDP camp, while planned, developed and implemented alt aspects of the
opening of a residential rehabilitative center for formerj child soldiers and formerly abducted girls. Taught life skills and
parenting classes. Oversaw Early Childhood Development program, trained and supervised teachers; Designed and
implemented student recruitment process. Interviewed and screened .prospective employees.

Program Assistant / Board Member
Project Chacocente. Masaya. Nicaragua (August 2005 - December 2007)
Developed preschool and kindergarten programs. Taught classes. Trained and mentored Nicaraguan teachers in
classroom strategies and innovative teaching practices. Assisted in school construction and agricultural development
programs. Mediated families in cases of abuse and ne'glect. Acted as a board member. Completed an appreciative
inquiry analysis of program and affected population. |

Translator/ Latin American Representative/ Business Development Assistant,
Rebuilders Automotive Supply. Coventry. Rl (May 199^ - August 2008)
Began working as a Warehouse Worker sorting, packing and unpacking shipments. Promoted to work alongside product
managers where I researched and organized all Latin American clientele and located new prospects. Created and
maintained relationships with clients through phone, email, and in-person meetings within and outside of U.S. Translated

■written documents and face-to-face meetings between Spanish and English associates.

Home-Based Therapist / Teacher's Assistant
Trudeaii Home-Based Therapies / Pathways Strategic'Teaching Center for Autistic Children. Warwick. Rl (2004,2006)
Specialized one-on-one teacher/therapist to children ages 3-18 years with various impairments. Utilized Applied
Behavioral Analysis in a classroom setting and in the home. Collected and analyzed student related data. Worked with
students and counseled parents to Increase positive behavior interventions and new approaches to learning. Attended
meetings and trainings involving all aforementioned students.

Personal Care Attendant and Teacher's Assistant
Lothrop Elementary School and Caverly Preschool. Piltsford. VT (October 2G02 - June 2004)
Provided full-time assistance within home, community,|clinical, and classroom settings to a boy \Arith severe
autism. Extended experience with implementing and collecting data on Discrete Trial. Occupational Therapy,
Relationship Development Intervention, and Speech Therapy. Aided to optimize Inclusive academic, social, and
recreational participation.

LEADEI^SHIP ACTIVITIES
Three Cities Coalition for Rl Juvenile Justice Restructuring (2020 to Present)
East Providence^'Health Equity Zone Steering Corrimitlee (2020 to Present)
Children's Ministry Director. Impact Center PVD | (2019 to Present)
Central Fails and Pawtucket DON Local Implementation Team (2012 to 2015)
New York State WIC Retention Advisory Board | (2013)
Rl Department of Health, Health Equity Collaborative (2014 to 2015)
Electronic Record Tester, Super User and Trainer, Children's Friend (2014 to 2017)
WIC EBT Card Research Team (2010 to 2011)
Head Start Inter-Agency Health Advisory Committee (2010 to 2014)
Gymnastics Instructor (1996 to 2004)

PUBLISHED RESEARCH
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La Chureca - Understanding The Individual; An Appreciative Inquiry of The Population Living Within The Garbage Dump
of Managua. Nicaragua; 2009 ^ !

REFERENCES - Available upon request
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David Altenor

.Creative & Technical Director

I'm seeking a position that allows to use all of my skills end creates an impact In this world.

Authorized to work In the US for any employer

Work Experience

Resettlement Navigator
Ascentria Care Alliance - Concordj NH

October 2023 to Present

.* Currently hold cases for refugees, asylees and parolees who are looklng.to resettle in America.

• Assisting clients in receiving health support in regards to appointments, scheduling and healthcare

planning |
• Assisting clients to connect to community health programs

Worship Pastor

One Church - Concord. NH

June 2023 to Present

I servo as a Worship Pastor for One Church. One Church is an online church with five Outposts in Bedford

NH, Manchester NH, Concord NH, Franklin NH and Rutland VT.

church.one j
• Leading a large group of volunteers and part-time staff

• Directing and leading worship services on Sundays, Thursday and various days of the week

• Overseeing the development of the student worship program across ail outposts '
• Training volunteers in worship and production

Managing Director & Lead Engineer
Kingdomsound Music Group, LLC - Cambridge, MA

January-2012 to Present

• Offering audio recording, editing, mixing, mastering
• Recording clients and organizational projects

• Music production, vocal arranging

• Piano and voice lessons

• Artist development

Creative Director

Eagle Heights Cathedral • Revere, MA

July 2017 tojune.2023

• Held direct artistic and spiritual oversight ofj the Worship, Audio, Dance, Drama Ministries, with the aim
of identifying, developing and commissioning^ new volunteers.
• Oversaw all creative volunteers, staff for rehearsals, Sunday services, special events.
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• Trained hew adult and youth volunteers via workshops, rehearsals, personal counseling, pnd bible
study.meetings.

• Worked closely with various staff pastors for the Men's, Women's. Bible College, Youth and Children's

Ministries.

Music Director

Zion Church Ministries ♦ Everett, MA
March 2011 to June 2017
.  I

• Held the responsibility of arranging and playing all music for Sunday services, special events and the

various choirs in the church j
• Arranged and organized all rehearsals and special selections.

Music Director for the Gospel Music Program and Voices of Imani Gospel Choir
Boston College • Chestnut Hill, MA i

August 2012 to June 2016 |

• Was promoted to become the youngest music director in the 150+ year history of Boston College

• Taught music to the choir along with the application of training methods for musical and spiritual growth.
• Arranged material for the choir and band/ realizing the University's vision for Gospel Musk on a global

scale . j
• Produced and wrote all original songs for the choir for global distribution

Product Brand Manager
Myriant Corporation, LLC - Quincy, MA

April 2010 to April 2014

• Developed and Implemented a product branding strategy in the US, Europe and Asia

• Responsible for global product launches and building the product brands for Myriant in the long run

• Managed a project to re-brand the company on a corporate and product level, which included: A new
logo, ads. brand colors, new product names] product brand icons and messaging while managing the
company website in regards to all brands

• Used Above Suite graphic design skills to create and develop all ads brochures and other marketing
material worldwide j
• Developed marketing campaigns for products for new and existing markets.

• Traveled and managing various trade shows, conferences and other client facing events to build
Myriant's global brand .

Music Director

Menorah Youth Ministry • Somerville, MA

June 2007 to June 2011

• Taught songs of worship to a choir ages 13 to 24 for Sunday services and special events

• Developed the youth ministry^creative music teams

Finance & Admin Associate

Myriant Corporation. LLC - Quincy. MA

May 2009 to April 2010

• Assisted Directors In Accounting. Finance, Marketing and Human Resources and the Corporate

Headquarters on various projects

• Maintained a Purchase Request budget of over $3. 000, 000 for Research & Development acquisitions
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Intern/Office Assistant /

Myriani Corporation. LLC • Woburn, MA

May 2008 to May 2009
f

-•-Created Budget Excel-sheets-for-the-Research-and-Dev^lopment Department, .which-were used -in..-

Corporate Reporting , |
• Assisted in the process of handling Expense Reports of over $30,000 in travel expenses.

•  Implemented a chemical and equipment filing system and performed various office tasks that

contributed to the daily operation of the cornpany

Data Entry Specialist
Citizen Schools Headquarters - Boston. MA

June 2007 to April, 2008

• Performed extensive updates to the organization's Intranet database and performed extensive data

analysis nationwide |
• Executed various tasks using Excel sheets and the organization's data entry system in order to stream

line information.

• Performed far beyond expectations.

Administrative Assistant

Boston College Law School - Newton, MA

June 2006 to September 2006

• Assisted the Law School in their 2006 application process

• Managed a filing system of over 7. 000 applicants

Bank Teller

Eagle Bank - Everett, MA

July .2005 to September 2005

• Handled currency accurately and in accordance with bank policies

• Created strong, interpersonal relationships with regular clientele

Education

Certificate In Google Ads & Analyt
Google • Remote

January 2023 to August 2023

Bachelor of Arts In Theology
Boston College - Chestnut Hill. MA

September 2005 to May 2009

Skills

cs

Haitian Creole

Branding

Adobe InDesign

Graphic Design
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Adobe Photoshop

Adobe Illustrator

video production

-Social-media-management-

Research & development

Adobe Creative Suite

HTML (3 years)^

CSS (3 years)

JavaScript (3 years),

React''(3 years)

Node.js (3 years)

Expresses (3 years)

SOLO years)

PostgreSOL (2 years)

Video editing

Web design

Digital marketing

Google Analytics

Google Ads

Facebook Advertising

Analytics

Branding

Media planning

Marketing

Microsoft Office

Links

Certifications and Licenses

Real Estate License

February 2015 to May 2017

Codecademy
March 2023 to Present

Currently learning and still developing Coding Knowlegde in Phython, Javascript and others.

Google AdWords Certification

Google Analytics Certification
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Groups

Grammy Recording Academy.
-june-2015-to-Presenc

Additional Information

SKILLS i
I

Ministry: Worship Leading, Vocal training, Piano training,-Worship workshops. Service Arranging, Live
Audio

Recording Studio: Music Production, Editing. Mixing. Mastering

Songwrlting, Vocal Arranging j
Graphic Design: Adobe Photoshop. Adobe Illustrator, Adobe InDesIgn

Computers: Microsoft Dynamics CRM. Microsoft Word. Excel. PowerPoint. Raiser's Egde, Edit Grid, and
Contribute ]
Language: Conversational Haitian Creole. Some working understanding of French
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Rachael M. Casoni
;i: '• ;

OBJECTIVE: A yersarile, results-brieiited professional with educational, work, and voUmteer experience
.  in multiple cbuntries.-Proveii.ability.to.bridge cultural-and linguistic diftcrences to..:; - ' " *'
' . .effectively'conunuiiicate and acliieve work objectives while respecting diverse views and

j - •. ... woridngas.partbfate^. ' . >' • i '

EDTJCATiOiy: fiflc/ie/orfj/Vrri,Englisli,withbonors.
Cedarvillc Uniyersity, Ccdarville,OH, Conferred in May 2010.

f

•  • • , r£FI. CeW/7cfl/e -for Teaching English in a Foreign Country?'
,  ; ' "Ij: The TEFL Institute; Chicago, Il, Gon5)letcd 2010.

'• -i ' .V-. '• " .. t .

- XOTERNATIONAL EDUCATION: ,"

> .Chronological Biblical Core Course Volunteer Teaching - University of the Nations, Nuueatdn, England, 2023.'
>. piscipleship Training School A University of tlic Nations. Taui^ga, New Zealand, 2022-2023.
. y /flpflUMe Eessonj-Genki Japanese and Cultuie School. Remote, 2021-2022. ' V j. • ,1^' •

■ > /(Opflneielesjohs-FulauIntema'lidiial.Activiiics'Pto, Fiikiii City, Japan, 201^2020. - , "-l/J
Korean Co/irres-. The National University of Education, baegu. South Korea, 2011-2012. '

>' Sfudy Abroad Course in English Liierature.- University of Gloucestershire, Chcltenlian), En^and, 2010. * ' j '
.Srwflf>'>4/>rporf5f//dent at JVCTi'Ca/Z^e, (Qx/ard-Oxford University, Oxford. England, 2010. . " ;•'

> Centerfor International Educatlonai^change Study Abroad Progran^ - University of Fcfiara, Italy, 2008-2009.-

WORK-EXPERIENCE: ' ' ■ ■■! . '' '.V
!, ■ . ... ■' ' •" . . . ^ ^

. Resettlement Navigator'.School Impact; A%c,e\\\i\eC^e A\\.\inze • (Concord, NH -2023 to Present)
.  T- - ■ 1 " ' ''

> Register New ̂ cric^ children for school and summer pfograms, provide school orientation,.and work witli ..j;
schools and fajnihesfocnsujt students'acadciihc progress, EL services, and etc. with a nuigc of responsibilities. " ;

'  J?ecr«y/er; Cdurrftl New Hampshire Employment Services; Inc. (Laconia, NH-202 l to2022)'

> :Recrujted cniployccs for clicnis'and assisted cjindiidatcs seeking employment witli a range of rcspousibilitics.
English Language Teacher,y]P Kid

> /Conducted onc-bn-onc online English lessons

•■v. (Remote-2020 to :2021)

with an at-iiome classroonvfdr children in Cliina.

Teflc//cr;Fukui Conimercial High School,. (Fukiii City; Japaii--20i6 tp 2020) ;
^'^'■Tau^t daily En^ish classcs.tq.studcuts in. grades 10-12!With'additioual broad rcspomibilitics inGludiiig:
•  o-."-Being a co-advisor'fdr-thC'EugUsh-SpcakmgSbcicty.Glub and Debate Team, ' ' . ' " • '

.  o;-Editing and probfrcading^cssays. spccchcs.|,find prcscntarions for contests, , - ,
0  -d Helping stiidciits preparc for university cnlrahcc essays and interviews and English quaUC.cation tests,

• o i, Pla'mmig. organizing'andriihning multi-day English seminars for students, .. "-w •'
'•i : o. ■ Coaching smdcnis for spccch'aiid debate contests, \.v: ' ' ' . .

... 0 bevismgciuriculmiisMid'lcsson-plaiining, . ' •
•  0 Wbrkiug as a laiigiiagc consultfuit, . .* •./

• o - Vpluntccring at various camps and scniinars^wiih oilief-sclibols ihrouglioiiMhc year,-' ..
b" .Vbiimteering in thc coimuunity, including for mohllily orphanage visits'& a weekly Eiiglisli Caf6; and i

*  " 0 Bcuig a rcprcseutaiiw bf the United States who buiJds'bridgcs among Japaji, the States; and.bilier nation's.

,a .
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■English Language Teacher, Fokui Prefectural School for the Blind ' (Fukui City, Japan - 2016 to 21320)

> Taught English classes for grades 3-12 and for masMgc therapy students with additional responsibilities. .

THe*Refmian (El6fidrah'd'Nanhj'circP^'20l3'to 20'16);'

:> Provided daily care for .two young children, tutored, prepared meals for the family, and kept house! -v.
*  '"■ ~ ' I ' ' ■' ■■■ ' '

The.Hagan Family .. (Sydney, Australia-2012 to20l3)-

>• Provided'daily carc for three young children. luibred'ih reading, writing and mathematics,land kejDt House;';.,
■j

.Native'Ehglish Teacher, Daegu Daicchun Elementary School (Daegu, South Korea - 201,1, to 2,012)

*■ > Taught daily"English_cla$ses to sludcnts*in jp-ades.'3;4 & 6jwith additional broad responsibilities jncludihg:- ■ * *

o Being the teacher and advisprfor'the English Club (^ades 5 and 6), . . " •
♦  Teaching afl'er-ischool classes for uridcrachieving students (grades 3-6), ' ■ ' ' f.;

"c .Developing and selecting,curriculurns ahd|leMpri-planning, and • . , ' • ^
. o Being an ambassador of thc United States buildjng.relations .among South Korea; the States, and,other,liations.' •"

*  * • , I ' * • •' * . '* *
English. Teacher, Gususw Library ■ - j . ■ ' (Daegu, South Korea-2011).
' j'.- > Planned and conducted English classes for children'and adult's and selected quality books'for the library's •

collection of books in.'English while promoting interest in reading, learning, lahguages; & foreign culfures. >

■ ,Administrative Assistant, Ct6aiyi\\c University's Travel,Studies Office , (Cedarville, .OH-20.09.to 201-6)'

• ■ > • Performed .typical.administratiye tasks.such'as working-whh MS Excel spreadsheets, answering telephone calls,
.  ' filing, organizing, sch^uling, ctcN". ' ■

'  I

t  •

LEADERSHIP POSITIONS, AWARDS; & HONORS:

>' JETKizimn (2020-Presentj
•> Fukui PrefccUne Frihtdsliip Ambnssu(ior.Q.(yi(!i^\^re&CT\.(j-
• > Lecturer for Wycliffe Univefsity's-Sunimer Ternr2023iai.thehisan'gi and Soroti, Uganda campuses •
> Budget Manager, Cleaning Coordinator, ahdStudent Lcader.for thc'Marine Reach Field Assignment

^.t . •

> Member of Alpha.Kappa De/rn, Cedaryillc's chapter of the International. English Honor Society (2010-Present)
> Cedarvillc University Honor Sbciety and HonorS'Prdgraih member (2006-2010) ■
>■ CedaryilleDcanKsList{20Q6-26\Ciyi \ -.i I
>" Ccdarville's Acddcmic and President's Scholarship's (20Q6-20.\0)
> Ccdarville's Leadership Scholarship

Inforrriatipn ori'additional"\yqrk'.cxpcricncc', awards; etc. available.upon request. ' . ,

V-

."i
.1

•J
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Jean Hakuzimana

Summary

With over 12 years of experience in community development strategy design, re^gee
resettlement policies, communication, advocacy, and media, I am the founder and Director

of NHSONGA(NH Moves).

I serve as the Ascentria's Seiyice for New Americans New Hampshire Statewide Director,
where I oversee multi-grant programming between the state and Ascentria aimed at
resettling refugees in New Hampshire.

I recently concluded a Deputy Editor role at Amjambo Africa, a newspaper that covers a wide
range of news about immigrants and host communities in Maine. I also host the Amjambo
Time podcast at WMPG, a community radio station affiliated with the University of Southem.

Maine.

I graduated in community development policy and practice from the Carsey School of Public
Policy at the University of New Hampshire, and I hold a bachelor's degree in journalism from
the University of Rwanda. I have worked with the United Nations, European Union-funded
programs, regional organizations, and diplomatic, govemmental, and non-profit entities in
Africa and the USA. focusing on issues such as refugee resettlement, social determinants of
health, environment, agriculture, biodiversity, governance, and inclusive finance. All these
previous roles have nurtured a huge passion for community development that I carry
whenever I am called to serve.

Experience

& NH State Director

Service for New Americans: Ascentria

Feb 2024 - Present

Care Alliance

Strategizing and executing the following tasks:

• Overseeing multi-grant programming between the state of New Hampshire and

Ascentria aimed at resettling refugees in New Hampshire.

« Serve as the Site Director and lead a team of dedicated staff working on the

resettlement and placement of re

Creating social and economic
Americans in society.

ugees in NH.

programs bridging the integration of new

Jean Hakuzimana - page 1
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Founder and Director

NH SONGA fwww.nhsonqa.com)

May 2023 - Present f
Strateaizina and executing the following tasksi

Led a company aimed a! bridging the GAP between New Americans and their
host communities in the areaspf workforce, Education, and Health.

Organizer of the annual Immigrants in NH's Workforce Conference set to debate,
amplify, and scale the voice of immigrants in the workforce.

Deputy Editor/ Podcast Host at WMF|G
Amjambo Africa fwww.amiamboafrica.com)
Nov 2022 - Present

Strategizing and executing the following tasks:

Building a conduit of information for newcomers as they navigate life in Maine.
Profiling ground articles about new Mainers, from Maine can understand why
newcomers have arrived in Maine and profiling those who are successful from

Africa to give hope to those newly arrived as well as make clear benefits, to the
state of Maine, of welcoming newcomers.

Producer and Presenter of multilingual shows: Amjambo Time, and Wiriwe Maine
Show, The radio shows that air stories about business, immigration, politics, and
miscellaneous affairs about New Mainers and Mainers.

Bringing New Mainers' voices on AIR -Thanks to the collaboration with Southern

Maine.

er
Deputy Director

Let There Be Light International
Jun 2022 - Nov 2022 (6 months)

•  Supported LTBLI's international solar safety-net programming and participated
in the assessment and communication of the organization's impact.

• Worked directly with organizations engaged in Climate Action and Poverty
Alleviation in sub-Saharan Africa.

•  Cultivated, stewarded, and managed relationships with funders.

Jean Hakuzimana • page 2
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Communications Specialist
UNDP

May 2017 - May 2018 (1 year 1 month')

^_Xj).COmunic.atiAn.s_Sp.e.cialis.t..with..th,e,..United. .Nations_D.eyelo,pn:i.e.nt„Brogr.am.-.
UNDP; #Chad Country Office. |l led the formulation and implementation of the
country's communication and advocacy strategy with an emphasis on
strengthenirig partnerships and|donor relations.

•  I supported the development and implementation of the publication strategy for
the office within its various programs with articles, success stories, photos,
videos, and interviews. fwww.td.undD.ora )

"• I managed International and national media relations for UNDP global and
Country offices.

^ Communication Expert at Congo Bassin Forest Partnership-RAPAC/EU Funded.
Partenariat pour les Forets du Bassin du Congo
• Worked in nine countries: Gabon, Central Africa Republic, Chad, Democratic

Republic of Congo, Congo Brazzaville, Equatorial Guinea, Cameroon, and,
Rwanda. During my tenure, there was a huge increase of awareness, and public
and community engagement towards protected areas in central African countries.
I.have designed an awareness momentum for challenges facing protected areas
in Central Africa, especially about poaching, capacity building, and .lack of
funding. I engaged media houses in Central Africa, Europe, and New York to
report and advocate on the plight of Protected Areas Management in Central
Africa.

•  I organized institutional representation in the 2016 International Union' of
Conservation World.Congress held iri Hawaii/USA with an exhibition where I
hosted five side events with partners.

S Communication Advisor
Ministry of Agriculture & Animal Resources
Sep 2015 - Feb 2016 (6 months)

•  Providing communication expertise to the Ministry, Minister, and projects funded
by various agencies among them the World Bank, European Union, IFDC, IFAD,
FAO, USAID, ...

^ Professional Fellow in Member Affairs and Global Communications Department

The SEEP Network

Aug 2014 - Oct 2014 (3 months)

This 3-month professional fellowship with The SEEP Network; a global network of
international practitioner organizatioris dedicated to combating poverty through
promoting inclusive markets and financial systems with active Members in"170 countries
and a reach out of 90 million households.

Jean Hakuzlmana - page 3
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Awr Communication Expert

African Wildlife Foundation

May 2011 - Feb 2013 (1 year 10 montIS)

Working across Rwanda. PR Congo, and. Uganda, in this position IJedJhe_devejopmej}l,
and implementation of a regional communication strategy to enhance the conservation
of endangered natural resources/species (among them mountain gorillas) in the Greater
Virunga Landscape/Central Albertine Rift.

Education

University of New Hampshire

Master's degree', Community Development Policy, and Practice
2019-2020

University of Rwanda

Balchelor's degree in journalism
Jan 2007-Jan 2010

College Christ Roi

High School Diploma, Latin Language and Literature
1998-2003

Jean Hakuzimana - page 4
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Pitie Grace Amisi

EDUCATION

NHT--Concord's Community College, Concord, NH,

Associate Degree in General studies CPA 3:08 05/2020

Jesuit Commons Higher Educations at the Margins (JC-HEM), Kenya

Certificate in Community and Business Development February 2013-June 2013

WORK EXPERIENCE

• Residential Instructor at Eastersea s ( 07/11/2024 todate. Duties include: meeting the
needs of children and young adults who are abled differently by helping them to shower,
taking them out for van rides, participating in the gym(basketball) among other duties
assigned by supervision. j

•  Case Manager at Ascentria Care Alliance (12/2021- todate ) Duties involve resettling refugees and Human

Parolees in NH by making sure that they integrate in our state.

•  Swahili Interpreter at Ascentria Care Alliance 06/2017-1 1/2021

•  Amazon Delivery Driver 08/15/2021-12/02/2021

•  Case worker: Organization for Refugees and Immigrant Success (ORIS), Concord, NH, 03301

(06/2017- 11/2017)

•  Field Education Officer/Education Assistant/Librarian, Jesuit Refugee Services, Kenya, 2012-2014

(Duties: reports compilation, note-taking, book cataloging, accompanying students with disabilities, and

vulnerable refugee girls to and from boarding schools away,from the Camp.

•  Community Outreach Facilitator, Film aid International, Kenya, (Duties: educating communities in

Sexual Gender-Based Violence, Prevention of Sexual Exploitation Abuse, and reproductive safe practices

through community campaigns, discussions, and films)

LANGUAGES SPOKEN AND SIGNED

•  English, French, Swahili, Lingala, and basic American Sign Language

PERSONAL ATTRIBUTES

•  Integrity, Team player. Interpersonal Relations, and Confidentialit)'

TECHNICAL SKILLS

MS Word, Excel, and PowerPoint, interpretation, and translation.
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JENNIFER DESIDERIO

Human service worker proficient in oral and written communication with an extensive knowledge of

diverse populations. Sensitive to various bac

and large groups effectively.

EXPERIENCE:

(grounds and points of view with the ability to lead small

01/09/2024-CURRENT- HEALTH CARE COORDINATOR

Currently, 1 hold the Healthcare coordinatorjposition at Ascentria Care Alliance. Oversee the
organizational aspects of patient care in local healthcare organizations. Planning and coordinating the

medical and health services for Ascentria clients such as scheduling appointments, arranging

transportation, and detailed record keeping in a shared information platform of care needs/results

2023-GRADUATE INTERN/THESIS- AMIKO YOUtH CENTER

Worked coHaboratively with team members to create a behavioral health program with a focus on

personal hygiene for New American children that attend the program. Used research to create a

curriculum for staff to use both currently and in the future to help educate children on the necessity of

personal hygiene. Taught a class alongside the program director that is still in use today.

06/2018-2021 GOVERNESS, CARE.COM

Created nurturing, safe environments to promote emotional, social, and intellectual growth. Followed

routines to foster stability and structure in children's lives during parental absences. Developed lasting,

professional relationships with families by encouraging open communication and positive feedback.

Documented and communicated daily reports outlining each child's daily activities. Planned recreational

activities to enhance physical development and explore stimulating exercises.

07/2014-04/2018- CLERICAL ASSISTANT, NH CENTER FOR NON-PROFITS

This was an internship/volunteer opportunity My duties were answering phone calls, filing confidential

documents, faxing and emailing documents on a case-by-case basis, and assisting managers with any

needs.

EDUCATION: GRANITE STATE COLLEGE

2023- MASTER'S IN HEALTHCARE MANAGEMENT

2020- BACHELORS DEGREE IN SSCIENCEHUMj^NSERVICES, DEAN'S LIST STUDENT WITH A GPA OF 3.24

AT GRADUATION.



Humayun Sarabi

— Key| Qualifications —
Results-oriented executive with a proven track record in strategic management and program
leadership, specializing in fundraising strategy, major gifts development, and corporate and
foundation giving. Donor Cultivation, Event Planning, Relationship Management. Adept at
building and leading teams to achieve fundraising goals.

I
I

— Other Skills —

Skilled in grant and portfolio management, entrepreneurship, and business development. Strong
people and operations management skills with a focus on program monitoring and evaluation.
Expert in scaling and managing startups!

Professional Experience

Program Manager, Catholic Charities of Boston - Boston, MA (August 2021 -Current)

Led the successful resettlement of Afghan refugees in Massachusetts by collaborating with
federal and state agencies.

Nurtured and managed partnerships wth over 32 POWIR sites, fostering strong relationships
between the sites and Afghan families.

Spearheaded successful fundraising campaigns resulting in a 20% increase in financial support
for refugee resettlement programs through community sponsorship.

Developed and executed strategies to engage private donors, securing significant contributions.

Developed and implemented strategies for the efficient allocation of resources and budget,
resulting in the seamless operation of resettlement programs.

Led and supervised teams responsible for resettlement and case management, ensuring smooth
day-to-day activities and government benefit programs.

VP of Operations and Strategy, Women Empowered Afghanistan - Boston, MA (January
\2020 to August 2021}

•  Assisted the CEO in setting and driving 1

needs.

•  Negotiated and secured funding from

25%.

•  Developed and implemented innovative

with international organizations.

•  Successfully negotiated with stakeho
Afghanistan, promoting human rights through media advocacy.

•  Acted as the main point of contact for

funding for the organization.

•  Developed actionable business strateg

objectives.

he organization's vision, operational strategy, and hiring

J.S. donors, surpassing annual fundraising targets by

fundraising initiatives, including successful partnerships

ders to implement journalism training programs in
)ugh media advocacy.

U.S. donors, fostering strong relationships to secure

ies and plans to align with short-term and long-term



Senior Policy and Planning Strategic

2018 to December 2019)

Advisor, CAREC Institute - Urumqi, China (May

Provided strategic support to CAREC Institute's management team, contributing to the
development of Cl 2022, including jthe Financial Sustainability Report and Institutional
Improvement Plan. |
Devised a fundraising strategy resulting in a $6 million annual increase to CAREC Institute's
budget through member countries' contributions.

Led and conducted CAREC Institute's meetings, drafting agendas and delivering informative
briefs on important policy matters.

Produced key policy papers on topics such as the benefits of free trade for Central Asian
countries.

Program Director, Women Empowerec

to May 2017)
Afghanistan, Medford, Massachusetts (July 2013

•  Successfully executed and oversaw various activities, demonstrating excellent project planning
and implementation skills.

•  Integrated data from multiple sources' to develop annual and multi-annual plans, ensuring
effective organization-wide strategies.

•  Demonstrated exceptional financial stewardship by overseeing budget development and
managing financial. |

•  Increased board member fundraising efforts by 15%, contributing to the organization's financial
sustainability.

•  Led initiatives to identify and partner with local and international organizations, resulting in
successful joint projects.

[Research Analyst, Raytheon BBN - Cambridge, Massachusetts (April 2012 to May 2013)

Conducted extensive research on security issues within Afghanistan, providing valuable insights
through translation, proofreading, .and transcription.

Collaborated with team members durinc data collection efforts and consistently met deadlines.

Program Director, Act Now Cf^iildren's Fund - Peshawar, Pakistan (2006 to 2008)
I

•  Directed day-to-day office operations and played a key role in developing policies and initiatives
for children's health, education, and women's rights.

•  Managed a $4M budget for field work, project implernentation/evaluation, and proposal writing.

•  Cultivated strong relationships with national organizations, promoting the organization as the
third-largest South Asian nonprofit in the country.

•  Facilitated the implementation of over 80 projects through partnerships with local organizations.



Proqram Manager, Helping Afghan Fa mers Org. -Peshawar, Pakistan (1999 to 2003)

•  Conducted evaluations and reported on agricultural projects In Afghanistan, coordinating project
start-ups and ensuring timely completion.

•  Researched and implemented alternative livelihood'projects to reduce opium poppy cultivation
in Afghanistan.

for USAID and DFID/European Union projects,

epartment head and finalized contracts and grants.

•  Prepared project proposals and reports

•  Provided administrative support to the c

Educational Background

Master, Public Administration
Harvard Kennedy School, Harvard University, Cambridge, Massachusetts

Master, Humanitarian Action and Human Rights
Ruhr Universitat, University College Dublin, Germany, & Ireland

Master, Law & Diplomacy and International RelationsFletcher School of Law, t|fts University, Medford, Massachusetts
Bachelor, Business Administration

Preston University, Peshawar, Pakistan

Fellowships & Awards

Ash Democracy Fellow, Kennedy School, Harvard University

Best Innovative Project Award for Journalism Training Project for Women Empowered Afghanistan
at (Istanbul Summit 2015), Journalist & Writers' Foundation

I

Finalists; for Fellowships

Echoing Grien Global Fellow, 2015
Civic Accelerator Fellowship, 2016

Detroit Chal

Broad Resid

enge Fellowship, 2016

ence Fellowship, 2017



Shirin Ashoury

Professional Profile

Professional teacher with 15 years of experience delivering ESL, tutoring, and facilitation multiple classes

as a substitute teacher. Passionate to help students succeed academically to supports opportunities for

their future careers.

Giving and receiving feedback

Student centered teaching

Empathetic -

•  Classroom management

•  Flexibility

•  Teamwork

Language: Farsi - Fluent, English - Fluent
Technology: Microsoft Office and Google Platforms

Education

SIT Graduate Institute, Brattleboro, VT

Master of Arts in Teaching English to Speakers of Other Languages

Relevant courses include:

•  Second Language Acquisition • Adult Education

•  Approaches to Teaching j • Group Dynamics
•  Language Analysis for Lesson Planning • Teaching the Four Skills

Anticipated 2018

New Hampshire Department of Education, Concord, NH

Certification in Teaching ESOL |

Rudehen Azad University, Rudehen, Iran

Bachelor of Arts: Teaching English as a Foreign/Second Language

2012

2006

Teaching Experience

Ascentria Care Alliance January 2022 - present

Education Department Coordinator

Responsible for creating a vibrant and itjinovative program to help refugees and immigrants
acquire essential skills necessary for succeeding with daily living, employment and overall
integration

Ascentria Care Alliance

ESL Teacher

Teaching ESL to refugees and immigrants

January 2019 -January 2022

SIT Graduate Institute

Library Assistant | January 2018-April 2018
•  Assisting college students in finding and checking books in and out of the library

September 2017- December 2017MA TESOL Office Assistant

•  Create materials for faculty to use in their classes



Shirin Ashoury

Keene School District, Keene, NH

Tutor July 2018-December 2018

• Working in the special education department at Keene High School and giving a one on one

support to a student and supporting the student in all classes

ESL Paraprofessional April 2017-July 2017

•  Pulled out students from the classroom who needed additional support

•  Designed lesson plans according to the curriculum and students' needs

•  Collaborated with the classroom teacher to elevate non-native speaker to the native speaker

level in Math and ESL

October 2016-April 2017

all subjects

Collaborated with all the third-grade teachers to ensure that students were progressing

academically

August 2013-December 2014

Tutored middle school special education Vistas program supporting both in the classroom and In

the study groups

Tutor

Tutor

Supported all third-grade students in

Marlborough School District, Marlborough, NH

ESL Teacher December 2014-February 2016

•  Created lesson plans to bring a student from basic to native level

•  Taught ESL and English for Special Purposes for student's additional class support

School Administrative Unit#29, Keene, NH

Substitute Teacher

•  Manage classes in the absence of curijent teacher
•  Delivering classes to students from kindergarten to high school

Arya Educational Institute, Tehran, Iran

ESL Teacher

November 2010-June 2013

April 2005-December 2008

Facilitated ESL using Let's Go Intermediate and Interchange textbooks
•  Taught female students from elementary to adults in all levels, in conversation and grammar

Danesh Language Institute, Tehran, Iran

ESL Teacher

•  Taught all girls in multiple age groups

•  Managed classroom through creating

June 2003-May 2005

a fun and engaging learning environment

Page 2
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAJD

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL^[^. [j
SALARY'di? 1

□ . b
•  f.

Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director oif SNA 2066.48 $82,659.20

Desiderio, Jennifer
Resettlement Coordinator - Health and
Well-beinq I 18869.76

$47,174.40

To Be Determined NEW 1
Resettlement Navigator - Health and
Well-beinq 1 5371.6

$42,972.80

1
Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director of SNA 2066.48 $82,659.20

Desiderio, Jennifer
Resettlement Coordinator - Health and
Well-beinq 1 14152.32

$47,174.40

To Be Determined NEW 1
Resettlement Navigator - Health and
Well-beinq i 2148.64

$42,972.80

1

Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director of SNA 6199.44 $82,659.20

Kitchell, Kathy Coordinator - Special Populations 33353.84 $51,313.60
To Be Determined NEW 5 Resettlement Navigator 19337.76 $42,972.80

1

Taly, Sonya M. Community Services! Director 2162.68 $86,507.20

Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director of SNA 30997.2 $82,659.20

Casoni, Rachael M.
Resettlement Coordihator - Stability
and Secutirv 1 12443.6 $49,774.40

Altenor, David Resettlement Navigator - Employment 20519.2 $41,038.40

Amisi, Pitie Resettlement Navigator 22006.4 $44,012.80
Sabari, Humayun Business Manager { 3421.6 $68,432.00

Ashoury, Shirln Education Program rllanager 810.16 $64,812.80

Nie, Minhui ESOL Teacher 1 6419.4 $51,355.20
1

Taly, Sonya M. Community ServicesjDirector 2162.68 $86,507.20

Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director of SNA 6199.44 $82,659.20

Casoni, Rachael M.
Resettlement Coordinator - Stability
and Secutirv i 7466.16 $49,774.40

Sabari, Humayun Business Manager | 5987.8 $68,432.00

Ashoury, Shirin Education Program Manager 4050.8 $64,812.80
Nie, Minhui ESOL Teacher i 6419.4 $51,355.20

To Be Determined NEW 1
Resettlement Navigator - Health and
Well-beinq 9668.88

$42,972.80

To Be Determined NEW 2 Resettlement Navigator 42972.8 $42,972.80
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To Be Determined NEW 4 Resettlement Navigator 25783.68 $42,972.80
To Be Determined NEWS Resettlement Navigator 2148.64 $42,972.80

•

Taly, Sonya M. Community Services Director 2162.68 $86,507.20

Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director of SNA 6199.44 $82,659.20

Kitchell, Kathy Coordinator - Special Populations 12828.4 $51,313.60

To Be Determined NEW 3 Resettlement Navigator 43680 $43,680.00
To Be Determined NEW 4 Resettlement Navigator 17189.12 $42,972.80

Sabari, Humayun Business Manager | 3421.6 $68,432.00
1

1

1

1

1
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List (hose primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

rFa j-

ANNUAL

. t/SALARVi,'
r;;

Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director of SNA $516.62 $82,659.20

Desiderio, Jennifer
Resettlement Coordinator - Health and

Well-being 1 $4,717.44
$47,174.40

1

Desiderio, Jennifer
Resettlement Coordinator - Health and

Well-being ! $2,358.72
$47,174.40

1

1

Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director of SNA $1,033.24 $82,659.20

Kitchell, Kathy Coordinator - Special Populations $9,621.30 $51,313.60

To Be Determined NEW 5 Resettlement Navigator $3,222.96 .  $42,972.80
1  •

Taly, Sonya M. Community Services' Director $540.67 $86,507.20

Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director of SNA $6,199.44 $82,659.20

Casoni, Rachael M.
Resettlement Coordinator - Stability
and Secutiry 1 $3,110.90 $49,774.40

Altenor, David Resettlement Navigator - Employment $7,694.70 $41,038.40

Amisi, Pitie Resettlement Navigator $5,501.60 $44,012.80
1

1

!

Taly, Sonya M. Community ServicestDirector $540.67 $86,507.20

Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director of| SNA $2,066.48 $82,659.20

Casoni, Rachael M.
Resettlement Coordinator - Stability
and Secutiry I $1,866.54 $49,774.40

Nie, Minhui ESOL Teacher i $1,604.85 $51,355.20

To Be Determined NEW 2 Resettlement Navigator $10,743.20 $42,972.80

To Be Determined NEW 4 Resettlement Navigator $6,445.92 $42,972.80

To Be Determined NEW 5 Resettlement Navigator $7,520.24 $42,972.80

Taly, Sonya M.

1
1

Community ServicesjDirector $1,081.34 $86,507.20

Hakuzimana, Jean D. Statewide Director ofiSNA $6,199.44 $82,659.20

Kitchell, Kathy Coordinator - Special Populations $2,244.97 $51,313.60

To Be Determined NEW 3 Resettlement Navigator $7,150.00 $43,680.00

1

1
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L«ti A. Wrsvrr

CenuabileBcr

Riobefl T. Hamfton
Oiitttvr

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHrRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HEALTH EQViTY

97 PLEASANT STREET, CONCOROJVH 053010857
I 605-27J.5986 l'800OS2-3545 txt. 5980Fax: 605-271 j0824 TDO Access: l-800-755'2964 uww.dhhi.nb.Bov
I

May 28, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T.
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, htew Hampshire 03301

REG

Sununu

UESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Office of Health Equity, to enter
Into a Sola Source contract with Ascentria Commur^ty Services, Inc., (VC#222201), Concord.
NH. In the amount of $770,786 to provide targeted refugee services to Office of Refugee
Resettlement eligible individuals, with the option to renew for up to three (3) additional years,
effective July 1. 2024, upon'Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2026.100%
Federal Funds. |

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025, and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line Items within the price limitation and iencumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Offioe, if needed and justified. I

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Contractor Is one of four qualified providers that
has an agreement with the United States Department of Stale to resettle families via the U.S.
Refugee Program and has access to roifugee demographic information necessary to perform
these services. Through Ihe federal contract, the Contractor develops and Implements an
integration plan for each refugee arriving In New Hampshire. The Contraclor also possesses the
cultural and linguistic expertise needed to serve the various refugee populations. The Department
will present contracts with the other three federally approved providers as separate requests.

The purpose of this request Is to provide healthcare and supportive services to Office of
Refugee Resettlement eligible lndividuals| resettled in the State for up to five (5) years from the
date of arrival, including targeted services for Afghans resettled through Operation Allies
Welcome, through the US Department of Homeland Security and Ukrainian humanitarian
parolees displaced from the Russia-Ukraine War. The Contractor wll) provide the following
services:

•  Coordination Related to the Domestic Medical Exam - provides coordination of a
comprehensive medical exam for new arrivals, including laboratory work, tuberculosis
testing, immunizations, and a physical examination.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sunurxj
and the Honorable Courtdi

Pd0e 2 of 2

•  Health Promotion Pfooram - provtdos assistance with scheduling and coordinating
medical and mental health appointments, an exparxled orientalion on the U.S.
he.Qlthcare„.sy8tem. ...health, education, .wellness^groops. and«.healthcafe_pr.oyider..
education and training.

•  School Impact Prooram - provides school related senn'ces to students and their
families, from birth through age 18, including assistance with school enrollment, parent
orientations to the American school system, and academic support.

•  Ukrainian Support ServlcesI ■ provides support services to eligible Ukrainian
Individuals, induding employment assistance., case management, skills training.
English as a second languagis, assistance in applying for Employment Authorization
Documents, housing and food assistance.

• Afghan Support Services - olovldes support services to eligible Afghan, individuals,
Including employment assistance,, case management, skills training. English as a
second language, assistance
housing and food assistance.

Approximately 500 Office of Re'
annually.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing regular reports and performing in-
person agency monitoring and file reviews to ensure the Contractor provide all required serylces.

As referenced In Exhibit A of the attached agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request Office of Refugee
Resettlement eligible Individuals resettled in the State will not have access to foundallonal case
management and economic support servl^s that impact their ability to become self-sufficient and
achieve sustained social and economic, wellbeing.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.566. FAIN # 2401NHRCMA.
FAIN #2301NHRSSS-06, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-05, FAIN #2401NHRSSS-01

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submllled.

in applying for Employment Authorization Documents,

ugea Resettlement eligible Individuals will be served

it
Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

77»« litponmtnl 0/ HcolUi and fltimon Services'Mittion is tajain cominumiies and fantUies
ui providing oppoiiiinitiea [or ci!ita>t to achieue health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAI15 SHEET

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01
OS-95-95-9S0010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHSiCOMMISSIONERS OFFICE. OFFjCE OF THE COMMISSIONER, REFUGEE SERVICES 100%

Federal Funds

ASCENTRIA CASE COORDINATION 7/1/24 ■ 9/30/25 Vendor #222201

State Fiscal

-Year—
Class / Account

1

Class Titiei Job Number Amount

2025, 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95070016 $45,000.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Proqrarti Services 95070016 $15,000.00

Sub Total I $60,000.00

ASCENTRIA AFGHAN HEALTH PROMOTION 10/1/24 - 9/30/25 Vendor#222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Accourit Class Tillej Job Number Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proflrarri Services 95072313 $27,126.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072313 $9,042.00

Sub Total 1 •• $36,166.00

ASCENTRIA REFUGEE HEALTH PROMOTION 10/1/24 - 9/30/25 Vendor#222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072303 $2,042.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072303 $681.00
• Sub Total 1 $2,723.00

ASCENTRIA ALL POPULATIONS HEALTH PROMO (UKR HP FUNDS) 10/1/24-9/30/2! Vendor #222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number 'Amount

-2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072323 $49,411.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072323 $16,470.00

Sub Total 1 $65,881.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number ' Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072403 $46,675.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072403 $62,500.00

2027 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072403 $15,625.00

Sub Total 1 $125,000.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>er Amount

2025- 102-500731 Contracts for Prograni Services 95072402 $52,500.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072402 $70,000.00

2027 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072402 • $17,500.00

Sub Total 1 $140,000.00

State Fiscal

Year '
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Anxiunt

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prograrri Services 95072311 $176,185.00

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Prograrri Services 95072311 $58,728.00

Sub Total 1 $234,913.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072321 $79,576.00

2026 ■  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 95072321 $26,525.00

Sub Total 1 $106,101.00

I  Overall Totall S770.786.00l
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Subject: SS-26250HE-01-TARGE-01 (Targeted Refugee Services)
' FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Anjj information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

I AGREEMENT
. The Slate of New Hampshire and^the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

general provisions

I. identification. I r •
l.l State Agency Name - |

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
;  1

1.2 Stale Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
Asceniria Community Services, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address
261 Sheep Davis Road A-1
Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Conintctor Phone

Number

603-224-8111

1.6 Account Unit and

TED

Class 1.7 Completion Date
September 30,2026 .

1.8 Price Limitation

$770,786

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature 6/7/2024
y-~t>ocuSieMdby;

I tvjfXo. feiwutL

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Angela Bovill President/CEO

1.13 State Agency Signature 6/7/2024
OeeuSlgM4 br

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Reuben Hampton Director, office of Healtl

1.15 App'fd'vaTbylhe N.H. Department of Administratio

By:

n, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On;

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
OMuSlgftM by:

By: On: 6/7/2024

1.17 Approval by the Gdvembr a"hd Executive Council

G&C Item number;

(ifapplicable)

G&C Meeting Dale:

Equit;

Page 1 of 4

Conlraclor Initials

DjQd7/2024
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siatc of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block, l.t
("State"), engages contractor idcntiHed in block 1.3 ("Contracior")
10 perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
(i:Scrvices'.l)—■ - i

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agrecmenlj to the
contrary, and subject to (he approval of (he Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement) and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become cfTectivc on the date (he Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Dale"). I
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor priorj to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,

-  and in (he event that this Agreement does not become effective, (he
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including ^ithout
limitation, any obligation to pay'the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed. j
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. Conditional NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of (he Slate hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, arc contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In (he event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or othcr\visc modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or|in part,
the State shall have (he right to. withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
icrminaic the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contracior notice of such reduction or lemiination. The
Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account arc reduced or unavailable. I

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The conimcl price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference. t
5.2 Notwithstanding any. provision in this Agreement j to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances^ in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block Il8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete rcintburscmcnt to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by tltc Contractor in the perfonnancc

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7*c or any other provision of law.

.5.4Jrhe.S(a(e!s.liabiliiy.undcr. (his.Agreement shall be.limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the Stale and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the perfonnancc of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, If this Agreement is fiinded In any part by monies of (he
United Stales, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, rcgulotions and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property taws.
6.2 During (he term of (his Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sc.xual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take afTirmatlvc
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state o;
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agrcentcnt have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in cxionion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contracior agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Cpmracior's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all nilcs, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perfonn the Services. The Contractor warmnis that ail
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to pcrfomi the
Ser\'iccs, and shall be properly licensed ahd othcnvisc authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to (his
Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.) ;Any one or more of the following acts or omissioris of the
■Contractor shall constitute an event of default hercunderj ("Event
of Default"); j
8.1.1 failure to perform the Ser\'ices satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

_8.1.3.failure.to.perfomt.nny.olhcr-covenant, lerm.or condition of,
this Agreement. |

.8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
lake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions: |
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser speciHcalion of lime, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is n^ timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination; {
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made.under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the Stale determines (hat
the Contmclor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor; [
8.2.3 give (he Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or |
8.2.4 give (he Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both J

9. TERMINATION.
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at jits sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of on early termination of this Agreement for.any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting pfftcer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in detail
ail Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the dale of termination. In addition, at the Stale's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.
10.1 As used in (his Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound rccordingsj video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, |graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether nnjshed or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be ihe-property of the State, and shall be returned
10 (he State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be

. govemed.by.N.M.. RSA.chaptcr.9.1-.A.and/or.olher.applicnble.law.-
Disclosure requires prior wriiieri approval of the State.

11. CONTRAtrrOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor on employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by (he State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fi ft een
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.
12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fi fty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the ossets of
the Contractor.
12.3 None of the Ser\'ices shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the Stale.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts' and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to. which it
is noi a pa'rty.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its olTicers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, ' damages, demands,
judgments, fi nes, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' foes, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other clainis asserted against (he State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The Stole shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the Sia(e'.<i
sovereign' immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the temiination
of this Agreement.
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14. INSURANCE. 1
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subconiracior
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance: I
M.I.I commercial general liability insurance against all claims of

.. bodily.injury, dcath.or^3ropcrty.damage,.in amounts of not.less than
Jl,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 .special cause of loss coverage form covering all I^ropcrty
subject to subptiragraph 10.2 herein, in on amount not less than
.80% of the whole replacement value of the Property. ^

■I 4.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire. [
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting ^Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, o certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agrecment.j At the
request of the Contracting Officer/orany successor, the Contractor
shall provide cenificate(s) of insurance for all rcnewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The ccrtificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation"). |
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compcnsationj in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. waiver of BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be arnended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only af\er approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the Slate of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to Slate law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.
19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against of in favor of any party.
19.2 Any octions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between
the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement Including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the.
interprciation, constr\iction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions sci forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and andiatcs, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and c^ect.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other par^ shall 26.' ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
be deemed to have been'duly delivered or given at the time of executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
Office addressed to the panics at the addresses given in blocks 1 .2 understanding between the panics, and supersedes all prior
and 1.4, herein. agreements and vindcrsiandings with respect to the subject matter

hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Refugee Services |
I  EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General (j'rovisions
1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion ofServices, is

amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and. Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire, this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties hereunder, s
Date").

1.2,

lall become effective on July 1, 2024 ("Effective

Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deleting
subparagraph 3.3 in its entirety and replacing it as follows:

3.3. Contractor must com

additional years from
delivery of services,

Diete all Services by the Completion Date specified
in block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3)

the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
available funding, agreement of the parties, and

.1.3.

approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subconlracts. is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5 as follows:

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with alt subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the Istate with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

SS:.2025-OHE-01-TARGB-01

AscenUia Community Services, inc.
7.14.23

A-1.2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Refugee Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1.4.

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide Targeted Refugee Services to Office of Refugee
Resettlement (ORR)-eligible| Individuals in this Agreerhent as follows:
1.1.1. Coordination Relatejd to the Domestic Medical Exam;
1.1.2. Health Promotion Program;

1.1.3. School lmpact Program;

1.1.4. Ukrainian Support S|ervices:
1.1.5. Afghan Support Services; and

1.2. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to business hours means
Monday through Friday from Sam to 4pm.

Coordination Related to the Domestic IVIedical Exam

1.4.1. The Contractor niust provide coordination related to the Domestic
Medical Examinatiop (DME) for ORR-ellglble individuals (herein after,
individuals) arriving to NH, including, but not limited to:

1.4.1.1. Reviewing and retaining a copy of each individual's 1-94
Form, Asyjlee Grant Letter, and/or other, available documents
to determine eligibility.

Providing1.4.1.2. all available overseas and/or other available

1.4.1.3.

medical records for each individual, In a timely manner, to the
health provider performing the DME prior to the initial
scheduled appolntment(s).

Explaining the purpose and benefits of the DME to ensure
each individual understands:'

1.4.1.3.1.

1.4.1.3.2.

1.4.1.4.

The reason for each examination component;
and

The assistance to be provided throughout the
process.

Scheduling DMEs within 90 days of the individual's ORR
determined service eligibility, date for:

1.4.1.4.1.

1.4.1.4.2.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Ascenlria CommurHty Services. Inc.

100% of individuals with refugee status; and

100% of ORR-ellglble individuals other than
refugees, who desire coordination relatej
DME.

B-2.0
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Refugee Services |

iEXHIBIT B

1^4.1.5._ Scheduling ali appointments that are in . support of a
comprehehsive DME, inciuding, but not Fimit^ to:

1.4.1.5.1.

1.4.1.5.2.

1.4.1.5.3.

1.4.1.5.4.

1.4.1.5.5.

Laboratory vyork.

Tuberculosis testing.

Screenings for:

1.4.1.5.3.1. Lead;

1.4.1.5.3.2. Mental health; and

1.4.1 .■5.3.3. Other screenings as applicable.

Immunizations.

Physical examinations.

1.4.1.6. Scheduling each discrete 1®' follow-up appointment resulting
.  from the DME. that will occur within 90-days- of service

eligibility.

1.4.1.7. Ensuring access to, coordinating referrals for and scheduling
any otherjneeded 1st appointment follow-up care, within 90-
days of service eligibility, including, but not limited to:

1.4.1.7.1. Specialty healthcare.

1.4.1.7.2. Mental health services.

1.4.1.7.3. Dental services.

1.4.1.7.4. Emergency care.
i

1.4.1.8. Ensuring [prescription medications are picked up and that
dosage instructions are understood by the individual.

1.4.1.9. Working with providers to ensure they understand and
address the communication access needs of the individuals.

1.4.1.9.1. If providers, do not provide communication
access, the Contractor must notify the Managed
Care Organization and/or Medicaid, as
appropriate, and the Department within 24
hours.

ransportation is provided to each DME and any
appointment according to the • following

prioritization:

1.4.1.10. Ensuring
follow-up

1.4.1.10.1

1.4.1.10.2

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Ascenlria Community Services. Inc.

Contractor-provided transportation; '

Arranging volunteer-provided transportation;
and

ne,
S-2.b Contractor Initials ^ ■ -
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Refugee Services |

iEXHIBIT B

1.4.2.

_  1.4;1.10.3. Arranging Medicaid transportation as a last
'  ' * ■ resoh.

The Contractor must assign one (1) Coordinator who has the following
preferred qualifications: ''

1.4.2.1. Experience working with refugees or immigrants;

1.4.2.2. A bicultuf;al/bilingual background;

1.4.2.3. Current knowledge of the U.S. health care system; and

1.4.2.4. Case management experience with an understanding of
current case management best practices.

1.4.3. The Contractor agrees that once all components of the DME and
associated follow-up described in Section 1.4.1.6. have been
completed, at whichever time within 90-days of service eligibility, that
any needed ongoing health case management services are provided
under the Refugee Health Promotion Program.

1.4.4. Reporting

1.4.4.1. The Contractor must submit on a monthly basis, the
Coordination of Domestic Medical Examination invoices, on

a form provided by the Department.
f  I

1.4.4.2. The Contractor must submit any de-identified, aggregate
data indicjators required by ORR related to the initial DME, as
specified by the Department.

1.5. Health Promotion Program (Effective October 1. 20241

1.5.1.. The Contractor must provide health promotion program services and
activities that promote the health and wellness of ORR-eligible
individuals, who are
but not limited to:

1.5.1.1. Providing

within their first five (5) years of eligibility, including.

1.5.1.2.

1.5.1.3.

1.5.1.4.

$S-2025-OHE.01-TARGE-01

Ascent/ia Community Sorvicds. Inc.

navigation and support services for medical,
mental health, and dental care services, and building
capacity within communities to address mental health needs.

ProvidingI targeted individual health outreach and home
visiting, as needed.

Providing
expandec
needed.

Creating
isolation,

opportunities to increase health literacy through
health orientation, and group health education as

opportunities for social engagement to reduce
including, but not limited to organizing wellness

groups, as needed.

8-2.0
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New Hampshire Department of Hea
Targeted Refugee Services

th and Human Services

EXHIBIT 8

1.5.1.5. Providing health provider training and education.

1.5.2. The Contactor must develop a plan to submit to the Department, within
30 days of the contract effective date, that details protocols of
engagement for individuals and/or families throughout their five (5) year
eligibility period, including, but not limited to:

1.5.2.1.1.

1.5.2.1.2.

1.5.2.1.3.

1.5.3. Navigation and Su

Needs assessment. .

Referrals and enrollment

services.

into appropriate

Contact made or attempted at six •(6)-monlh
intervals.

3Dor1 Services for Medical. Mental Health, and

Dental Care Services

1.5.3.1. The Contractor must provide navigation and support services
to increase access to and reduce gaps in services related to
medical, rriental health, and dental care services for
individuals who require care beyond the initial Domestic
Medical Exam (DME) to ensure they are able to access and
navigate complex health care systems, including, but not
limited to:

1.5.3.1.1.

1.5.3.1.2.

1.5.3.1.3.

1.5.3.1.4.

1.5.3.T.5.

1.5.3.2. The Con

Scheduling and coordinating medical and
mental health appointments.

Assisting individuals with connecting to dental
care by scheduling an initial appointment as
soon as possible after arrival, including locating
a primary dental care provider and/or a mobile
clinic.

Accompanying individuals to medical, mental
health and dental care appointments, as time
permits.

Providing and/or facilitating the provision of
transportation to and from appointments.

Assisting individuals to obtain appropriate
health insurance.

1.5.3.3.

$S.2025-OHE-01-TARGE^1

AscenUla Convnurtly SeMcos. Inc.

ractor must work with the Managed Care
Organizations and the designated Medicaid Dental Plan
Administrator to identify appropriate medical, mental health,
and dentallcare providers In order to mitigate gaps in service.

I

The Contractor must work with providers to ensi^othey
HI?

B-2.0 Conlraclor Iniiiats ^
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understand and address the communication access needs of

the ihdividuars.

1.5.3.3.1. If providers do not provide communication
access, the Contractor must notify the Managed
Care Organization and/or Medicaid, as
appropriate, and the Department within 24
hours.

1.5.3.4. The Contractor must provide uniform, continuous, and timely
transition of coordination services related to the DME to

navigation and support services immediately following
completion of the DME and any first follow-up appointment(s)
and/or on|day 91 of eligibility, whichever is sooner, to ensure
no gaps irji services and continuity of care.
The Contractor must develop a plan of care for each
individual! receiving medical, mental health, and/or dental
care navigation and support services including, but not
limited to:

1.5.3.5.

1.5.3.5.1.

1.5.3.5.2.

1.5.3.5.3.

1.5.4. Taroeted Individual

1.5.4.1.

A brief summary of the individual's health
navigation and support needs.

Clearly defined referrals to appropriate
healthcare and/or insurance to sufficiently
address the health needs of the individual being
served.

The identification of two (2) priority wellness
goals.

Health Outreach and Home Visitino

The Contractor must conduct a minimum of one (1) home
health visit, separate from and in addition to any home health
visit related to coordination of the DME, as needed, to;

Reinforce and clarify the information presented
in the health orientationi^and

1.5.4.1.1.

1.5.4.2.

1.5.4.1.2.

The Con

outreach,

resources

materials.

Address

concerns.

unique questions, issues . and

ractor must provide targeted individual health
as needed, including, but not limited to providing
such as translated written and/or audio/video

1.5.5. Expanded Health Orientation

$S-2025^HE-01-TARGE-01

Ascentria Communily Services. Inc.

B.2.0
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1.5.5.1.

V

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARG6-01

Asconlria Community Servicos. inc.

The Contractor^ m^t
brientation, defined
1.5.5.1.1

conduct^ ̂and^ health
as the topics outlined in ""Sections

through' 1.5.5.1.11., with priority given to
individuals who have been in the United States for two (2)
years orjless, arid to those within the five (5) year eligibility
period who either need a refresher or who never received an
expanded health orientation. The'Contractor must ensure
the expanded health orientation includes the following topics:

1.5.5.1.1|. Navigating the U.S. health care system.

Health insurance, including Refugee Medical
Assistance, expanded Medicaid, the
Marketplace, and employer-based insurance.

Privacy and consent laws.

The right to language assistance in health care
settings and the role of interpreters.

Transportation options for medical
appointments Including, but not limited to:

1.5.5.1.5.1. Public transportation training.

1.5.5.1.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation.

Understanding the different types of health care
providers including, but nofllmited to:

1.5.5.1.6.1. Primary care providers.

1.5.5.1.6.2. Specialists.

1.5.5.1.6.3. Pharmacists.

1.5.5.1.2'.

1.5.5.1.3

1.5.5.1.4

1.5.5.1.51

1.5.5.1.6

1.5.5.1.7

1.5.5.1.8

Understanding the different types of health care
and when, where and how to access each type
including, but not limited to:

1.5.5.1.7.1. Preventative.

1.5.5.1.7.2. Urgent.

1.5.5.1.7.3. Emergency.

Understanding the availability of
mental/behavioral health services, including,
but not limited to treatment for substance use

disorders, and when, where and how to access
services.

B-2.0 •
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1.5.5.1.9.

1.5.5.1.1

Scheduling, keeping
appointments. '

and cancelling

D. What to bring to appointrnents.

1.5.5.1.111. Medication, including, but not limited to:

1.5.5.1.11.1.The difference between prescribed
medication and over-the-counter

(OTT) medication.

1.5.5.1.11.2.Refills.

1.5.5.1.11.3.Dosage instructions.

1.5.5.1.11.4.Side effects. •

1.5.6.

1.5.5.2. The'Con ractor must adapt the health orientation curriculum
to accommodate the needs of newly-arriving populations,
and modify the curriculum as needed, with approval from the
Department.

1.5.5.3. The Contractor must administer pre-and post-assessments
to all participants to determine if participants increased their
knowledge of the U.S. health care system as a result of
participating in an expanded health orientation.

1.5.5.4. - The Contractor must maintain documentation of individuals

who haie received an expanded health orientation,
includingj but not limited to:

. • *

1.5.5.4,1. The names of individuals who participate in an
expanded health orientation.

•  1.5.5.4.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each
participant.

"1.5.5.4.3. The results of the pre- and post-assessments.

1.5.5.5. The Con ractor must share orientation materials with the

Department upon request.

Health Education

1.5.6.1. The Contractor must provide health education, consisting of
individual targeted . health outreach and/or group health
education session(s), as' needed, solely or in collaboration
with other organizations including, but not limited to:

1.5.6.1.1.

1.5.6.1.2.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

A$cenlha Communily San^ices, Inc.

Providing group health education sessions.

Identifying topics of concern for each of the
various ORR-eligible populations and gdctfitize

w
B-2.0
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1.5.6.1.3

1.5.6.1.4!
I

1.5.6.1.5!

topics that are most urgent or relevant on an
"ongoing basis.' ' - - -

Coordinating and scheduling outside
organizations and presenters to provide group
health education sessions on topics within their
area(s) of. expertise, which may include the
topics identified in Section 1.5.6.1.5. below.

Notifying individuals of class schedules.

Ensuring health education sessions include
topics relevant to ORR-eligible populations
including, but not limited to:

1.5.6.1.5.1. Health insurance terms, coverage
requirements and options, and the
enrollment process.

1.5.6.1.5.2. Disabilities including,
limited to, autism.

but hot

1.5.7.

1.5.6.1.5.3. Women's health including, but not
limitied to, reproductive health and
domestic violence.

1.5.6.1.5.4. Men's health.

1.5.6.1.5.5. Emotional wellness.

1.5.6.1.5.6. Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,
Transgender, and Questioning
(LGBTO) health.

1.5.6.1.5.7. Oral health and hygiene.

1.5.6.1.5.8. Vision health.

1.5.6.1.5.9. Nutrition and benefits of exercise.

1.5.6.1.5.10. Human Immunodeficiency Virus
(HIV).

I"

1.5.6.1.5.11.Tuberculosis risk reduction.

I  1.5.6.1.S.li.Fire safety.
1.5.6.2. The Contractor must administer and document pre- and post-

assessments to all participants to determine if participants
increased their knowledge of health education topics as a
result of participating in individual/group health education.

Wellness Groups

'

SS-2025-OH6-01-TARGE-01

Ascentria Community Sarvtces. Inc.

B-2.0
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1.5.7.1_. The Contractor must facilitate th^ provision of^on-clinical
interventions including, but not limited to wellness groups, as
needed, that:

1.5.7.1:11

1.5.7.1.2!
1.5.7.1.31
1.5.7.1.4

1.5.7.2. The Con

Promote wellness among target populations:

Reduce isolation;

Prevent suicide; and

Utilize an evidence-based curriculum and/or

promising practice methods that may include,
but are not limited to, Pathways to Wellness
Community Adjustment Support Group Training
Manual and Curriculum.

1.5.8.

ractor must administer and document pre- and post-
assessments to participants to determine if participants,
increasecl well-being as a result of participating in a wellness
group.

Healthcare Provider Education

1.5.8.1.

1.5.8.2.

1.5.8.3.

The Contractor must attend monthly meetings with the DME
providers' for the purpose of coordinating ongoing primary
and/or sp^ecialty care.
The Contractor must develop and maintain relationships with
a minimum of three (3) non-DME health care providers
through:

1.5.8.2.1. Outreach and education; and

1.5.8.2.2. Presentations and training.
I

The Contractor must ensure relationships with health and
mental health care providers focus on, but are not limited to:

1.5.8.3.1.

1.5.8.3.2.

1.5.8.3.3.

Health needs and culture of ORR-eligible
populations.

Barriers to care that may include, but are not
limited to:

1.5.8.3.2.1. Language.

1.5.8.3.2.2. Cultural factors.

1.5.8.3.2.3. Transportation issues.

National Standards for CLAS in healthcare.

SS-2025-OHE'01-TARGE-01

Ascenlria Communily Sorvicos, Inc.

1.5.8.4. The Contractor must develop, administer and document pre-
and post-assessments to participants to detenrntiffe if

[]£
B-2 Contractor initials.0
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1.5.9. Staffing

1.5.9.1.

participants increased knowledge as a result o^participating
in an edubational offering, presentafion or training.

The Contractor must ensure adequate staffing capacity to
carry out the services specified in Section 1.5., including the
following roles:

1.5.9.1.1.1 Health Case f^anager(s): and

1.5.9.1.2. An Administrator with responsibilities including,
but riot limited to:

1.5.9.1.2.1. Oversight and supervision of the
Health Case Manager(s).

1.5.9.1.2.2. Oversight of the reporting process
to ensure all required reporting is
complete and submitted to the
Department in accordance with
Section 1.5.10. Reporting.

1.5.10. Reporting

1.5.10.1. The Con

Tracking
ractor must submit monthly Health Promotion
Logs, or the data contained therein, in a format

acceptable to the Department to ensure progress toward
program cJeliverables which include, but are not limited to:

1.5.10.1.1. Demographic data for individuals receiving
Health Promotion Prograrn services, including:

1.5.10.1.1.1.Gender;

1.5.10.1.1.2.Date of birth; and

1.5.10.T.I.3.Immigration status.

1.5.10.1.2. Number and names of individuals receiving
navigation and support services for medical
care, including dental care.

1.5.10.1.3. Number and names of individuals receiving
navigation and support services for mental
health care.

1.5.10.1.4. Number and names of individuals with a
developed plan of care.

1.5.10.1.5. Number and names of individuals with a
completed plan of care [two (2) priority wellness
goals met].

•OS

SS-2025-PHE-01.TARGE-01

Ascent/la Communily Services. Inc.

B-2.0
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1.5.10.1.6. Number and names .of individuals receiving
'expanded health "orientation and'""lopic(sy
covered.

1.5.1Q.1.y Number of individuals^ who -have increased
j  knowledge of the U.S. health care system as a

result of participating in an expanded health
1  orientation.
j

1.5.10.1.6. Number and names of individuals receiving
"j targeted health education and topic(s) covered.

1.5.10.1.9. Number and names of individuals receiving a
home visit.

1.5.10.1-. 0. Number of individuals participating in group
health education sessions and the topic(s)
covered.

1.5.10.1.11. Number of. Individuals who have increased

knowledge as a result of participating in group
health education.

1.5.10.1.12. Number and names of individuals participating
in a wellness group.

1.5-.10.1.13. Number of individuals who have increased

wellbeing as a result of participating in a
wellness group.

1.5.10.1.14. Number of health providers receiving education
or training.

1.5.10.1.15. Number of health providers who have increased
knowledge as a result of participating in
education or training.

1.5.10.1.16. Major accomplishments,, new initiatives,
challenges, emerging issues, and individual
success stories.

1.5.10.2. The Con ractor must submit semi-annual reports to the
Department for reporting periods October 1 - September 30
and March 31 - April 1 no later than 30 days after the end of
each reporting period, or upon request by the Department.
Semi-annual reports must include, but are not limited to:

1.5.10.2.' Health Promotion Tracking Log for the semi
annual period.

SS-202&OH E^ t -TARG E-01

Asconlria Commumly Sorvicos. Inc.

B-2.0
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1.5.10.2.2. Major accomplishments., new initiatives, .

1.6.

challenges, emerging issues, and individual
success stories for the semi-annual period.

School Impact Program fEffective October 1. 2024)

1.6.1. The Contractor must provide culturally appropriate School Impact (SI)
program services, statewide, to:

i  '
1.6.1.1. ORR-eligible students (herein students), who are up to age

18 through their high school graduation, and their families,
who have been in the United States fpr less than five (5)
years at the beginning of the school year; and

1.6.1.2. Local school dislrict(s).

1.6.2. The Contactor must develop a plan to submit to the Department, within
30 days of the contract effective date, that details protocols of
engagement for individuals and/or families throughout their five (5) year
eligibility period, including, but not limited to:

1.6.2.1. Needs assessment.

1.6.2.2; Referrals and enrollment into appropriate services.

1.6.2.3. Contact made or attempted at six (6)-month intervals.

1.6.3. Student and Family Services

1.6.3.1. The Contactor must:

1.6.3.1.1.

1.6.3.1.2.

SS-2028-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Ascentrfa Community Services. Inc.

Prioritize students and their families who are

within:

1.6.3.1.1.1. One (1) year of arrival, or who are
experiencing school enrollment for
the first time; and

1.6.3.1.1.2. The five (5) year eligibility period;

Provide comprehensive school orientations for
students and their families including, but not
limited to the following topics:

1.6.3.1.2.1. American school system, policies
and procedures.

1.6.3.1.2.2. Advocacy services to obtain
classroom support for students
with academic or .social

challenges.

-0$

B-2.0
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EXHIBIT B

1.6.3.1.4.

1.6.3.1.5.

1.6:3.1.6.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Ascent/lo Commurtity Services. Inc.

,1.6.3.1.2.3. Supportive services to .studerjts_
""and parents "on acadeniijc

transitions (elementary to middle,
middle to high school, high school
to college), including connecting
students to post-secondary
guidance and career exploration.

1.6.3.1.2.4. Extracurricular arid enrichment

opportunities.

1.6.3.1.2.5. Understanding academic testing
practices.

1.6.3.-T2.6. Understanding homework
expectations.

1.6.3.1.2.7. Understanding how to interpret
student reports, such as academic
and disciplinary reports.

1.6.3.1.2.8. An introduction to post-secondary
education options.

Provide enhanced registration services at the
elementary, middle and high school levels
including, but not limited to:

1.6.3.1.3.1. Coordinating deliveries of
backpacks and school supplies.

1.6.3.1.3.2. Coordinating school lours.

1.6.3.1.3.3. Facilitating the scheduling of any
necessary tests as well as
appointments with guidance,
departments.

1.6.3.1.3.4. Coordinating transportation for
school orientation tours;

Assist students and their families with school

and after school program registration
paperwork;

Assist students and their families with

completing free and reduced lunch applications;

Work in partnership with the local school
district(s), 21st Century (21C) after-school
program(s), and other community partners to

B-2.0
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make referrals to/after-school, motoring, and
summer programs;

1.6.3.1.7. Facilitate , a minimum of two (2) leadership
development opportunities for students which
may Include, but are not limited to:

1.6.3.1.7.1. Youth leadership summits.

1.6.3.1.7.2. Student-led mentoring; and

1.6.3.1.8. Provide case management and support
services to students and their parents/families,
which include, but are not limited to:

1.6.3.1.8.1. Access to health care services.

1.6.3.1.8.2. Access to mental health services.

1.6.3.1.8.3. Access to housing services and/or
assistance. -

1.6.3.1.8.4. Other Social. Determinants

Health support services.
of

1.6.4. School District Services

1.6.4.1.

1.6.4.2.

1.6.4.3.

1.6.5.

1.6.6.

Staffing

1.6.5.1.

The Contractor must collaborate with the local school

district{s) to promote parents and teachers coming together
in a relaxe^ atmosphere to foster relationship building.
The Contractor must work with the local school district(s) to
ensure they understand and address the communication
access needs of students and their families.

1.6.4.2.1. If the school districts do not provide
■ communication access, the Contractor must

notify the Department within 72 hours.

The Contractor must provide ongoing training and education
to school personnel to promote the knowledge, skills and
best practices necessary to ensure linguistic and cultural
effectiveness when providing services to ORR-eligible
student populations.

The Contractor must ensure adequate staffing capacity to
carry out the services specified in Section 1.6.

Reporting

1.6.6.1. The Contractor must submit semi-annual ORR-6 rep^oii,^ata

(Lb
SS-2025-OHe-0VTARGe-01

Asceniria Commonily Sofvlcos. Inc

B-2.0
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.  in accordance with ORR reporting requirements found here::  - . •; ~ httDsiy/wv^racf-hhs^QOv/orr/form/repoft-forms. in a format'

acceptable to the Department, for reporting periods October
1 - September 30 and March 31 - April 1 no later than 30
days after the end of each reporting period, to ensure
progress toward program deliverables.

1.7. Ukrainian Support Services (Effective October 1. 20241

1.7.1. The Conlraclor must provide case management: supportive services
related to health as needed; and employment support services,
statewide, in this Agreement for ORR-eligibie Ukrainians, as described
in Section 1.7.2.

1.7.2. Pursuant to ORR; jthe Contractor must ensure individuals receiving
services meet the following eligibility criteria:

1.7.2.1. Ukrainian Humanitarian Parolees (UHPs), who are citizens
or nationals of Ukraine, who the Department of Homeland
Security (DHS) has paroled into the United States within the
tirheframes determined by and in accordance with U.S. laws
and regulations and/or as directed by the Department, due to
urgent humanitarian reasons or for significant public benefit;
or

1.7.2.2. Non-Ukrainian individuals who last habitually resided in
Ukraine, who DHS has paroled into the United States within
the timefr'ames determined by and in accordance with U.S.
laws andjregulatipns and/or as directed by the Department,
due to urgent humanitarian reasons or for significant public
benefit; or

1.7.2.3. A spouse or child of an individual in Section 1.7.2.1. or
1.7.2.2. who is paroled into the United States within the
timeframes determined by and in accordance with U.S. laws
and regulations and/or as directed by the Department; or

1.7.2.4. A parent, legal guardian, or primary caregiver of an
unaccompanied refugee minor or an unaccompanied child
described in Section 1.7.2.1. or 1.7.2.2. who is paroled into
the Unitecl Stales within the timeframes determined by and
in accordance with U.S. laws and regulations and/or as
directed tiy the Department.

1.7.3. Case Management Services

1.7.3.1. The Contractor must provide case management services to
assist individuals with succeeding in their new communities

■  including,!but not limited to:
H

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Ascent/ia Communiiy Sorvicos. Inc.

B-2.0
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1.7.3.1.1J Assisting with housing-related issues.

1.7.3.1.2. Providing reasonable and necessary financial'
support for emergency short-term and long-term
housing that is paid directly to the landlords by

j  the Contractor, when sponsorships are no
longer viable or as needed, after consulting with

j  the Department.
f

1.7.3.1.3. Providing necessary food assistance.

1..7.3.1.4. Referring individuals to medical, mental health,
and dental care services and other Social

, Determinants of Health support services, as
appropriate.

1.7.3.1.5. Referring individuals to appropriate .English for
Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) or

!  vocational ESOL programs.

1.7.3.1.6.' Assisting individuals with accessing and
enrolling in mainstream public programs such
as Women, Infants and Children Nutrition
Program (WIC), Fuel Assistance and Head
Start.

1.7.3.1.7. Identifying conveniently located, subsidized day
care providers, as appropriate.

1.7.3.1.8. Assisting individuals with transportation needs,
as needed, including direct payrtient for
transportation such as fares and the leasing of
vehicles by the Contractor for the purpose of
transporting individuals to initial employment
and other appointments.

1.7.3.1.9. Providing general cultural orientation about the
U.S., with topics submitted to the Departmentfor

.approval within ten (10) days of the contract
^  effective.

1.7.3.1.10. Providing orientation for parents and students to
American school systems, as needed.

1.7.4. Health Promotion Services

1.7.4.1. The Contt^actor must provide navigation and support services
and activities that promote the'health and wellness of ORR-
eligible Ukrainians, as needed, who are within their first five.
(5) years of eligibility, including, but not limited to: —OS

SS-2025-OHE-01.TARGE-01

Ascontrta Convnunity Services. Inc.

B-2.0

Pago 16ot48

Contractorinilials

Dale
6/7/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47/U^-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C,5E

DocuSign Envelope 10: i4A3CF96-a45r-471A-d727-947DDS51719C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Refugee Services |

; EXHIBITS

1.7.4.2.

1.7.4.1.1; Providing navigation and support service^.for
medical, mental health, and dental" care"
services, and building capacity within
communities to address mental health needs.

1.7.4.1.2 Providing targeted individual health outreach
j  and home visiting.

1.7.4.1.3j Providing opportunities to Increase health
literacy through expanded health orientation
and group health education.

1.7.4.1.4. Creating opportunities for social engagement to
reduce isolation, including, but not limited to
organizing wellness groups.

1.7.4.1.5. Providing health provider training and
education.

Navigation and Support Services for Medical. Mental Health.

and Dental Care Services

1.7.4.2.1

1.7.4.2.2

The Contractor must provide navigation and
support services to increase access to and
reduce gaps in services related to medical,
mental health, and dental care services for
Ukrainian individuals who require care beyond
the Initial Domestic Medical Exam (DME), as
needed, to ensure they are able to access and
navigate complex health care systems,
including, but not limited to;

1.7.4.2.2.1. Scheduling and coordinating
medical and mental health

appointments.

1.7.4.2.2.2. Assisting
connecting

SS-2025-OHE.01-TARGE-01

' Ascent/ia CommunUy Services, Inc.

individuals with

to dental care by
scheduling an initial appointment
as soon as possible after arrival,
including locating a prima^ dental
care provider and/or a mobile
clinic.

1.7.4.2.2.3. Accompanying individuals to
medical, mental health and dental

care appointments, •a^—.otime
permits.

8-2.0
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1.7.4.2.3

1.7.4.2.4

SS-2025-OHE-01.TARGE.01

Ascentna Communily Services. Inc.

1.7.4.2.2.4. Providing and/or facili^ting the
provision of iraTTsportation to'and
from appointments.

1.7.4.2.2.5. Assisting individuals to obtain
appropriate health insurance.

The Contractor must work with the Managed
Care Organizations and the designated
Medicaid Dental .Plan Administrator to Identify
appropriate medical, mental health, and dental
care providers in order to mitigate gaps in
service.

If providing navigation and support services, the
Contractor must:

1.7.4.2.4.1. Work with providers to ensure they
understand and address the

communication access needs of

the individuals.

1.7.4.2.4.1.1. If providers do not'
provide
communication

access. the

Contractor must

notify the Managed
Care Organization
and/or Medicaid, as

appropriate, and the
. Department. within
24 hours; and

1.7.4.2.4.2. Develop a plan of care for each
individual receiving medical,
mental health, and/or dental care

navigation and . support services
that includes:

1.7.4.2.4.2.1. A brief summary of
the individual's

health navigation
and support needs;

^  1.7.4.2.4.2.2. Clearly defined
referrals to

appropriatelie OS

B-2,0
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1.7.4.3. Targeted

.  healthcare and/or
insurance to

sufficiently address
the health needs of

the individual being
served: and .

1.7.4.2.4.2.3. The identification of

two (2) priority

wellness goals.

Individual Health Outreach

1.7.4.3.1.

1.7.4.4. Expander

1.7.4.4.1.

SS-2025^HE-01-TARGE-01

Ascentria Convnuniiy Servlcos. Inc.

The Contractor must provide solely, or in
collaboration with other organizations, individual
targeted health outreach, as needed. If
providing targeted individual health outreach,
the Contractor must:

1.7.4.3.1.1. Identify topics of concern for
Ukrainians and prioritize topics that
are most urgent or relevant on an
ongoing basis;

1.7.4.3.1.2. Ensure the targeted individual
health outreach includes, but is not
limited to resources such- as

translated written and/or

audio/video materials which may
include, but are not limited to;

1.7.4.3.1.2.1. Vaccine education.

1.7.4.3.1.2.2. Tuberculosis risks

reduction.

1.7.4.3.1.2.3. Emotional wellness;
and

1.7.4.3.1.3. Assist the Department's
Tuberculosis Program with their
outreach efforts to the Ukrainian

community.

Health Orientation

The Contractor must conduct an expanded
health orientation that is tailored to the specific
needs of individuals, as needed, which may
include the following topics: —o»

B-2,0
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SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Asccnlrla Community SeMces, Inc.

1.7.4.4.1.1. Navigating the U.S. health care
,  systemT

1.7.4.4.1.2. Health insurance, Including
Refugee Medical Assistance,
expanded Medicaid, the
Marketplace, and employer-based
insurance;

1.7.4.4.1.3. Privacy and consent laws;

1.7.4.4.1.4. The right to language assistance in
health care settings and the role of
interpreters;

1.7.4.4.1.5. Transportation options for medical
appointments including, but not
limited to:

1.7.4.4.1.5.1. Public

transportation

training.

1.7.4.4.1.5.2. Arranging Medicaid
transportation;

1.7:4.4.1.6. Understanding the different types
of health care providers including,
but not limited to:

1.7.4.4.1.6.1. Primary
providers.

care

1.7.4.4.1.6.2. Specialists.

1.7.4.4.1.6.3. Pharmacists;

1.7.4.4.1.7. Understanding the different types
of health care and when, where

and how to access each type
including, but not limited to: '

1.7.4.4.1.7.1. Preventative.

1.7.4.4.1.7.2. Urgent.

1.7.4.4.1.7.3. Emergency;

1.7.4.4.1.8. Understanding the-availability of
mental/behavioral health services,

including, but not limited to
treatment for substance^Diuse

B-2.0 Contraclor Initials ^
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1.7.4.4.2

1.7.4.4.3.

1.7.4.4.4.

1.7.4.5.. Health Ec

_  . disorders, and when, where and
how to access services;

1.7.4.4.1.9. Scheduling, keeping and
cancelling appointments;

1.7.4.4.1.10. What to bring to appointments; and

1.7.4.4.T.11.Medication, including, but not
limited to:.

1.7.4.4.1.11.1. The difference

between

prescribed
medication ' and

over-the-counter

(OTT) medication.

1.7.4.4.T.11.2. Refills.

1.7.4.4.1.11.3. Dosage
instructions. •

1.7.4.4.1.11.4. Side effects.

The Contractor must administer pre- and post-
assessments to all participants to determine if
participants increased their knowledge of the
U.S. health care system by participating iq an
exparKied health orientation.

The Contractor must maintain.documentation of

individuals- who have received an expanded
health orientation, including, but not limited to:

1.7.4.4.3.1. The nameS' of individuals who

participate in an exparided health
orientation.

1.7.4.4.3.2. The topic(s) of orientation
completed by each participant.

1.7.4.4.3.3. The results of the pre- and post-
assessments.

The Contractor must share orientation materials
with the Department upon request.

ucation

1.7.4.5.1. The Contractor,must provide health education,
consisting of individual targeted health c^oach

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARG6-01

AscQntria Community Sejvicas. Inc.
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SS-2025-OHE-01-TARG6-01

AsconUla Community Services. Inc.

and/or group health education session{s), as
needed."solely or In collaboration with other
organizations. If providing health education, the
Contractor must:

1.7.4.5.1.1. Provide group health education
sessions;

1.7.4.5.1.2. Identify topics of concern and
prioritize topics that are most

urgent or relevant on an ongoing
basis;

1.7.4.5.1.3. Coordinate and schedule outside

organizations and presenters to
provide group health education
sessions on topics within their
area(s) of expertise, which may
include the topics identified in
Section 1.7.4.5.1.5. below;

1.7.4.5.1.4. Notify individuals
schedules; and

of class

1.7.4.5.1.5. Ensure health education sessions

include relevant topics including,
but not limited to:

1.7.4.5.1.5.1.

1.7.4.5.1.5.2.

1.7.4.5.1.5.3.

1.7.4.5.1.5.4.

1.7.4.5.1.5.5.

Health insurance

terms, coverage

'requirements and
options, and the
enrollment

process.

Disabilities

Including, but not
limited to, autism.

Women's health

Including, but not
limitied to.

reproductive
health and

domestic violence.

Men's health.

B-2.0
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1.7.4.5.1.5.6.

1.7.4.5.1.5.7.

1.7.4.5.1.5:8.

1.7.4.5.1.5.9.

Lesbian. . .-Gay,
Bisexual,
Transgendei", and-
Questioning
(LGBTO) health.

Oral health and

hygiene.

Vision health.

Nutrition

benefits

exercise.

and

of

1.7.4.5.2.

1.7.4.6. Wellness

1.7.4.5.1.5.10. Human

Immunodeficiency
Virus (HIV).

1.7:4.5.1.5.11. Tuberculosis risk

reduction.

'1.7.4.5.1.5.12. Fire safety.

- The Contractor must administer and document

pre- and post-assessments to all participants to
' determine if participants increased their

knowledge of health education topics as a result
of participating in individual/group health
educatipn.

Groups

1.7.4.6.1.

1.7.4.6.2.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Ascontrla Community Sorvicos, Inc.

The Contractor must facilitate the provision of
non-clinical interventions including, but not
limited to wellness grpups. as needed, to:

1.7.4.6.1.1. Promote wellness- among the
target population;

1.7.4.6.1.2. Reduce isolation; and

1.7.4.6.1.3. Prevent suicide.
I

If conducting wellness groups, the Contractor
must facilitate a minimum of two (2) culturally
and linguistically appropriate wellness groups
each Contract year, utilizing an evidence-based
curriculum and/or promising practice methods
that 'may include, but are not limited to.

8-2.0
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EXHIBIT B

1.7.4.6.3.

Pathways to Wellness Community Adjustment
Support Group training Manual and Curriculurn.

The Contractor must administer and document

pre- and post-assessments to participants to
]  determine if participants increased well-being as
I  a result of participating in a wellness group.

1:7.5. Employment Services

1.7.5:1. The Conti actor must provide employment services that focus
on job development, placement, retention and re-
employment.

.1.7.5.2. The Contijactor must develop and maintain relationships with
employers, including, but not limited to:

1.7.5.2.1. Working with employers to assist with hiring and
onboarding processes.

1.7.5.2.2.! Working with employers to develop employer-
based training.

1.7.5.2.3. Collaborating with existing governmental and
private job development agencies. ■

1.7.5.3. The Contractor must develop employment support for each
employabe individual, including, but not limited to:

1.7.5.3.1. Conducting employability assessments utilizing
Department approved assessment instruments.

1.7.5.3.2. Developing and maintaining a Family Self-
Sufficiency Plan for families with at least one (1)
employable adult.

1.7.5.3.3. Developing and maintaining employment plans
for each individual eligible for employment.,

1.7.5.3.4. . Assisting individuals with developing resumes.

1.7.5.3.5. Scheduling and arranging job interviews for
employable individuals and assisting them with
submitting job applications until they are
'employed.

1.7.5.3.6. Providing referrals to support services.

1.7.5.3.7. Providing transportation training to increase
employability, as necessary.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARG6-01

Ascenlria CommunHy Services, liK.
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1.7.5.3.8 insuring communication access services are
" avaTlabie to employers, as rieeded," for
employment-related activities.

1.7.5.4.

1.7.6.

1.7.6.1.

The Contractor must attend meetings with the Department as
needed including, but not limited to:

1.7.5.4.1.1 The quarterly Refugee Advisory Council
I  meeting.

1.7.5.4.2.' The bi-weekly, or as otherwise scheduled by the
Department, Employment Team meeting.

Reporting Requirernents

The Contractor must submit semi-annual ORR-6 report data
in accordance with ORR reporting requirements found here:
httDs://www.acf.hhs.QOv/orr/form/reDort-forms. in a format

acceptable to the Department, for reporting periods October
1 - September 30 and March 31 - April 1 no later than 30
days after the end of each reporting period, to ensure
progress jtoward program deliverables.
If the Contractor provides Health Promotion services, the
Contractor must submit monthly Health Promotion Tracking
Logs, or the data contained therein, in a format acceptable to
the Dep|artment to ensure progress toward program
deliverab

1.7.6.2.

es which include, but are not limited to:

1.7.6.2.1.

1.7.6.2.2

1.7.6.2.3

1.7.6.2.4

1.7.6.2.5

Demographic data for individuals receiving
Health Promotion Program services, including:

1.7.6.2.1.1. Gender;

1.7.6.2.1.2. Date of birth; and

1.7.6.2.1.3. Immigration status.

Number and names of individuals receiving
navigation and support services for medical
care, includirig dental care.

Number and names of individuals receiving
navigation and support services for mental
health care.

Number and names of individuals with a

developed plan of care.

Number and names of individuals with a

completed plan of care [two (2) priority w^lness
goals met). Hi

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

A$c«nt;1a Community Services, IrK.
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EXHIBIT B

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARCe-01 '

Ascentria Communily SeMcas. Inc.

1.7.6.2.6.

1.7.6.2.7.

1.7:6.2.8.

1.7.6.2.9.

1.7.6.2.1C

1.7.6.2.11

Number and nam^ of individuals receiving
"expanded".. health orientation and topic(s)'
covered.

Number of individuals who have increased

knowledge of the U.S. health care system as a
result of participating in an expanded health
orientation.

Number and names of individuals receiving
targeted'health education and topicfs) covered.

Number and names of individuals receiving a
home visit.

Number of individuals participating in group,
health education sessions and the topic(s)
covered.

Number of Individuals who have increased

knowledge as a result of participating .in group
health education.

1.7.6.2.12'. • Number and names of individuals participating
In a wellness group.

1.7.6.2.13. Number of individuals who have increased

wellbeing as a -result of participating in a
wellness group.

1.7.6.2.14. Number of health providers receiving education
I  or training.

1.7.6.2.15. Number of health providers who have increased
knowledge as a .result of participating in
education or training.

1.7.6.2.16. Major accomplishments, new initiatives,
challenges, emerging issues, and individual
success stories.

1.7.6.3. If the Contractor provides Health Proriiotion services, the
Contractor must submit semi-annual reports to the
Department for reporting periods October 1 - September 30
and March 31 - April 1 no later than 30 days after the end of
each reporting period, or upon request by the Department.
Semi-annual reports must include, but are not limited to:

1.7.6.3.1. Health Promotion Tracking Log for the semi
annual period.

(1&
B Contractor Initials-2.0
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1.7^6.3.2! Major accomplishments, new. initiatives,
"challenges, emerging"Issues, 'and'''ihdjvidual
success stories for the semi-annual period.

1.8. Afghan Support Services (Effective October 1. 2024)

1.8.1. The Contractor must provide case management; supportive services
related to health .'as needed; and employment support services,
statewide, in this Agreement for ORR-eligible Afghans, as described in
Sections 1.8.2. through 1.8.3.

1.8.2. Pursuant to ORR, the .Contractor must ensure individuals receiving
services meet the following eligibility criteria:

1.8.2.1.- Individuals who are citizens or nationals of Afghanistan
paroled into the United States under section 212(d)(5) of the
Immigration and Nationality Act .within the timeframes
determined by and in accordance with U.S. laws and
regulations and/or as directed by the Department, due to
urgent humanitarian reasons or for significant public benefit;
or

1.8.2.2. A spouse or child of any individual described in Section
1.9.2.1., who is paroled into the United States within the
timeframes determined by and in accordance with U.S. laws
and regulations and/or as directed by the Department: or

1.8.2.3. A parent or legal guardian of any individual described in
Section 1.8.2.1., who is determined to be an unaccompanied
child as defined by 6 U.S.C. § 279(g)(2), who is paroled into
the Unitedjstates within the timeframes determined by and in
accordance with U.S. laws and regulations and/or as directed
by the Department.

1.8.3. Pursuant to ORR, the Contractor must further ensure that those eligible
for services:

1.8.3.1. Are an ORR beheficiary, as of the day before their initial
parole expiration date, and;

1.8.3.2. Have submitted, as of the day t>efore their initial parole
expiration date, the following:

1.8.3.2.1.

1.8.3.2.2.

1.8.3.2.3.

SS-2025-OHE-Oi-TARGE-01

Ascentfia Community Services. Inc.

A re-parole application prior to the expiration
of their initial period of parole;

An asylum application prior to the expiration of
their ipitial period of parole; or

An adjustment of status application prior tg^ the
expiration of their initial period of "

B-2.0

Page 27 of 48

Contractor Initials

Dale
6/7/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

OocuSign Envelope ID: 14A3CF96-B4SF-471A-B727-047OD551719C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Refugee Services |

; EXHIBIT B

1.8.4. Case Management Services

1.8.4.1. The Contractor must provide case management services to
assist individuals with succeeding in their new communities
including, but not limited to;

I..8.4.I.1! Assisting with housing-related issues.
1.8.4,1.2! Providing reasonable and necessary financial

;  support for emergency short-term and long-term
i  housing that is paid directly to the landlords by

the Contractor, v^en sponsorships are no
longer viable or as needed, after consulting with
the Department.

1.8.4.1.3 Providing necessary food assistance.

1.8.4:1.4! Referring individuals to medical, mental health,
and dental care services and other Social

Determinants of Health support services, as
.appropriate.

1.8.4.1.5

1.8.4.1.6

1.8.4.1.7

1.8.4.1.8

1.8.4.1.9

1.8.4.1.1(

1.8.5.

Referring individuals to appropriate English fpr
Speakers of Other Languages (ESDI) or
vocational ESOL programs.

Assisting individuals with accessing and
enroliing in mainstream public programs such
as Women, Infants and Children Nutrition
Program (WIG), Fuel Assistance. and^ Head
Start.

Identifying conveniently located, subsidized day
care providers, as appropriate.

Assisting individuals with transportation needs,
as needed, including direct payment for
transportation such as fares and the leasing of
vehicles by the Contractor for the purpose of
transporting individuals to initial employment
and other appointments.

Providing general cultural orientation about the
U.S.. with topics submitted to the Departmentfor
approval within ten (10). days of the contract
effective.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Ascenlria Commur^ty Services. Inc.

Providing orientation for parents and students to
American school systems, as needed.

OS

Health Promotion Services

B-2.0 Contraclof Inliials ̂
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1.8.5.1

1.8.5.2.

$S-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Ascentria Community Services. Inc

The Contractor must provide navigation and support services
and "activities that promote'the health and welTness of ORR-
eligible Afghans, as needed, who are within their first five (5)
years of eligibility, including, but not limited to:

Providing navigation and support services for
medical, mental health, and dental care
services, and building • capacity within
communities to address mental health needs.

1.8.5.1.1.

1.8.5.1.2.

1.8.5.1.3.

1.8.5.1.4.

1.8.5.1.5.

Providing targeted individual health outreach
and home visiting.

Providing opportunities to increase health
literacy through expanded health orientation
and group health education.

Creating opportunities for social engagement to
reduce isolation, including, but not limited to
organizing wellness groups.

health provider trainingProviding and

education.

Navigation and Suoport Services for Medical. Mental Health.

and Dental Care Services

1.8.5.2.1-. The Contractor must provide navigation and
support services to increase access to and
reduce gaps in services related to medical,
mental health, and dental care-services for

Afghan individuals who require care beyondThe
initial Domestic Medical Exam (DME),. as
needed, to ensure they are able to access and
navigate complex health . care systems,
including, but not limited to:

1.8.5.2.1.1. Scheduling and coordinating
medical and mental health

appointments.

1.8.5.2.1.2. Assisting individuals with
connecting to dental care by
scheduling an initial appointment
as soon as possible after arrival,
including locating a primary dental
care provider and/or a. mobile
clinic.

B-2.0
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1.8.5.2.2.

1.8.5.2.3.

SS-2025OHE-0MARGE-01

Ascenlria Communiiy Services, inc.

1.8.5.2.1.3. Accompanying individuals to_
'p-igp^gi health and dental

care appointments, as time
permits..

1.8.5.2.1.4. Providing and/or facilitating .the
provision of transportation to and
from appointments.

1.8.5.2.1.5. Assisting individuals to obtain
appropriate health insurance.

The Contractor must work with the Managed
Care .Organizations and the designated
Medicaid Dental Plan Administrator to identify
appropriate medical, mental health, and dental
care providers in order to mitigate gaps in
service.

If providing navigation and support services, the
Contractor must:

1.8.5.2.3.1. Work with providers to ensure they
understand and address the

communication access needs of

the individuals.

•  1.8.5.2.3.1.1. If providers do not
provide
communication

access, the
Contractor must

notify the Managed
Care Organization
and/or Medicaid, as-

appropriate, and the
Department within
24 hours; and

1.8.5.2.3.2. Develop a plan of care for each
individual receiving medical,
mental health, and/or dental care
navigation and support services
that includes:

1.8.5.2.3.2.1. A brief summary of
the individual's

B-2.0
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1.8.5.3. Targeted

1.8.5.3.1.

health navigation
and support ribeds;

1.8.5.2.3.2.2. Clearly defined
referrals to

appropriate
healthcare and/or

insurance to

sufficiently address

the health needs of

the individual being
served; and

1.8.5.2.3.2.3. The identification of

two (2) priority
wellness goals.

ndividual Health Outreach

The Contractor must provide solely, or in
collaboration with other organizations, individual
targeted health outreach, as needed. If
-providing targeted individual health outreach,
the Contractor must:

1.8.5.3.1.1. Identify topics of concern for
Afghans and prioritize topics that
are most urgent or relevant on an
ongoing basis;

1.8.5.3.1.2. Ensure the targeted individual
health outreach includes, but is not

limited to resources such as

translated written and/or

audio/video materials which may
include, but are not limited to:

•1.8.5.3.1.2.1. Vaccine education.

1.8.5.3.1.2.2. Tuberculosis

reduction.

risks

1.8.5.3.1..2.3. Emotional wellness;

and

1.8.5.3.1.3. Assist the Department's
Tuberculosis Program with their
outreach efforts to the Ukrainian

community.

' lib
$S-20250HE-01 -TARGE-01

Ascentiia Commurtity Services. Inc.

8-2.0

Page 31 of 48

Conlractof Initials ̂

Date
6/7/2024



Oocusign Envelope ID; 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

OocuSign Envelope ID: 14A3CF96-B45F-471A-8727-94700551719C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Targeted Refugee Services

EXHIBIT B

1.8.5.4. Expanded Health Orientation

1.8.5.4.1

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Ascenlfia Community Services, Inc.

The Contractor must conduct an expanded
health orientation that is tailored to the specific
needs of individuals, as needed, which may
include the following topics:

1.8.5.4.1.1. Navigating the U.S. health care
system.

1.8.5.4.1.2. Health insurance, including
Refugee Medical Assistance,
expanded Medicaid, the
Marketplace, and employer-based
insurance.

1.8.5.4.1.3. Privacy and consent laws.

1.8.5.4.1.4. The right to language assistance in
health care settings and the role of
interpreters.

1.8.5.4.1.5. Transportation options for medical
appointments including, but not
limited to:

'1.8.5.4.1.5.1. Public

transportation
training.

1.8.5.4.1.5.2, Arranging Medicaid
transportation.

1.8.5.4.1.6. Understanding the different types
of health care providers including,
but not limited to:

1.8.5.4.1.6.1. Primary care
• providers.

1.8.5.4.1.6.2. Specialists.

1.8.5.4.1.6.3. .Pharmacists.
)

1.8.5.4.1.7. Understanding the different types
of health care and when, where
and how to access each type
including, but not limited to:

1.8.5.4.1.7.1. Preventative.

1.8.5.4.1.7.2. Urgent.

0-2.0
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1.8.5.4.2

1.8.5.4.3

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE.01

Ascenlria Communily Services. Inc.

1.8.5.4.1.7.3. Emergency.

1.8.5.4.1.8. Understanding the availability of
mental/behavioral health services,
inciuding, but not- limited to
treatment for substance use

disorders, and when, where^ and
how to access services.

1.8.5.4.1:9. Scheduling, keeping and
cancelling appointments.

1.8.5.4.1.10. What to bring to appointments.

1.8.5.4.1.11.Medication, including, but not
limited to:

1.8.5.4.1.11.1. The difference

between

prescribed
medication and

over-the-counter

(0TT) medication.

1.8.5.4.1.11.2. Refills.

1.8.5.4.1.11.3. Dosage
instructions.

1.8.5.4.1.11.4. Side effects.

The Contractor must administer pre- and post-
assessments to all participants to determine if
participants increased their knowledge of the
U.S. health care system by participating in an
expanded health orientation.

The Contractor must maintain documentation of

individuals who have received an expanded
health orientation, including, but not limited to:

1.8.5.4.3.1. The names of individuals who

participate in an expanded health
orientation.

1.8.5.4.3.2. The toplc(s) of orientation
completed by each participant.

1.8.5.4.3.3. The results of the pre- and post-
assessments.

—OS

,
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1.8.5.4.4

1.8.5.5. Health Ed

1.8.5.5.1.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Ascenlria Communily Services, Inc.

The Cojitractor must share orientation m^erials
" ""wTth "the Departmerit upon rkiuest.

ucation

The Contractor must provide health education,
consisting of individual targeted health outreach
and/or group health education session(s). as
needed, solely or in collaboration with other
organizations. If providing health education, the

Contractor must:

1.8.5.5.1.1. Provide group health education
sessions;

1.8.5.5.1.2. Identify topics of concern and
prioritize topics that are most
urgent or relevant on an ongoing
basis;

1.8.5.5.1.3. Invite, arrange for, and schedule
outside organizations and
presenters to provide, group health
education sessions on topics within
their area(s) of expertise, which
may include the topics identified in
Section 1.8.5.5.1.5. below;

1.8.5.5.1.4. Notify individuals of class
schedules: and

1.8.5.5.1.5. Ensure health education sessions

include relevant topics including,
but not limited to:

1.8.5.5.1.5.1.

1.8.5.5.1.5.2.

1.8.5.5.1.5.3.

B-2.0
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1.8.5.5.2.

1.8.5.6. Wellness

1.8.5.6.1.

1.8.5.6.2

SS-2025-OHE-O1-TARGE-01

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

1.8.5.5.1.5.4.

1.8.5.5.1.5.5.

1.8.5.5.1.5.6.

health and

"domestic violence.

Men's health.

Emotional

wellness.

Gay,

1.8.5.5.1.5.7.

1.8.5.5.1.5.8.

1.8.5.5.1.5.9.

Lesbian.
Bisexual,

Transgender, and
Questioning
(LGBTQ) health.

Oral .health and

hygiene.

Vision health.

Nutrition

benefits

exercise.

and

of

1.8.5.5.1.5.10. Human

Immunodeficiency
Virus (HIV).

1.8.5.5.1.5.11. Tuberculosis risk

reduction.

1.8.5.5.1.5.12. Fire safety.

The Contractor must administer pre- and post-
assessments to all participants to determine if
participants Increased their knowledge of health
education topics as a result of participating in
individual/group health education.

Groups

The Contractor must facilitate the provision of
non-clinical interventions including, but not
limited to wellness groups, as needed, to:

1.8.5.6.1.1. Promote wellness among - the
target population;

1.8.5.6.1.2. Reduce isolation; and

1.8.5.6.1.3., Prevent suicide.

If conducting wellness groups, the Contractor
must facilitate a minimum of two (2) qfjltdfally

1
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and linguistically appropriate wenness groups
each Contract year, utilizing an evidence^base^d
curriculum and/or promising practice methods
that may include, but are not limited to,
Pathways to Wellness Community Adjustment
Support Group Training Manual and Curriculum.

1.8.5.6.3 The Contractor must administer pre- and post-
assessments to participants to determine if
participants increased well-being as a result of
participating in a wellness group.

1.8.6. Employment Siervices

1.8.6:1. The Contractor must provide employment services that focus
on job.I development, placement, retention and re-
employmerit.

I  ' '
1.8.6.2. The Contractor must develop and maintain relationships with

employers, including, but not limited to;

1.8.6.2.1 Working with employers to assist with hiring and
onboarding processes.

Working with employers to develop employer-
based training.

Collaborating with existing governmental and
private job development agencies.

ractor must develop employment support for each
employable individual, including, but not limited to:

1.8.6.3.11 Conducting employability assessments utilizing
Department approved assessment instruments.

1.8.6.3.2 Developing and maintaining a Family Self-
Sufficiency plan for families with at least one (1}
employable adult.

1.8.6.3.3 Developing and maintaining employment plans
for each individual eligible for employment.

1.8.6.3.4 Assisting individuals with developing resumes.

1.8.6.3.5 ■ iScheduling and arranging job interviews for
employable individuals and assisting them with
submitting job applications until they are
employed. »

1.8.6.3.6 Providing referrals to support services.

1.8.6.2.2

1.8.6.2.3

1.8.6.3. The Con

SS-2025-OHE.01 -TARGE-01

Ascenlria Communlly Servk^s. Inc.
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1-.8.6.3.7

1.8.6.3.8

1.8.6.4. The Con

Providing transportation training to increase
employabllity, as necessary.

Ensuring communication access services are
available to employers, as needed, for
employment-related activities.

1.8.7.

raclor must attend meetings with the Department as
needed including, but not limited to:

1.8.6.4.1! The quarterly Refugee Advisory Council
meeting.

1.8.6.4.2. The bi-weekly, or as otherwise scheduled by the
Department, Employment Team meeting.

Reporting Requirements

1.8.7.1. The Contractor must submit semi-annual ORR-6 report data
in accordance with ORR reporting requirements found here:
httos://www.acf.hhs.aov/orr/form/reDort-forms. in a format

acceptable to the Department, for reporting periods October
1 - September 30 and,March 31 - April 1 no later than 30
days after the end of each reporting period, to ensure
progress Itoward program deliverables.

1.8.7.2. If the Contractor provides Health Promotion services, the
Contractor must submjt monthly Health Promotion Tracking
Logs, or the data contained therein, in a format acceptable to
the Dep|ai1ment to ensure progress toward program
deliverables which include, but are not limited to:

1.8.7.2.1J

1.8.7.2.2

1.8.7.2.3

1.8.7.2.4

SS-202$-OHE-01 -TARGE-O!

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

Demographic data for individuals, receiving
Health Promotion Program services, including:

1.8.7.2.1.1. Gender;

1.8.7.2.1.2. Date of birth; and

1.8.7.2.1.3. Immigration status.

Number and names of individuals receiving
navigation and support services for medical
care, including dental care.

Number and names , of individuals receiving
navigation and support services for mental
health care.

Number and names ofr individuals with a

developed plan of care.

B-2.0
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1.8.7.3.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

AscentriaCommunlly Services, Inc.

1.8.7.2. 5 Number and names of individuals with
completed plan of care"[*two (2rpribrity well'hess
goals met].

1.8.7.2.6 Number and names of individuals receiving
expanded health orientation and topic(s)
covered.

1.8.7.2.7 Number of individuals who have increased

knowledge of the U.S. health care system as a
result of participating in an expanded health
orientation.

1.8.7.2.8 Number and narries of individuals receiving
targeted health education and topic{s) covered.

1.8.7.2.9 Number and names of individuals receiving a
home visit.

1.8.7.2.1 ). Number of individuals participating in group
health education sessioris and the topic(s).
covered.

1.'8.7.2.11. Number of individuals who have increased

knowledge as a result of participating in group
health education.

1.8.7.2.12. Number and names of individuals participating
in a wellness group.

1.8.7.2.13. Number of individuals who have increased

wellbeing as a result of participating in a
wellness group.

1.8.7.2.14. Number of health providers receiving education
or training.

1.8.7.2.15. Number of health providers who have increased
knowledge as a result of participating in
education or training.

1.8.7.2.16. Major accomplishments, new initiatives,
challenges, emerging issues, and individual
success stories.

If the Contractor provides Health Promotion services, the
Contractor must submit semi-annual reports to the
Department for reporting periods October 1 - September 30
and March 31 - April 1 no later than 30 days after the end of
each reporting period, or upon request by the Departi^ent.
Semi-annual reports must include, but are not limited

B-2.0
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1.8.7.3.1.

1.8.8.'

Health Promotion Tracking Log for the semi
annual period.

1.8.7.3.2. Major accomplishments, new initiatives,
challenges, emerging issues, and individual
success stories for the semi-annual period.

Reporting

1.8.8.1. The Contractor must submit semi-annual reports or as
otherwise determined by the Department, in a format
determined by the Department, including, but not limited to:

1.8.8.1.1.

1.8.8.1.2.

1.8.8.1.3.

Number of individuals served;

Contract activities performed; and to the extent
possible;

Case outcomes.

1.9. The Contractor must ensure all required services described in this Agreement
are:

1.9.1. Person-centered;

1.9.2. Trauma-informed;

1.9.3. Strengths-based; ajid
1.9.4. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate (CLAS).

1.10. The Contractor must work with all service providers and employers to ensure
they understand and address the cultural and communication access needs of
individuals being served, an'd advocate on behalf of individuals to protect their
civils rights and ensure access to services.

1.11. The Contractor must communicate any challenges related to the scope of
services described in this Agreement in a timely manner to the Department and
be available to meet as requested by the Department in order to:

1.11.1. Review performance;

1.11.2. Discuss current caseload and needed supports and services; and

1.11.3. Identify and address challenges and barriers to providing services.

1.12. Notwithstanding Paragraph Events of Default/Remedies and 9, Termination
of the General Contract Provisions of this Agreement {P-37), the Contractor
must develop and submit a corrective action plan for any performance
measure(s) not on target to be achieved annually, in accordance with this
Agreement, to the Department on a quarterly basis until such time all measure
are achievable. The corrective action plan must include:

1.12.1. The barrier(s) to ac

SS-2025-OHe-01-rARGE-01

Ascenlria Community Sofvicos. Inc.

sieving the measure(s) annually; and
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1.12.2. A detailed plan to achi^ve^the measure(s) that must include, but is not
"  limited to. a timeline. " ~ . *

1.13. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results and adjust-program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

1.14. The Contractor must maintain eligibility verification documents, case notes and
progress reports In client file's and make them available to the Department upon
request.

1.15. The Contractor must partic^ipate in the Department's database or centralized
data collection system if requested by the Department.

1.16. The Contractor must ensure staff participate in trainings on federal Ct_AS and
civil rights laws compliance, including policies and procedures for handling
discrimination complaints as provided by the Department.

1.17. The Contractor must participate in virtual or in-person meetings with the
Department upon request, in addition to any meeting requirements described in

. the Statement of Work above:

1.18. General Reporting Requirerrients

-1.18.1. The Contractor must submit a final program report to the Department
no later than 30 days prior to the completion date of any Section
described in this Agreement as identified by the Department or the
entire contract, if rejquested by the Department.

1.18.2. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Department in a format specified by the Department.

1.19. Background Checks

1.19.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this
Agreement, the Contractor must ensure that said individual has

■ undergone:

1.19.1.1., A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense,
and has no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under this

SS-20250HE-01-TARGE-01

Asconlrfa Communily Sorvicas. Inc.

Agreement;

1.19.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Serjvices (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161 -
F:49, with results indicating no evidence of behavior that
could endanger individuals served under this Agreement;
and

1.19.1.3. A name search of the Department's Division for Children.
Youth and Families (DCYF) Central. Registry pur^rrt to

ib
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_  _RSA 169-C:35. with results indicating no evidence of
r behavior |that could endanger iridividuals served'under this
. Agreement.

1.20. Confidential Data

1.20.1. The Contractor must meet all information secunty and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Inforrhation Security Requirements Exhibit.as referenced
beiow.

1.20.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering
services through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing
to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance
with federal and state laws and regulations and the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must
ensure said indivic

confidential data.

Department reques

uals have a justifiable business need to access
The Contractor must provide attestations upon

1.21. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.21.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conducting a Fjrivacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portaI{s)/website(s) hosted by the
Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected, used,

;  accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must
provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufhcienl- to allow the Department to assess, at
minimum, the following:

1.21.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

1.211.2. Who will have access to Pll;

1.21.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

1.21.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

1.21.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.21.2. 'The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the'
collection, processing or storage of .Pll.

1.22. Department Owned Devices. Systems and Network Usage

1.22.1. If Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this Agreement,
are authorized by the Department's Information Security Offtce-tCHJse

lb
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a Pepartment issued device (e.g. computer, tablet, mobile telephone)
or access the Department network in the fulfilment of this Agreerrient,
each End User must:

1.22.1.1. Sign arid abide by applicable Department and New
Hampshire Department of Information Technology (NH Doll)
use agreements, policies, standards, procedures and
guidelines, and complete applicable trainings as required;

1.22.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access
solely for conducting official.Department business and agree
that.all other use or access is strictly forbidden including, but
not limited, to personal or other private and non-Department
use, and that at no time shall they access or attempt to
access information without having the express authority of
the Department to do so;

1.22.1.3. Not'access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, and/or
agreement relating to system entry/access;

1.22.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, -sub-license, modify, reverse
engineeij, rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or being
evaluated by the Department; and at all times must use
utmost care to protect and keep such software strictly
confidential in accordance with the license or any other
agreement executed by the Department; ̂

1.22.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s) authorized
by the Department's Information Security Office or designee;

1.22.1.6. Not install non-standard software on any Department
equipment unless authorized by the Department's
Information Security Office.or designee;

1.22.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication
messages .created, sent, and received on a Department-
issued email system are the property of the Department of
New Hampshire and to be used for business purposes only.
Email is ijefined as "internal email systems" or "Department-
funded email systems."

1.22.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH DolT
policies, |standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.22.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.22.1.9.1. To only use a Department email address
•  assigned to them with ^ os"®

affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov".
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SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01
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T.22.1.9.2. • Include in the signature lines inforrnalion
identifying the End" User as a non-Departrn*eht*
workforce member; and

1.22.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
j  embedded underneath the signature.line:
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message may
contain information that is privileged and confidential
and Is intended only for the use of the individual(s)

to whom it Is addressed. If you receive this message
in error, please notify the sender immediately and
^elete this electronic message and any attachments
from your system. Thank you for your cooperation."

1.22.1."10.Contractor End Users with a Department issued email,
access or potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a
workspace in a Department building/facility, must:

1.22.1.-10.1. Complete the Department's Annual
Information Security & Compliance
Awareness Training prior to accessing,
viewing, handling, hearing,-or transmitting
Department Data or Confidential Data.

1.22.1.10.2. Sign the Department's Business Use and
Confidentiality Agreement and Asset Use
Agreement, and the.NH DolT Department
wide Computer Use Agreement upon
execution of the Agreerhent and annually
thereafter.

1.22.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view
the Department's Policies and Procedures
and Information Security webpages.

1.22.1.11 .Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in violation
of any of jthe above terms and conditions, said End User may
face removal from the Agreement, and/or criminal and/or civil
prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.

1.22.1.12.Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of
three business days prior to any upcoming transfers or
terminatrons of End Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges. If
End Users who possess Department credentials.and/or
badges or who. have system privileges resign or are
dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor a^fis to

[Hb
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_  notify the Department's Information Security Office or
"  designee imm^iately. ' ""

1.22.2. Workspace Requirement

1.22.2.1. If applicable,-the Department will work with Contractor, to
determine requirements for providing necessary workspace
and State' equipment for its End Users.

1.23. Contract End-6f-Life Transition Services
1.23.1. General Requirements

1.23.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Agreement
the parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a
smooth secure transition of the Services from the Contractor

to the Department and, if applicable, the.Contractor engaged
by the Department to assume the Services previously
performed by the Contractor for this section the new
Contractc^r shall be known as "Recipient"). Ninety (90) days
prior to the end-of the contract or unless otherwise specified
by the Departrnent, the Contractor must begin working with

■  the Department and if applicable, the new Recipient to
develop a' Data Transition Plan (DTP). The Department shall
provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

1.23.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the

Recipient! in connection with the transition from the
performar^ce of Services by the Contractor .and its End Users
to the performance of such Services. This may include
assistance with the secure transfer of records (electronic and
hard copy), transition of historical daja (electronic and hard
copy), the transition of any such Service from the hardware,
software, I network and telecommunications equipment and
internet-related information technology infrastructure
("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT
Systems of the Recipient and cooperatiori with and
assistance to any third-party consultants engaged by
Recipient in connection with the Transitiori Services.

1.23.1.3. If 3'system, database, hardware, software, and/or software
licenses ([Tools) was purchased or created to manage, track,
and/or store Department Data in relationship to this contract
said Tools will be inventoried and returned to the

Department, along with the inventory document, once
transition jof Department Data is complete.

1.23.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services Jjyjs the
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Contractor and its End Users sjiall be provided to the
"  '" Department and if applicable the Recipient in a" timely

manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed to be
Services jfor purposes of this Agreenient.

1.23.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information
Security Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's
Business Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain
in effect tintil the Data Transition is accepted as complete by
the Department.

1.23.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department
Data and the destruction or Transition of said data is not

feasible, the Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate
regulatory and professional standards for retention
requirements prior to destruction, refer to the terms and
condition's of the Department's DHHS Information Security
Requirernents Exhibit.

1.23.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.23.2.1. Each service or transition phase shall be deemed completed
(and the' Transition process finalized) at the end of 15
business days after the product, resulting from the Service,
is delivered to the Department and/or the Recipient in
accordarice with the mutually agreed upon Transition plan,
unless viithin said 15 business day term the Contractor
notifies Itjie Departnient of an issue requiring additional time
to complete said product.

1.23.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the
■  • Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms

and conciitions of the Department's Information Security
Requirernents Exhibit.

1.23.3. Disagreement over! Transition Services Results
1.23.3.1. In the event the'Department is not satisfied with the results

of the Transition Service, the Department shall notify the
Contractor, in writing, stating the reason for the lack of

■  satisfaction within 15 business days of the final product or at
any time ̂(juring the data Transition process. The Parties shall
discuss the actions to be taken to resolve the disagreement
or issueJ If an agreement is not reached, at any time the
Department shall be entitled to initiate actions in accordance
with the Agreement.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGe-01
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_?•. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirements, which
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit E, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

and disclose Protected Health Information2.3. The Contractor must use in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule)
Insurance Portability and

(45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health.
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in

accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit:

3.2.1.1. A detailed description of the language assistance services,
within ten (i10) days of the Effective Date of the Agreement, to
be provided to ensure meaningful access to programs and/or
services t^o individuals with limited English proficiency;
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who
are blind or have low vision; and individuals who have speech
challenges: " ^

3.2.1.2. A written attestation, within 45 days of the Effective Date of
the Agreement and annually thereafter, that all personnel
involved tt{»e provision of services to individuals under this
Agreement have completed, within the.last 12 months,.the
Contractor Required Training Video on Civil Rights-related
Provisions in DHHS Procurement Processes, which is

.  accessible • on the Department's website
(https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civil-right-
compliance-dhhs-vendors); and
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3.2.T.3. The Department's Federal Civil Rights Compliance Checklist
■"iMt'hin"teh|{10)'c!ays of the"Effective Date of the Agreement."
The Federal Civil Rights Compliance Checklist must have
been completed within the last 12 months and is accessible
on the Department's website (https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-
business-dhhs/civil-right-compliance-dhhs-vendors).

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership
3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other

materials prepared during or resulting from the .performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services,
Hampshire and/or
required, e.g.. the
Services."

3.3.2.

3.3.3.

with funds provided in part by the State of New
such other funding sources as were available or
United States Department of Health and Human

3.3.4.

All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department beifore printing, production,
distribution or useJ
The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:
3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement withou prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract,.and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and
Department, and

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01
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records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
^nd orders, vouchers, requisitions for materrals, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including ail forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.1.4. Medical records or^ each patient/recipient of services.
4.2. During'the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and jtranscripts.

4.3'. If, upon review of the Final^ Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01
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■Payment Terms,.

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds

1.1.1. 8% Federal funds, ORR Refugee Cash & Medical Assistance
{Coordination of DME), as awarded on November 8, 2023, by
the OHMS Administration for Children and Families. ALN
#93.566, FAIN #2401NHRCMA.

1.1.2. 5% Federal funds, Refugee Support Services and Set Asides
(FFY23 Afghan RHP), as awarded on July.6, 2023, by the
DHHS Admiriistration for Children and Families, ALN #93.'566,
FAIN#2301-NHRSSS-06.

1.1.3. 1% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides
.(FFY23 RHP| Supplement), as awarded on May 12, 2023, by
the DHHS Administration for Children and Families, ALN
#93.566, FAIN #2301NHRSSS-05.

1.1.4. 8% Federal funds. Refugee Support Services and Set Asides
(FFY23 UKF? RHP), as awarded on May 12, 2023. by the
DHHS Admiriistration for Children and Familes, ALN #93.566,FAIN# 2301 ^HRSSS-05.

1.1.5. 16% Federal funds, Refugee Support Services and Set Asides
(FFY24 Refugee Health Promotion), as awarded on November
11, 2023, by the DHHS Administration for Children and
Families. ALI^ #93.566, FAIN #2401NHRSSS-01

1.1.6. 18% Federal funds, Refugee Support Services and Set Asides
(FFY24 Refugee School Impact), as awarded on November
16, 2023, by the DHHS Administration for Children andFamilies. ALtjl #93.566, FAIN #2401NHRSSS-01.

1.1.7. . 30% Federal funds, Refugee Support Services and Set Asides
(Afghan Base), as awarded on July 6, 2023, by the DHHS
Administration for Children and Families, ALN #93.566, FAIN
#2301NHRSSS-06.

1.1.8. 14% Federal funds, Refugee Support Services and Set Asides
(Ukraine Base), as awarded on July 6, 2023, by the DHHS
Administration for Children and Families, ALN #93.566, FAIN
#2301NHRSSS-06.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

. 2.1. The Contractor as a sibrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.
SS-20250HE-01-TARGE-01
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2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

"TheXo'hTra'cto'r'rhust ihvoice'for Health'Profnotidh.services" ih^order^a'sTdlldws:

3.1. Ukrainian Support Services if services are provided to eligible
Ukrainians as deschb^ in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.7.2.;
or

3.2. Afghan Support Services if services are provided to eligible Afghans as
described in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Sections 1.8.2. through 1.8.3.;
and/or

3.3. Health Promotion Prociram as described in Exhibit B, Scope of Services,
Section 1.5. -

Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
8 Budget.

The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

Identifies and requests payment' for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but 'are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to Laura.McGlashan@dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

Laura McGlashan

NH State Refugee Health Coordinator
97 Pleasant Street

Thayer Building
Concord, NH 03301

SS-20250HE-01 -TARGE-01
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8.

The Department shall make
of-receipt of-each-invoice

payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
_and_supporting. documentation for. authorized

supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
no later than forty (40) days after the contract
in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7

expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

The final invoice and

be due to the Department
.completion date specified
Completion Date.

Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and. adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be rhadb by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. '

9. Audits

9.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.acl@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

9.1.1. Condition A J The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

9.1.2.

9.1.3.

Condition B -

requirements

Condition C -

The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
0fNHRSA7:28, lll-b.

9.2.

The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security ajnd Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit. -•

If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.rih.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal

requirements of 2
Administrative Requirements, Cost
Requirements for Fe'deral awards.

year, conducted in accordance with the
CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform

Principles, and Audit

9.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of

9.3.

implementation of the corrective action plan.

If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.
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'9:4." " Any Cdhtracto"r'thiaTre'c6ive's~an~amounrelquar't6"''or'9reaterthan"
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA upon request.

9.5. In addition to, and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is un|derstood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to| the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception'.
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Exhibit C-1 Budget
Case Coordination)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ascentfia Community Services, Inc.

Budget' Request for: Targeted Refugee Services
Budget F^erlod: July 1, 2024 to September 30, 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 22.63% of Salary and Wages
1

Line Item

•  p •

'  1 ^ ,

SFY25

(July 1, 2024 - June 30,

2025)

SFY26

(July 1,2025-

September 30, 2025)

1. Salary & Wages $32,230 $8,300

2. Fringe Benefits 1 $0 $0

3. Consultants SO $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

costs per 2 $0 w

5.(a) Supplies-Educational ^ $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab 1 $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy 1 $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical . 1 $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies - Office ' 1 $0 $0
6. Travel 1 ' $8,500 .  $4,750
7. Software 1 $0 $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications 1 $0 $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Training 1 $0 $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify belov^ 1 $0 $0

Olher (please specify) Interpreters \ $4,270 $1,950

Other (please specify) Professional Liability Insurance $0 $0

Other (please specjfy) Telephone 1 $0 $0

Other (please specify) Audit $0 so

Other (please specify) Postage 1 $0 $0
Other (please specify) Equipment rental 1 $0 $0

Other (please specify) Occupancy 1 $0 $0

9. Sub recipient Contracts 1 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs 1 ^ $45,000 $15,000

Total Indirect Costs 1 $0 $0

Subtotals 1 $45,000 $15,000

»  *

TOTAL ' $60,000
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Exhibit 02 Budget
(Afghan Health Promotion)

;  i 1 . . 1
New Hampshiro Department of Health and Human Services |

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Targeted Refugee Services

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period: Octot>er 1, 2024 to June 30. 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 22.63% of Salary and Wisges

Line Item

,

.

SFY25

(October 1. 2024< June

30, 2025)

SFY26

(July 1,2025-
September 30, 2025)

1. .Salary & Wages $15,572 $5,239

2. Fringe Benefits 1 $2,492 $995

3. Consultants $1 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment

CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

costs per 2. ■' $0 $0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational 1 $0 $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0
5.(e) Supplies • Office $745 $138
6. Travel ■ $470 $118
7. Software $0 $0
8. (a) Other • Marketing/Communications $0 •• $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0 $0
8. fc) Other ■ Other (specify below) $0 ■  $0

Olher (please specify) Interpreters $676 $208

Other (please specify) Professional Liabllily Insurance $626 $210

Other (please specify) Telephone \ $1,014 $332

Other (please specify) Audit 1 $175 $54

Other (please specify) Poslaqe 1 $40 $13
Olher (please specify) Eauipment rental 1 $235 $75
Other (please specify) Occupancy 1 $1,557 • $474

9. Sub recipient Contracts t $0 $0

Total Direct Costs 1 $23,602 $7,056

Total Indirect Costs 1 $3,524 $1,186

Subtotals $27,126 $9,042
" 1 TOTAL' $36j168

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01

Contractor Initials:
/!&

itials: v

Date:
6/7/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

DocuSIgn Envelope 10; 14A3CP96-845F-471A-B727.94700SS1719C
Exhibit C-3 Budget

(Refugee Health Promotion)

1  1 1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Budget Request for: Targeted Refugee Services

^  Budget Period^.October 1, 2024 • September 30, 2025 ■

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 22.63% of Salary and Wages
1

Line Item

SFY25

(October 1,2024 •

June 30. 2025)

*  i *

SFY26

(July 1,2025-

September 30, 2025)

1. Salary & Wages $995 $302

2. Fringe Benefits ' 1 $189 $57

3. Consultants $1 $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR.200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. 1

$0 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b) SuDolies • Lab 1 SO $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy • 1 $0 SO

5.(d) Supplies • Medical 1 $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies - Office 1 $161 $75

6. Travel 1 $75 $0

7. Software 1 $0 $0

8. (a) Other - Marketinq/Communicalions 1 $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 1 -$0 $0

8. (c) Other ■ Other (specify below) 1 $0 $0

Other (please specify) Interpreters 1 $0 $0

Other (please specify) Professional Liability Insurance $17 $9

Other (please specify) Telephone 1 $96 $17

Other (please specify) Audit 1 $88 $44

Olher (please specify) Postage 1 $20 $10

Other (please specify) Eouipment rental 1 $75 $57

Olher (please specify) Occupancy 1 $100 $43

9. Sub recipient Contracts 1 $0 SO

Total Direct Costs 1 $1,816 $613

Total Indirect Costs ' 1 $225 $68

Subtotals 1 $2,042 $681

..
total $'2,723

•SS-2025-OHE-01.-TARGE-01

Contractor Initials:

Date:
6/7/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

OocuSign Envelope 10: HA3CF96-845P-471A-B727-94700551719C

Exhibit C-4 Budget
(Ukraine Health Promotion).

■  i. 1 i
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

Targeted Refugee Services

October 1. 2024 to June 30. 2025

Budget Request for:

Budget Period:

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 22.63% of Salary and Wjjges

Line Item

•• ' I • V-tr

SYF25

(October 1, 2024 •

June 30. 2025)

SFY26

(July 1,2025-
September 30, 2025)

v •

1. Salary & Wages $27,531 $9,202

2. Fringe Benefits- 1 $5,231 $1,472

3. Consultants . 1 ' $1 $1

4. Equipment v |
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2

CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. 1
, $0 $0

5^) Supplies - Educational $0 .$0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab 1 * $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy 1 $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies-Medical 1 $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies - Office 1 $1,895 $600

6. .Travel 1 $470 $141

7. Software 1 . $0 $950

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications 1 $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 1 $775 $500

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below) 1 $0

Other (please specify) Interpreters 1 $780 ■  * $208

Other (please specify) Professional Liability Insurance $1,101 $300

Other (please specify) Telephone 1 $2,028 $137

^  Other (please specify) Audit^ $230 $75

Other (please specify) Postaqe 1 $61 $20

Other (please specify) Eouipment rental 1 $325 $140

Other (please specify) Occupancy 1 $2,753 $641

9. Sub recipient Contracts 1 SO $0

Total Direct Costs 1 $43,181 $14,388

Total Indirect Costs ' 1 $6,230 $2,082

Subtotals 1 $49,411 $16,470

.  TOTAL $'65,881

SS-2023-OHE-01 -TARGE-01

OS

Conlractor Initials; ̂
6/7/2024

Dale;



Docusign Envelope 10; 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

Docu^gn Envelope ID; 14A3CF96-B45F-471A-B727-94 70D5517igC
ExhiPli C-5

(Rofugm.Moalin PromoUon]

New Hampthiro Department of Health and Hunian Servlcea

Contractor Name: A$c9nlria Community Sarvicas, inc.

Budget Request for: Targatad Rafugea Sa/vicas
Budget Period: October 1. 2024 to Soplambar 30, 2026

,  Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 22.63% of Salary end Wages

Cine Item ' ,
SFY25

(Octobor i; 2024 • Juno

3b, 2025)

SFY26

(July 1,2025-Juno 30,
2026)

SFY27

(July 1. 2026 - Soptombor 30;
2Ci'2e)

1. Salary A Wages .. $29,366 $39,155 $0,789

2. Frlnae Benefits ' $3,876 $6,265 $1,860

3. Cor»ultan1s $1 $1 $1

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rale cannot be applied lo equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200;

$0 $0 $0

5.(0) Supolfes - Educational $0 $0 $0

5.fb) SuDoiles • Lab $0 $0 $0

5.(0) SuDDlles - Ptxarmacv $0 $0 $0

S.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0 $0

S.(e) Supplies ■ Ofrtce $960 $234 $515

6. Travel -. $650 1  $846 $212

7; Soflwitiro $0 $0 $0

8. (a) Other • MarVeilno/Communications $0 $0 $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Tralrdna $597 $900 $160

8. (c) Other • Other (tpedfv below)

Other (olaase soeciM Intoforatars $700 $800 $200

dthof foiaaso soociM Protosslonal Uabltity fnsuranco $243 $324 $81

Other (ohasa soaiclM Tafaohono $1,217 $1,623 $406

Oihar (pfeese soeclM Audit .  $24 $32 $8

Othof (ohaso soocifv) Postaoa $15 1  $20 $60

Other (Dfeaso soaclM Eauiomont rontal $205 $273 $80

Othar (oiaasa soaciM Oceuoancv $2,375 $3,167 $60

9. Sub recipient Contracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $40,229 $53,639 $13,410

Total Indirect Cosis $6,646 $8,861 $2,215

Subrofafs $46,875 $62,500 $15,625

1  TOTAL $125,000

SS-2025-OME-OMARGe-Ol

Contraclor Initials:

Data:
6/7/2024



Envelope 10: 14A3CF96-B45F-471A-B727-9470D551719C
ExNbltC-e :

(School Impact)

.

N«w Hampthko Dspartniont of Htalth and Human Sarvlcas

Contractor Name: Ascentfia Community Services, Inc.

Budpei Reoueat for: Tar^ted Refugee Services

Budget Period: October 1, 2024 fo SepterrOter 30, 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)22.63% of Salary and Wages
- • — . ■ ■ 11 —^

LIneUom

\

SFY25

(October 1, 2024 • June
30. 2025)

SFY26

(July 1) 2025-Juno 30.
2029)

SFV27

(July 1, 2026 - Soptomber 30,'
2026)

1. Salary ft Waoes $34,983 $46,644 $11,661

2. Frlrrae Benents' $4,529 S7.483 $1,666

3. Consullania SI $1 $1

4. Equipment

incCrecl cost rate canr>ot be epplied lo equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0 '  $0

S.fa) Suoolies • Educational so SO $0

S.fb) Supplies'Lab so so $0

S.fc) Supplies • Pharmacy so so •  so

S.fd) Supplies • Medical so $0 so

S.fe) Supplies • OfTice • S358 $225 $56

6. Travel $1,409 $1,409 $352

7. Soflvfflre SO $0 $0

8. (a) Other • Martcetlno/Communlcalions SO $0 $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Trainlno SO SO $0

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)

Other (piiease soeclfv) Interofelors $400 $533 $178

Other (p/ease specify) Pro/es$fofiol Liability Insuranca S150 $200 $50

Other fpJoase specfM Toloohono $488 $624 S156

Other (olOBse soeclM Audit S45 $60 $15

Oihar (oleese soecify) Posfaae S15 S20 $10

Other (p/ease spec/(W EQulpmoni rental $225 $300 $75

Other (oloBso soeclM Occuooncv $2,000 ■  $2,500 $825

Other folease specify) Occupancy SO -  SO $0

Total Direct Costs $44,584 $59,979 $15,245

Total Indirect Cosis S7.917 $10,021 $2,255

Sub(ote/s $52,500 $70,000 $17,500

» TOTAL $140,000

SS-2025-OHE-01 -TARCe-OI

Conintctor Initials:

Dalo:.
6/7/2024



Docusign Envelope ID; 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

DocuSlgn Envelope ID: 14A3CF96-B45F-471A-B727-W7DD551719C
Exhibit C-7 Budget

(Afghan Social Services)

•  • 1 i
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ascenfr/a Commun/fy Serv/ces,/nc.

BudgetjRequest for: Targeted Refugee Services
Budget Period: Octoberl, 2024 to June 30, 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 22.63% of Salary and Wages
1

1

SYF25 SFY26

Line Item . (October 1,2024.- (Julyl, 2025-

June 30, 2025) September 30, 2025)

1. Salary & Wages 1 $104,446 $34,815

2. Fringe Benefits 1 ■  $16,711 $6,615

3. Consultants $1 $1

4. Equipment
$0 $0Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2

CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies • Educational 1 $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab I $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy 1 $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical " 1. $0 $0

5.(e) Supolies • Office 1 -  .$3,584 $3,029

6. Travel 1 $1,004 $450

7. Software 1 $0 $0

8. fa) Other • Mar1<etinq/Communications 1 $0 $0

8. fb) Other • Education and Training 1 . $1,000 $1,000

8. fc) Other - Other (specify below) i .

Other (please specify) Interpreters 1 $676 $520

Other (please specify) Professional Liatfility Insurance $2,089 $324

Other (please specify) Telephone \ ■  $1,170 $406

Other (please specify) Audit i $1,044 $348

Other (please specify) Postage 1 $100 $33

Other (please specify) Eouipment rental 1 $1,567 $522

Other (please specify) Occupancy 1 $8,356 $2,785

9. Subrecipient Contracts 1 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs 1 $152,548 $50,849

Total Indirect Costs 1 $23,636 $7,879

Subfofdfs ! $176,185 $58,728

t  •
TOTAL .  $234,913

Contractor Initials:ilidte* V

SS-2025-OHE-01 -TARGE-OI Date;
6/7/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

OocuSign Envelope 10:14A3CP96-B45F-471A<B727-947D0S51719C
Exhibit C-6 Budget

(Ukraine Social Services)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ascentria Community Services,, Inc.

BudgetjRoquest for: Targeted Refugee Services
Budqet Period: October 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025-

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 14.49%

lline Item

SYF25

(October 1,2024-

June 30. 2025)

•1

SFY26

(Jutyl, 2025-
September 30, 2025)

1. Salary &Waqes ! $44,494 $14,831

2. Fringe Benefits 1 $7,119 $2,818

3. Consultants $1 $1

4. Equipment . |
Indirect cost rate cannot'be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. 1

$0 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational ! .  $0 $0

S.(b) Supplies - Lab i $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy 1 $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical 1 $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies - Office 1 $531 $2,734

6. Travel 1 $500 $167

7. Software 1 $0 $0

8. fa) Olher - Marketinq/Communicalions 1 $0 $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Trainlnq 1 $354 $0

8. (c) Other - Olher (specify below) !
Other (olease specifv) Interpreters 1 $676 $225

Other (please specify) Professional Liability Insurance $890 $310

Other (please specify) Telephone ' $1,170 $400

Other (please specify) Audit 1 $445 $148

Other (please specify) Postaae 1 $100 $40

Olher (please specify) Equipment rental 1 $667 $308

Other (please specify) Occupancy 1 $3,560 $1,187

Other (please specify) Client Housing Assistance and basic
needs l --

$9,000 $0

Total Direct (Dosts 1 $69:507 $23,169

Total Indirect Costs $10,069 $3,356

Subtotals $79,576 $26,526

' Total Amount $106,101

.

Contractor Initials:

SS-2025-OHE-01-TARGE-01 Date:
6/7/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

DocuStgn Envelope ID; 14A3CF96-B45F-471A-B727.9470D551719C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D -Federal Requirements

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

TheXohlractor identified in Section 1*3'6f the' Ge'herarProvisiohsligrees'to com^ provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

I
This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that'they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds'for suspension
government wide suspensiori or debarment.

of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services.
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;' and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each ernployee to be engaged in the performance of the ■
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the staternent required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employee will

1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement: and

1.4.2. Notify, the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a crimina[j|lrug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after suc^Topoviction;

v1 6/23 Exhibit 0

Federal Requirements

Page 1 of 10

Contractor's Initials



Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

DocuSlgn Envelope 10: t4A3CF96rB4SF-471A-6727-94700S51719C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D -Federal Requirements

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employeesjmust provide notice, including position title, to every contract
bfficer~6ri'wli6se*'c6nlract activity the convictedbmployee"was wo'fkingTunless'thTF^eral
agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each aff^ted Agreement; '

1.6. Taking one of the following actions,! within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to arid including
termination, consistent with' the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5', and 1.6.

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

v1 6/23 Exhibit D
Federal Requirements

Page 2 of 10

Contractor's Initials
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Oocusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D-Federal Requirements

SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYtNG

■■ The 'Cohtractor identifiecJ 'irrSectioiTV.S of thTGeneral Provisions" agrees to comply with'th"e*^visi67ir
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment {31 U.S.C. 1352), and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

^US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORSUS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - C^ONTRACTORS
Programs (indicate applicable program covered);

•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX _ „
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX |
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the t>est of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress.

■  an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor).'the
undersigned shall complete and submit] Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see htlps://omb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered inlo. Subrhission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to]a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

v1 6/23 Exhibit D

Federal Requirements

Page 3 of 10
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D ~ Federal Requirements

SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATJERS

I  ̂
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
Debamnent, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.1 i and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

The inability of a person to provide the certiftcation required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant Knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remediesavailatile to the Federal Government, DijtHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement Is submitted if at any time Ihe prospective primary participant learns that Its
certification was'erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

The terms 'covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant," "person," "prirnary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded," as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Pa.rt 76. See
https;//www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-litle45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it st'iall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
l.ower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not det^arred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each .
participant may, but Is not required to, clieck the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parties)^
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-22/chapter-V/part-513.

ft
v1 6/23 Exhibit D

Federal Requirements
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^  ' New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records In order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a particlpant'is not require'd't6^<^"tl^t^h*ich ish(5"rmally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals; |
11.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
•11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission' of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(i)(b) of this certification; and |

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participaril shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier| proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier

participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals: {
13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency. I

13.2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitled •Certification|Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibilily, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
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SECTION b: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

"ThVCdnt'racto^iclentifiied in 'S&tioh 1.3 of the Geheral Pfdvisibris'agreeVliy^igri^ of the '
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

The Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
requirements, which may include but are not limited to:

1. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2CFR200).

2. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Ac! of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding unijer this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan;

3. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment OpportunKy Plan requirements:

•  I

4. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity):. ' 'j .

5. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29. U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard-to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;

6. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
.  discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and

local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

7. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education-programs;

8. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance, it does not include
employment discrimination;

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulatijans - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity:
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

10. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Jukice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based'
Organizations); and Whistleblower prolwtions 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense

.Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts.

11. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute] ambient, or outdoor, air.
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12. The Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants Into the waters
surface waters.

of the United States and regulating quality standards for

13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) (41
U.S.C. 1908) which establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as
appropriate.

14.- Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which establishes that all •
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of iS100.000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

15. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes
the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work underjthat 'funding agreement.* the recipient or subrecipient must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401,'Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firrris Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements." and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health.and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the •
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification;

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

' Public L*a"w T03-227rPaftX'^Erivironmental Tobacco Smoke.'also known as the Pro-Children'Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children un^er the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or| local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or fi^edicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day artd/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity. .

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification;

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of
of 1994.

Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act

v1 6/23 Exhibit D

F^eral Requirements

Page's of 10

Contractor's Initials

>—OS

Date672Z?^



Docusign Envelope ID: 375B2A33-47AF-4863-9E72-5E5308E87C5E

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 14A3CF96-B45F-471A-B727-W70D5517t9C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDtNG ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFAJA) COiyUANCE ,

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greaterlthan $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award is l^elow $30,000 btlit subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award -

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5. Program source

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of

7. Location of the entity

8. Principle place of performance

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI; DUNS#)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual grosslrevenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

the funding action

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all.applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.
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FORMA

AVlKe Granlee identifi^ In Section 1'.3 of the GenerarProvisiorisTI'c^Ify thWltie'responses'to the" '
below listed questions are true and accurate.

I  ER64HRTRKFY3
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
. organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,

subcontracts, loans, grants. sub-grants..and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or
more In annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants.
and/or cooperative agreements? i

NO YES

•If the answer to U2 above is NO. slop here
If the answer to «2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986? !

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

' Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

6/7/2024

Date:

Contractor Name: Ascentn'a care Alliance, inc
1

-OMuSlgnad

Title: presi dent/CEO

g;
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A. Definitions

The following tenris may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term refen'ing to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information,' Breach'
shall have the same meaning as the tenn "Breach' in section 164.402 pf Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incidenr shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NISI Publication 800-61. Computer. Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data' means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefrts and personal Information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health information and

Personally Identifiable Information.
•  '

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed iri the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection^ disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive arid confidential information.

I  ■ ''
4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,

business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in ac^rdance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated

6.

thereunder.

'Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (eitljer failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include ttie loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

vs. Losl upctats 1CV09/10
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access.
use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

I

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information'Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by rneans of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure forthe transmission of unencr>jpted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc;,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying Information which is linked

^ or linkable to a specific individual, sucli as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
• name, etc.

9. . "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards fpr Privacy of Individually Identifiable Healtti
information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. I

11. "Security Rule" shall mean' the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. I

I

I

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

I.- RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
I

A. Business Use and Disclosure of^ Confidential Information.

,1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Conlrsctor initiots
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2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

The Contractor must not disc ose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on the basis ttiat it is required by law, In response to a subpoena, etc..
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
.Contract. i

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

2.

3.

4.

Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the |Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's encryption
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use wmputer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data. I '
Encrypted Email; End User may only employ email to transmit Confrdential Data if email
is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons
authorized to receive such information.

Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the'
secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End Userjmay only transmit Confidential Data via i^rt/ffed ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

(  I
7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data

said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

Contractor Initials
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8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, ajvirtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFtTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocof. If End
User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will structure the
Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and siib-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all

data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the servjces rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place-
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The' Contractor agrees to' retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees | Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and

privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
hardened operating systems, -the latest anti-viral,

antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

-OS

regulations regarding the
currently-supported and
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6.

-I

The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastmcture. I

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor wnH maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sut>-
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State

any subcontractors as a

2.

3.

of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery

operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing Slate of New
Hampshire data shall be 1 rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines for Media
Sanitization. National Institute of Standards arid Technology. U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
t)een properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor priorj to destruction.

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this ConUact,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as folloWs:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services. '

2. The Contractor will maintain
information throughout the

policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,

transformation. us"e. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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I

3. The Contractor, will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for wntractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide Regular security awareness and education for its End Usere
in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor v^ll be sul>contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for [state of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

t

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use, agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement. j '

9. The Contractor will work vJith the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over thejrfe of the I Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed

'annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

I

10. The Contractor vrill not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data pffshore or outside the txjundarles of the United States unless prior
express written consent is jobtalned from the Information Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent

Ccnlrsdor Initials
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future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach. Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach. . '

I

12. Contractor must, comply ̂ th all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal.agencies, including, but not limited to,
provisions.of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as applicable
under State law. I

I  .
I

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protek:t the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope pf
security that'is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hanipshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for-the
Department of Information Technology policies, -guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to'maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section

VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract

to only those authorized Encf Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract

from-loss, theft or ina'dvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times'.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted an'd password-protected.

Conlreclof Initiats
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^  d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvbted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential infonmation received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologicalty secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours

as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted a! all, times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed

using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared vrith anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party-application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA, and other
applicable taws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance v/ith this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In Section Vl.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306, In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with alt applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine If personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

Coniraclor initials
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4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation.measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as applicable,

in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

yi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.

DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformaiionSecurilyOfrice@dhhs.nh.gov

Contractor Initials
/!&
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BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

_The.C,onlrac1or_id.entified.jn.S.e,ction,1.3.oUhe General Provisions of .the Agreement (Eocm.Pi3.7).
("Agreement"), and any of- its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the "Business Associate." The State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services. "Department" shall be referred
to as the "Covered Entity." The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as "the
parties."

The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191. the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160. 162. and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XMI.
Subtitle D. Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. 42 USC 17934.
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records. 42 USC s. 290 dd-2.42 CFR Part
2. (Part 2). as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1) Definitions

a. The following terms shall have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA. the HITECH
Act. and Part 2. as they may be amended from time to time:

' "Breach." "Designated Record Set." "Data Aggregation." Designated Record
Set." "Health Care Operations," "HITECH Act." "Individual." "Privacy Rule."
'Required by law,' "Security Rule," and 'Secretary."

b;, Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement
that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate
working with PHI and as applicable. Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
under the Agreement.

c. "Constructively Identifiable." means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could l>e used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of
the information.

d. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA.
means protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e. "Part 2 record" means any patient "Record." relating to a "Patient." and "Patient
Identifying Information." as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited
by the American National Standards Institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Informstion

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outlined under the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including byt-rcifit

Exhibit F I
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limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2. and not use. disclose, maintain, store, or
transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR

.  .Part2.- ; .. .

b.. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable:

I. For the proper management and administration of the BusinessAssociate;

II. As required by law. according to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. below;

•  III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Entity; and ;

V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third parly or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
agreement with the third party or subcontractor, that complies- with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included in those business associate
agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not. disclose any PHI in response to a request or
demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it
is required by law. without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
the Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI and shall .
cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to

.  contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable
relating to Part 2 records. the-Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

a. Business Associate . shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI In accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule
and Security Rule with regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy
Officer at the following email address. OHHSPrivacyOfficer^dhhs.nh.gov after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by
Its contract, Including any known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. , This includes
Inadvertent or accidental uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health information.

. c. In the event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws "and
regulations and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d.. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time It becomes aware of any known or suspected prlv^ior'

ExhibiiF I d-b
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security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to;

I. The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers'and'the likelihood'of re^identification;

II. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information;

.  III. Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed; and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
has been mitigated.

e... The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion

of its Incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to
the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies arid procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate's and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the
Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable.

g; Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or
have access to PHI under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

h, Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices
all records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the
Agreement.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet
the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving'a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated

• Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k. Business Associate .shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

I. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill
its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to

ExhlbilF I
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accordance with 45 CFR Section164.528.

m. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days forward such request to'Covered'Entityr'Covered Entity shall have"'"

the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
' Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA. and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

a. Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason..
.the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all
PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection
with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any
form or platform.

VI. . If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state
or federal law. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible for as
long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the P^l has been
destroyed.

(4) Oblioatlons of Covered Entity -

a. Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices
on the Covered Entity's website:

https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/oos/hipaaypublications.htm In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR
Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

• c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the
use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45
CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's '•
use or disclosure of PHI.

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

a. In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity
may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The
Covered Entity may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a limeframe
specified by Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions, Laws, and Regulatory References. All laws and-regulations (Gs^.
Exhibit F 1
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herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Business Associate
Agreement, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as In effect or
.as.amend'ed

b. Change In law • Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
as is necessary from time to time.for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate
to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. 42 CFR Part 2 other
applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership - The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Cpvered Entity.

.  d. Interpretation - The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA and the
Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate
to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2.

e. Segregation - If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms
or conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return
or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) g. and

.  .(3) h.l., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
(P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

r  .

IN WITNESS. WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreerrient. ' .

Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services Ascentria care Alliance, inc

The State Name of the Contractor

OocuSlQAte br Oo<uSioA«4 by.

IW'Ua-

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Reuben Hampton Angela Bovill

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
1

Director, Office of Health Equity president/CEO

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

6/7/2024 ■  6/7/2024'

Date Date
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